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THE MAMATMA A IV of PSUs under the Ministry of Power

Notice of 14th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that 14! Annual General Meeting of the Members of Energy
Efficiency Services Limited will be held on Friday, the 29t day of September, 2023 at 04:00
P.M. at NFL Building, 7*h Floor, Board Room, Core Ill, Scope Complex, L.odhi Road, New
Delhi-110003 through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“"OAVM”) to
transact the following businesses: -

Ordinary Business: -

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31%t March 2023 together with
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and to consider and if
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:-

“Resolved that the audited Standalone & Consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31t March 2023 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Audifors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Ajay Tewari (DIN: 09633300), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without medification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Ajay Tewari (DIN: 09633300), who retires by
rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company,’

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Aditya Dar (DIN: 08079013), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and if thought fit, to pass,
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“Resolved that in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Aditya Dar (DIN: 08079013), who retires by
rotation at this meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

4. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 and, in
this regard and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors of the Company be and

is hereby authorized to fix an appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the %
Company, appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the figancial }
year 2023-24.".
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Special Business: -

5. To appoint Shri R.K. Tyagi (DIN: 09632316) as a Non-Executive Nominee Director
(PGCIL) in the Company and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 152, 161(3) and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and rules made thereunder (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and Articles of Association of the
Company, Shri R. K. Tyagi (DIN: 09632316) who was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company with effect from 4th Dec 2022 and who holds office till the date of
14t Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Act and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Act signifying his intention to be a candidate for the office of Director in the Company, be
and is hereby appointed as a Non - Executive Director as a Nominee of PGCIL and he shall
be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

6. To appoint Shri D. K. Patel (DIN: 08695490) as a Non-Executive Nominee Director
(NTPC) in the Company and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 152, 161(3) and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and rules made thereunder (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) and Articles of Association of the
Company, Shri D. K. Patel (DIN: 08695490) who was appointed as an Additional Director
of the Company with effect from 10th Feb 2023 and who holds office till the date of
14th Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Act and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the
Act signifying his intention to be a candidate for the office of Director in the Company, be
and is hereby appointed as a Non - Executive Director as a Nominee of NTPC and he shall
be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

By the order of the Board of Directors
For Energy Efficiency Services Limited

tow -

Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi
Date: 29/09/2023



Notes:

1. Pursuant to General Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020,
December 20, 2022, and other circulars issued from time to time by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“collectively referred to as “"MCA Circulars”) from time to time and
in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (” the Act”), the
14t Annual General Meeting of the Company is being conducted through Video
Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio- Visual Means (OAVM) facility, which does not
require physical presence of members at the common venue. The deemed venue for
the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

2. The detailed procedure for participation in the meeting through VC/OAVM is
provided below:

a. Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM using the following
credentials:

« Link: https:https.//eeslindiaus.webex.com/eeslindiaus/i.php?MTID=m494de3fcef0fad
c7f1c0988332¢20¢35
» Meeting ID: 2555 065 5374 & Password: AGM@2023

b. Members are requested to follow the procedure given below:

i.  Launch the internet browser (chrome/edge/safari) by typing the URL Link
given in Point (a). above.

ii.  Enter the login credentials. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops with Google Chrome for a better experience. Further Members
will be required to allow a Camera, if any, and hence use the Internet with a
good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. Please note that
Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspots may experience Audio/Video loss due to
fluctuations in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use
Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. The
facility to join the meeting shall be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled time
of the AGM and shall be kept open till the expiry of 15 minutes after such
scheduled time.

¢. The Notice of the AGM is being sent by electronic mode to all the Members, whose
email addresses are available with the Company unless any Member has requested
a physical copy of the same.

d. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to the MCA Circulars,
physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility
for the appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM.
Hence, Proxy Form, Route Map and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.
However, in terms of the provisions of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act,
representatives of the Members such as the body corporate can attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

e. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies

Act, 2013. { W



Body Corporates whose Authorised Representatives are intending to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting at companysecretary@eesl.co.in.

. Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Statutory Auditors of the
company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C & AG),
and in terms of Section 142, their remuneration is to be fixed by the Company in
Annual General Meeting or in such manner as the Company in AGM may determine.
The Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2023-24 have been appointed by
the C&AG vide letter no. No./CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, EESL (1)/53
dated 12th September, 2023. Accordingly, the Members may authorize the Board to fix
an appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors as may be deemed fit by the Board
for the financial year 2023-24.

. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of the Special Business in the notice is annexed thereto.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact us
at companysecretary@eesl.co.in or call on 011 - 45801260. Kindly quote your name,
DP ID-Client ID / Folio no., and Event Number in all your communications.

All relevant documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying statement shall
be available for inspection at the Registered / Corporate Office of the Company
between 11.00 AM. to 2.00 P.M. on all working days and will also be available for
inspection at the meeting.

. During the meeting, where a poll on any item is required, the members shall cast their
vote on the resolutions only by sending emails to the company
at companysecretary@eesl.co.in.




Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 5

Appointment of Shri R. K. Tyagi (DIN: 09632316) as a Non-Executive Nominee Director
(PGCIL)

Pursuant to clause 7.3 of Supplementary Agreement No, 7 executed on 15t September 2021 to
the Joint Venture Agreement of EESL and Article 109 of Articles of Association of the
Company duly amended on 26t July, 2022 and pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Board of Directors through Circular Resolution no-64 ratified in 124th Board
Meeting held on 14th Feb 2022, appointed Shri R. K. Tyagi (DIN: 09632316) as Additional
Directors w.e.f 4t Dec 2022, to hold office upto the date of 14% Annual General Meeting of
the Company, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. The Company has received notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013
signifying his candidature for Directorship of the Company.

His brief resume inter - alia, giving his experience, shareholding in the Company, other
Directorships and other particulars, forms part of this notice. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 152(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Director shall be appointed in a General
Meeting by way of Ordinary Resolution. The NRC, EESL vide circular resolution dated 12th
September, 2023 and Board of Directors in their 133* meeting held on 29/09/2023 have
recommended the same for consideration and approval of Members of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or
interested in the resolution financially or otherwise except to the extent that he or she is a
Director and/or Shareholder of the Company. The Board of Directors of Your Company
recommends passing of the resolution as set out at Item No. 5 as Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 6

Appointment of Shri D. K. Patel (DIN: 08695490) as a Non-Executive Nominee Director
(NTPC)

Pursuant to clause 7.3 of Supplementary Agreement No. 7 executed on 15t September 2021 to
the Joint Venture Agreement of EESL and Article 109 of Articles of Association of the
Company duly amended on 26t July, 2022 and pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Board of Directors through Circular Resolution no-71 ratified in 126t Board
Meeting held on 315t March 2023, appointed Shri D. K. Patel (DIN: 08695490) as Additional
Directors w.e.f 10t Feb 2023, to hold office upto the date of 14t Annual General Meeting of
the Company, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. The Company has received notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013

signifying his candidature for Directorship of the Company.



His brief resume inter - alia, giving his experience, shareholding in the Company, other
Directorships and other particulars, forms part of this notice. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 152(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Director shall be appointed in a General
Meeting by way of Ordinary Resolution. The NRC, EESL vide circular resolution dated 12t
September, 2023 and Board of Directors in their 133* meeting held on 29/09/2023 have
recommended the same for consideration and approval of Members of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or
interested in the resolution financially or otherwise except to the extent that he or she is a
Director and/or Shareholder of the Company.. The Board of Directors of Your Company
recommends passing of the resolution as set out at Item No. 6 as Ordinary Resolution.

By the order of the Board of Directors
For Energy Efficiency Services Limited

Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29/09/2023



Brief Resume of the Directors seeking Appointment/Re — appointment:

of over 33 years in the Power
Sector at various key positions
in premier CPSUs in the power
sector such as POWERGRID and
NTPC. He has handled multi-
disciplinary functions in various
business segments like Asset
Management, Project Execution
& Monitoring, Engineering,
Business Development,
Telecom, Load Despatch &
Communication, NTAMC,
Finance, Commercial, HR
Resource Management, Safety,
DMS etc. Heis representing
India at various International
technical committees for
preparing Technical Standards.
He is the Author of over 50
technical papers which have
been presented at National and
International conferences. He
has also published Handbooks
on High Voltage Circuit
Breakers and Bamboo Nailing &
Sand Piling Technique in Power

Transmission.

Name Shri R K.Tyagi Shri D.K.Patel
DOB/ Age 2nd March 1966 / 57 years 30th April 1964/ 59 years
Date of [4th Dec 2022 10t February 2023
appointment
Terms & |As per the Articles of Association|As per the Articles of Association|
Conditiens of |of the Company of the Company
appointment
Remuneration [NA NA
Qualification » Blectrical Engineer from |Graduated in Mechanical
Punjab Engineering College [Engineering  from INIT,
(P.E.C.), Chandigarh, Rourkela, and Post Graduate
« M.(Tech) in Energy Studies [Diploma in Business
from IIT Delhi. Management (HR & Finance)
« Fulbright Scholar from [from MDI, Gurgaon
Carnegie Mellon University,
Pennsylvania, USA
Experience He is having a work experience | He has an illustrious career

spanning more than three
decades entailing both line
and HR functions. After
initial exposure to working
in Operation & Maintenance,
he took a leap in his career
and switched to the core HR
function in 1997. He looked
after various facets of HR
and subsequently moved on
to become the Head of HR of
Koldam, the first hydro
project of NTPC. He had
been Head of HR at various
projects of NTPC such as
NSPCL-Bhilai, Sipat, and
Tanda for about 13 years. He
had a short stint as Regional
Head of HR of Eastern
Region-II.  before  being
appointed to the post of
Director (HR) at NTPC.

P




Shareholding Nil Nil
in the company
Memberships/ | Audit Committee: Energy | Audit Committee: Energy
Chairmanship Efficiency Services Ltd. Efficiency Services Ltd.
of committees Stakeholders Relationship
across all | Stakeholders Relationship | Committee: NIL
public Committee: Energy Efficiency
companies® Services Ltd.
Number of [4/21 el
Board
Meetings held
and attended
during the year
Relationship NA INA
with other
Directors,
Managers or
KMP
Other 1. Power Grid Corporation of [1. NTPC Limited
Directorships India Limited P, NTPC -SAIL Power
2. POWERGRID Energy Company Limited
Services Limited 3. Green Valley Renewable
3. Cross Border Power Energy Limited
Transmission Company (4. Aravali Power Company
Limited Private Limited
4. Butwal-Gorakhpur Cross pB. NTPC  Electric  Supply
Border Power Transmission Company Limited
Limited 6. NTPC  Vidyut Vyapar
5. Convergence Energy Nigam Limited
Services Limited 7. Utility Powertech Limited
6. POWERGRID Teleservices 8. Convergence Energy

Limited

7. Khavda RE Transmission
Limited

3. KPS3 Transmission. Limited

O. Bhadla Sikar Transmission
Limited

Services Limited

WN'




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

(A JV of PSUs under the Ministry of Power)
Registered Office: NFL Building, 5t & 6t Floor, Core — 11, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
CIN: -J40200DL.2009PLC196789

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members,
Energy Efficiency Services Limited
New Delhi

Your Directors are pleased to present the 14t Directors’ Report on the business and operations
of the company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended on
31st March 2023.

Financial Performance
The highlights of the financial performance of the Company for the financial year 2022-23
together with the comparative position of the previous financial year are given as under:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March 2022*
Paid-up Share capital 1,39,082.00 1,39,082.00
Total Revenue (including Other Income) 1_,67,746.05 1,61,462.87
Profit Before Depreciation & Taxes 35,288.38 43,723.44
Less: Depreciation 71,387.04 65,441.85
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (36,098.66) (21,718.41)
Less: Prior Period Adjustments (Net} 0 0
Less: Provision for Taxation

-Current Year 199.66 207.93
-Farlier years - Vo
-Deferred Tax credit (8,527.25) {6,666.15)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (27,771.07) (15,332.91)
Add : Other comprehensive income / {expense) 40.05 (91.12)
Total Comprehensive income for the Xear- (27,731.02) (15,424.03)

* Restated

Revenue from operations for the financial year 2022-23 is 21,61,748.21 lakhs and total revenue
for the period is #1,67,746.05 lakhs which is approx. 3.89% higher than the previous year.
Profit/ (loss) after tax of the Company during the period is 7(27,771.07) lakhs (81.12% Lower}
against ¥(15,332.91) lakhs in the previous year.

Consolidated financial statements

The Company has various subsidiaries and Joint Venture Companies. The Consolidated
Turnover of the group is %2,38,549.73 lakhs for the financial year 2022-23 as against
2,24,496 31 lakhs of the previous financial year. The Consolidated Profit/ (Loss) after tax of
the group is 7(30,985.62) lakhs for the financial year 2022-23 as against 3(17,316.43) lakhs of
the previous financial year. The Company adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS)
wef April 1, 2016, and accordingly, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the relevant rules issued thereunder read with the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (‘the Listing
Regulations’) and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

'



ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

(A ]V of PSUs under the Ministry of Power)
Registered Office: NFL Building, 5t & 6t Floor, Core 111, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
CIN; -U40200D],.2009PLC196789

1.1 Reserves and Dividend
No amount was transferred to the free reserves of the company and no dividend was declared.

1.2 Net Worth and Earnings per Share
As on 31st March 2023, Your Company’s net worth was 298,093.63 lakhs (including DRR) as
against 1,25,824.65 lakhs in the previous year. Earnings per Share of the Company for the
year ended 31+ March 2023 stands at (32.00) in comparison to (¥1.26) for the financial year
ended 31st March 2022.

1.3 Resource Mobilization
The Company availed long-term and short-term Ioans from various Banks, Multilateral and
Bilateral funding agencies.

During the financial year 2022-23, the company has raised forei gn long-term loans amounting
t0 %29,789.10 lakhs from the Asian Development Bank (ADB) & International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) and domestic long-term loans amounting
to *30,000.00 lakhs from various Domestic Banks. As on 31st March, 2023, the total amount
outstanding in respect of Foreign Long Term Borrowings is 23,40,734.35 lakhs and in respect
of Domestic Long Term Borrowings is 21,55,778.96 lakhs, Additionally, EESL issued Secured
/ Unsecured, Redeemable, Taxable, Non - Non-Cumulative, Non - Non-Convertible Bonds
which are listed on BSE Limited. As on 31t March, 2023, the value of outstanding
Bonds is 225,000 lakhs. Further, as on 31st March, 2023, the Company has outstanding Short
Term Loans (fund based) amounting to 21,71,599.62 lakhs (fund based).

1.4 Credit Rating
The credit rating of the company has been detailed in the Corporate Governance Report
forming part of this report.

1.5 Change in Capital Structure & Board Structure: -

a) During the Financial year 2022-23, the promoters of the Company executed Supplementary
Agreement No. 8 to amend the provisions regarding the Board Structure of the company
in the Joint Venture and supplementary agreement-7 of the company. Consequently, the
Articles of Association of the company were also modified. As on the date of this report,
there are five (5) directors on the Board duly nominated by NTPC and Power Grid (two
each} and Ministry of Power, Government of India (one). The Company has a professional
management team headed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). The CEO is responsible to
the Board of Directors for ensuring the efficient functioning of the company, achieving
corporate objectives, and meeting performance parameters of the company and its group

companies,
b) As on 31ST March 2023, the shareholding pattern of the company was as follows:
S. Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % of
Held @310 | holding
each

| NTPC Limited and its Nominee | 463610000 | 33334

REC Limited 21,81,00,000 | 15.681

Power Finance Corporation Limited and its 24,55,00,000 | 17.651
Nominee

Power Grid Corporation of India T.imited and its 46,36,10,000
Nominee

Total | 1,390,820,000

¥




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

(A JV of PSUs under the Ministry of Power)
Registered Office: NFL Building, 5th & 6% Floor, Core - III, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
CIN: -U40200DL2009PLC196789

¢} During the financial year 2022 - 23, The Board of Directors in their 127% Board Meeting held
on 10" May 2023 issued and offered equity shares amounting to 349,700 lakhs to all existing
shareholders on a rights basis in the proportion of their shareholding. PGCIL and NTPC
subscribed to the offer, while Power Finance Corporation Limited and REC Limited declined
their offers. Consequently, equity shares amounting to ¥33,133.572 lakhs were allotted to
NTPC and PGCIL on 234 May 2023 and unsubscribed equity shares amounting to 316,566.428
lakhs were further subscribed by NTPC and PGCIL in equal proportion on 231 June 2023, As
on the date of this report, the shareholding pattern of the company was as follows:

[} 5 0 ]

NTPC LIMITED 71,21,09,832 37.721278
POWER GRID CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED 71,21,09,832 37.721278
POWER FINANCE CORPORATION LTD 24,54,99,832 13.004409
REC LIMITED 21,81,00,000 11.553008
ARUN KUMAR 168 0.000009
DILIP NAGESH ROZEKAR 168 0.000009
PRAVEEN KUMAR SINGH 168 0.000009

2. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
Project wise status of EESL’s programs as on 31.03.2023 is as follows:

2.1 Street Lighting National Program (SLNP}):

s Hon'ble Prime Minister, on 5th January, 2015 launched Street Lighting National
Program (SLNP) to replace conventional street lights with smart and energy efficient
LED street lights across India. EESL being the executing agency for SLNP is
implementing LED Street lighting projects in Urban Local Bodies (ULB) and Gram
Panchayats (GP?) with the objective to promote the use of efficient lighting in public
spaces of both urban and rural areas. EESL offers three business models to its client viz.
Supply, Supply + Opex and ESCO model for implementation of Street Lighting
Program. The business models are prepared considering operational requirements of
clients as well as payment security mechanisim to ensure timely payment of EESL dues.

« EESL has installed 4.12 lakh LED streetlights in the FY22-23. Cumulative achievement

as on 315t March 2023 is 1.29 Crore which has resulted in energy savings of 8.68 billion
kWh per year with avoided peak demand of 1446 MW and estimated emission reduction
of 598 million tCO2 per year.

¢ Irequent bulk procurement of LED Street Lights under SLNI” program has led to
substantial drop in their market prices leading to their enhanced adoption for public
lighting and the same is evident from the cumulative sale of over 6.6* Crore LED Street
Lights by the lighting industry till 2023.

2.2 Unnat Jyoti by Affordable LEDs for ALL (UJALA):
» Hon'ble Prime Minister, launched the Unnat Jyoti by Affordable LED for All (UJALA)

program on sth January 2015. Under UJALA scheme, LED bulbs, LED Tube lights and
Energy efficient fans are being provided to domestic consumers for replacement of

conventional and inefficient variant.
‘EESL
'



ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

{A ]V of PSUs under the Ministry of Power)
Registered Office: NFL Building, 5t & 6™ Floor, Core - I1I, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
CIN: -U40200DL2009PLC196789

e EESL has distributed 7.38 Lakh LED bulbs in FY22-23. Cumulative achievement as on
31st March 2023 is 36.86 Crore which has resulted in energy savings of 47.9 billion kWh
per year with avoided peak demand of 9586 MW and estimated emission reduction of
38.8 million tCO2 per year.

¢ EESL has distributed a total of 72.19 Lakh LED Tube Lights till 31 March 2023, resulting
in total energy savings of 316.2 million kWh per year, avoided peak demand of 144 MW
and estimated emission reduction of 259.3 kilo tCO2 per year.

e EESL has distributed a total of 23.59 Lakh Energy Efficient Fans till 31 March 2023,
resulting in total energy savings of 219.4 million kWh per year, avoided peak demand of
59 MW and estimated emission reduction of 179.9 kilo tCO2 per year.

e Lowering of LED bulb price, enhancement in production capacity of suppliers,
awareness among the consumers towards benefits of using LED bulbs due to UJALA
program, has enabled market creation of approx. 70* Crore LED Bulbs annually
leading to the sale of approx. 419* Crore LED bulbs by the Industry till March 2023.

*As per ELCOMA (Electric Lamp and Component Manufacturers Association of India)
data. Includes the numbers distributed/ installed by EESL.

23 GRAM UJALA:

e EESL, through its wholly owned subsidiary Convergence Energy Services Limited
(CESL), is aiming to increase penetration of LED bulbs in rural areas. The Gram UJALA
scheme was launched by Hon'ble MoSP (IC) on 19.03.2021 in Bihar for sale of LED bulbs
at Rs 10 to the rural consumers. The differential cost of bulbs shall be funded by Carbon
financing. The program has been executed as a pilot for rural areas in the states of Bihar,
Uttar Pradesh, Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh & Telangana and would pave the way for
more carbon finance-based programs for EESL.

¢ CESL has distributed 18.44 Lakh LED bulbs in FY22-23. As on date, 1 Crore LED bulbs
have been distributed under the Gram UJALA program. The program has resulted in
energy saving of 1413.9 MU of electricity per year, peak demand reduction of 388 MW
and 1.3 million tCO2 emission reduction per vear.

e 9.7 Lakh Verified Carbon Units (VCU) have been approved under Gram Ujala in the
financial year 2022-23, and issuance around 1.5 million VCU’s are expected during 2023-
24. These VCU'’s shall be liquidated in the market to get the associated revenue in CESL
books.

24 National E-Mobility Program:

e EESL, through its wholly owned subsidiary CESL is implementing e-Mobility
Program for faster adoption of electric vehicle (EV), long-term growth of EV industry
in India and to enable Indian EV manufacturers emerge as major global players. The
objective of the program is to reduce the country’s dependence on oil imports and
reduce vehicular emission through enhanced EV adoption by State Transport
Undertakings (STUs), Government Ministries/ departments fleet operators, transport
service providers, etc. by driving down costs through demand aggregation, and bulk

procurement. E-Mobility Program was launched on 7th March 2018 by Hon'ble
Minister of Power, New and Renewable Energy.

w EESL]



ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

(A JV of PSUs under the Ministry of Power)
Registered Gffice: NFL Building, 5% & 6% Floor, Core - I, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
CIN: -U40200DL2009PLC196789

¢ Under the E-4 Wheeler (E4W) Program CESL has deployed 174 nos. E4W in FY 22-23.

Cumulative deployment by EESL./CESL till 315t March 2023 is 1880 nos. of F4Ws.

» Under the E-Bus Program CESL, through Grand Challenge aggregated the demand for
5450 e-buses from 5 cities thus shifting its business model from capital intensive
procurement of e-buses to ‘Mobility as a Service’ (MaaS). The price discovered through
Grand Challenge tender was 31% lower than diesel buses and 18% lower than CNG
buses of similar type.

» Based on the success of Grand Challenge, MoRTH and NITI Aayog entrusted CESL to
scale up the “Grand Challenge (GC) for E-Bus Deployment” as the “National Electric
Bus Program (NEBP)” for 50,000 buses in a phased manner. As part of NEBP, CESL has
carried out two tenders as mentioned below:

» NEBP Tender-I
Demand of 6465 e-buses was aggregated from 6 participating states and tender was
issued on 21st Sep,2022. Tender was concluded in January 2023 and the price
discovered was 24% lower than diesel bus and 19% lower than CNG bus.

» NEBF Tender-1I
Demand of 4675 e-buses was aggregated from 3 participating states and tender was
issued in January, 2023 on Dry Lease Model.

2.5 Electric Vehicles Charging Infrastructure:

e EESL, through its wholly owned subsidiary CESL is developing FElectric Vehicle
Charging Infrastructure and has signed MoUs with multiple stakeholders across
municipalities, DISCOMs for locational assessment study and setting up of charging
infrastructures in their jurisdiction. India’s first public charging plaza at Chelmsford

Club, New Delhi was inaugurated on 20th July 2020. The charging plaza can charge 14
e-cars at the same time.

e In FY22-23, 4 nos. of Public Charging Stations (PCS) have been installed in NDMC
Delhi,SDMC Delhi, CMRL Chennai, Maha Metro Nagpur, Noida Authority and NKDA

Kolkata. As on 315t March 2023, EESL/CESL has installed 441 nos. of EV chargers out
of which 280 nos. are commissioned and the rest are in pre-commissioning stage.

2.6 Smart Meter National Program (SMNP):

o FESL with its JV IntelliSmart is carrying out Implementation of Smart Metering
Program to significantly improve the billing and collection efficiencies of Distribution
Companies (DISCOMs). Smart Meters will be the foundation for smart grid program
which will be crucial to meet challenges of the newly evolving energy mix and the target
of providing uninterrupted 24x7 power supply to every Indian.

» EESL has installed 9.01 Lakh smart meters in the FY 22-23. Cumulative achievement as

on 315t March 2023 is 33.64 lakh Smart meters.

2.7 Decentralized Solar Power Plant Program:

s EESL has initiated a first of its kind large scale program wherein existing agricultural
feeders are being solarized via implementation of decentralized solar power plants at
vacant/un-used lands at DISCOM substations.

e EESL has installed 16.61 MW of Decentralized Solar Power Plant in FY 22-23.
Cumulative achievement, as on 315t March 2023 is 177 MW/206 MWp. The green
energy initiative has helped in reducing more than 500 Million Kg (approximately) of
CO; emissions.
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2.8 Agriculture Demand Side Management (AgDSM):
¢ EESL is implementing the Energy Efficient Pump Program to distribute BEE b-star
energy efficient agricultural pumps and ensures a minimum of 30% reduction in energy
consumption. The energy efficient pumps are aided with smart control panels which can
be remotely operated to enhance the ease of operation by the farmers.

¢ EESL has installed 1,205 energy efficient agricultural pumps in the states of Andhra
Pradesh and Uttar Pradesh in FY 2022-23. As on 31st March 2023, a total of 81,180
agricultural pumps have been installed.

2.9 Building Energy Efficiency Program (BEEP):
¢ EESL is implementing the Buildings Energy Efficiency Program to retrofit commercial
buildings in India into energy efficient complexes.

¢ EESL has retrofitted 1,120 buildings in FY22-23. Cumulative achievement as on 315t
March 2023 is 12,701 nos. ofbuildings.

2.10 Motor Replacement Program:
¢ Through a first of its kind effort at energy efficiency intervention in industries, EESL
aims to accelerate adoption of higher efficiency motors, specifically TE3 efficiency class
motors through innovative business model and awareness campaign. Under this
program EESL offers IE3 motors ranging from 1THP to 100 HP to the Indian Industries.
This program is advantageous for MSME as well as non-MSME industries. EESL is
offering Upfront/PMC and EQI/ESCO business modalities to the end users.

EESL has deployed a total of 5,280 IE3 motors in the industry till 31% March 2023,

2.11 Super-efficient AC program:

e EESL launched Super-efficient AC program in 2019 with an objective to advance the
penetration of high energy efficient and eco-friendly ACs at an affordable cost. Under
this program, EESL sells 1.5 TR (5.4 ISEER) rated ACs which have Zero Ozone depleting
factor (ODS) and GWP less than 700.

» EESL has supplied 3146 Nos. of SEAC {more than 5-star) to various Institutional and
retail customers till date. The program was introduced to retail customers and orders
can be placed on the website www eeslmart.in.

e Over 23,000 units of 5-star rated split air conditioners have also been supplied / installed
at various clients under the Building Energy Efficiency program.

2,12 International Programs/operations:

Global Environment Facility-5 (GEF-5): Promoting Market Transformation for Energy
Efficiency in Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME)

EESL. is implementing the prestigious EESL-UNIDO-MoMSME GEF-5 project in
association with Ministry of MSME, Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) and Small
Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI). The program is being implemented in 12
MSME clusters across India. 21 technologies have been successfully demonstrated across
the identified clusters out of 36 identified technologies. Additionally, EESL has conducted
800 surveys and 80 detailed energy audits in the MSME units. EESL has signed more than
63 energy performance agreements with the MSME units for the implementation of

energy-efficient technologies.
‘EESL
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Global Environment Facility-6 (GEF-6):

GEE-6 aims to expand and sustain investments in existing market sectors, diversify
markets, and scale up energy-efficient technologies. GEF supports EESL in the 'Creating
and Sustaining Markets for Energy Efficiency’' project, with UNEP and ADB as
implementing agencies. The project's funding is USD 453.1 million, including a GEF
grant of USD 18.85 million and co-financing of USD 434.2 million.

The project targets 60 million tons of CO: reduction by 2023 and 137.5 million GJ of
energy savings by 2032. It consists of three components:
1. Component-1: Expand and sustain investments in existing sectors:
Supports installation of energy-efficient street lights, domestic lights, 5-star ceiling
fans, and agricultural pumps.
Component-1 has achieved significant progress, surpassing GIIG emission
reduction targets by over 300%. Physical progress includes exceeding targets for
domestic lighting and street lighting, while ceiling fans and agricultural DSM are at
50% and 34% progress, respectively.
2. Component-2: Build market diversification:
Implements new business models for technologies like super-efficient ACs, electric
vehicles, public charging infrastructure, and energy-efficient motors.
Component-2 faced initial challenges but has identified technologies like super-
efficient ACs, IE3 motors, electric vehicles, and smart meters. Recommendations for
industrial and commercial energy efficiency improvements have been made.
3. Component-3: Replication and scaling up:
Develops a growth strategy based on lessons learned and aims for USD 300 million
in investments through innovative financing methods.

Through partial support of the project, activities in respect of Growth Strategy,
capacity building assessment and capacity building have been initiated and
completed. Regular development and upgradation of EESL Mart website was
carried out. Further, EESL organized a training on IPMVP protocol-based MRV
aspects in the month of January 2023.

3. INSTITUTIONAL STRENGTHENING

EESL is implementing the world's largest energy efficiency portfolio and thus institutional
strengthening is a continuous process driven from the highest level. In this endeavor, EESL
has been partering with leading consulting organizations like Mckinsey, E&Y, PwC,
KPMG for Business Plan preparation, technical assistance, Organizational restructuring,
Capacity building, Standardization of process, Project execution and monitoring, etc. To
effectively deal with the foreseeable challenges associated with its functions and to
consistently enhance the financial viability of its operations, EESL has been consistently
taking proactive measure for improvement of its systems and processes. Key process
improvements introduced / in-place for institutional strengthening are as follows:

e Systemic improvement in the Procurement Process involving gap identification,
standardization of processes, improved evaluation, enhanced participation, leveraging
technological measures for MIS and record retrieval, etc.

» Online Bill Tracking System (BTS) has been implemented to bring improved
transparency and efficiency in the "Procure to Pay Cycle" for vendors. It enables
seamless bill submission, processing and financial reporting with an interactive
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dashboard which is an integral part of the BTS. Validations built in at various stages of
BTS ensure accurate and fast processing of vendor’s invoices.

+ Risk Management committee is in place for evaluation and mitigation of risks
associated with the projects.

» Integrated Risk Management (IRM) framework has been established to develop risk
mitigation strategies and establish appropriate controls to minimize potential risks a
comprehensive, encompassing Operational, Project and Enterprise level risks. To
facilitate the day-to-day monitoring and review of identified risks, an IRM tool has been
developed which facilitates EESL's management in identifying risks and ensuring timely
mitigation before they become critical.

¢ Project Evaluation and Assessment Group (PE & A) is in place to assess the project
viability. '

« Corporate Monitoring Group (CMG) monitors the targets and performance of the
company at corporate level.

» Furthermore, EESL, by virtue of its association with various international financial
institutions/ Multilateral Development Banks (MDBs) World Bank, ADB, AfD, KfW, etc.
for financing and scaling up its Energy Efficiency programs, complies with the stringent
reporting requirements of these agencies.

4. OFFICIAL LANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION

Pursuant to Section 3(3) of the Official Language Act 1963, EESL offices follow the official
language policy of the Union. In the fiscal year 2022-23, the company made notable efforts to
promote the use of Hindi in day-to-day official tasks, aligning with the aforesaid policy. These
initiatives resulted in an average 2% progress in official language adoption. The company also
received a letter of appreciation from the Committee of Parliament on Official Language after
inspecting EESL's regional office in Patna, acknowledging the company's compliance with the
official language policy.

5. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
The focus of Human Resource Management is to build an enabling culture and ensure a
motivated workforce with required skill sets.

5.1.1 Manpower Strength
The total employee strength of the company is given as under:
~ Location 5 Number of employees
Regular | Fixed Consultants Third-
: Tenure Party
India 237 63 16 521
Foreign Posting 1 = -
Total 238 63 16 521

5.1.2 Industrial Relations

The thrust on participative culture and open communication channels continued during the
year. We share cordial relations with Employee Officers Association and there has been no
pending grievance with the association. The Industrial Relations Scenario has been peaceful
and harmonious and no man - days were lost during the year.
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5.1.3 Employee Welfare

In the fiscal year 2022-23, the company undertaken various welfare measures in addition to
Continuous welfare and employee engagement activities like Employee annual health
checkups and OPD facilities, Cashless health care facilities to the employees and their
dependent family members through empaneled hospitals PAN India, Group Insurance
scheme and Group Personal Accident Insurance scheme. To ensure long term financial
security, the company also has Superannuation Fund for the employees.

5.1.4 Disclosure under the ‘Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

In line with provisions of the “Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 an “Internal Complaints Committee” has been constituted
for redressal of complaints against sexual harassment of women employees. During the
financial year 2022-2023, the Company did not receive any complaints of sexual harassment.
Our organization emphasizes on providing a safe working environment for women and in all
the training programs, special stress is placed on gender sensitization,

5.1.5 Friendly policies for women's empowerment

EESL, being a relatively new public sector organization, has been very adaptive to the best
practices of the sector, while at the same time, introducing proactive policies to facilitate
women’s employment. The inclusion of women into its workforce has been one of the issues
that EESL wishes to address earnestly. EESL has always tried to provide an environment
favorable for women at work. Either having women on top managerial posts or having
women-friendly policies. On the other hand, third-party female employees are also significant
at the workmen level.

EESL has been working on the ‘Scaling Up Demand Side Energy Efficiency Sector Project’
with assistance from the Asian Development Bank. The project includes a Gender Action Plan
(GAP) with affirmative actions for enhancing the participation of women in the energy
efficiency sector as consumers and workforce. Besides, EESL is also a member of the ADB-
World Bank-led South Asia WePOWER Network in Energy and Power Sector that supports
women's participation in energy projects and institutions and promotes normative change
regarding women in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) education.
As a part of its commitments, EESL has been undertaking activities to encourage the human
capital development and economic empowerment of women and girls especially those from
under privileged backgrounds.

6. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVES

IT department continuously explores emerging technologies, evaluates their potential for
improving business processes, and recommends their adoption where applicable. By fulfilling
these responsibilities, the IT department contributes to EESL's growth, competitiveness, and
success in achieving its mission. During the financial year 2022-23, Following initiatives were
taken by IT:

6.1 SAP System- EESL successfully implemented the SAP-on-HANA-based ERP solution in 2017
with the primary goal of improving productivity, enhancing inventory management,
promoting quality, reducing material costs, optimizing human resources management, and
boosting profits. In accordance with government guidelines, the system incorporated various
provisions of taxation for GST, TCS, and TDS, ensuring compliance and providing complete
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visibility into financial information. Furthermore, the e-invoicing functionality was also
integrated into SAP to align with government norms.

6.2 SAP is widely utilized across the organization for various activities, and it serves as a valuable
source for business intelligence reports, including revenue, collection, outstanding, inventory,
and project costs. The comprehensive utilization of SAP has significantly contributed to
EESL's operational efficiency, financial management, and data-driven decision-making
processes.

6.3 IT Applications- The Enterprise level application is developed wherein multiple got
incorporated for various activities. Following are details of the new modules implemented for
process automation:

1. E-Begin: Bill Tracking Systern Module: The BTS module has been implemented at EESL
that facilitates a seamless process from bill submission to bill processing, providing
enhanced financial reporting capabilities. An interactive dashboard was developed to
display invoice statuses based on state, scheme, and department wise. To ensure accuracy
and efficiency, validations have been implemented at various stages to prevent incorrect
or invalid bill submissions, thereby accelerating the overall processing time. This
integration and validation mechanism ensures a streamlined and controlled bill-
processing workflow at EESL.

2. E-Begin: SCMIS -Contract Module: This module encompasses two significant activities
within EESL. Firstly, it handles the internal tendering process, which includes nomination
and management of committee members for project evaluation, as well as securing
internal approvals based on project requirements. Secondly, it facilitates bidders'
registration for ongoing tenders that are yet to be awarded through an open tendering
process. The module effectively manages data related to tenders, covering the entire
lifecycle from the initiation stage to the award stage. This comprehensive functionality
ensures efficient and transparent management of processes within EESL. 52348 /2023 /1T
1

3. E-Begin: CCMS Module: In alignment with the CCMS Gujarat Dashboard developed for
the SLNP Scheme, a similar CCMS Dashboard has been implemented for Uttar Pradesh.
This dashboard seamlessly integrates with EESL's backend portal and directly captures
electrical parameters from the vendor server in raw format. At EESL, the raw data is
processed, and relevant information is extracted to prepare State Wise CCMS dashboards.
The system also provides multiple report-generation capabilities for various
stakeholders. Moreover, vendors have been granted access to review and verify the Light
and CCMS Master State, as well as ULB-wise information, enhancing collaboration and
data accuracy in the Streetlight implementation & maintenance.

7. RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005 AND REDRESSAL OF PUBLIC GRIEVANCES

During the financial year 2022-23, nearly 160 Right to Information (RTI) requests were
received at EESL. The process of filing an RTI at EESL is easy and simple. Applicants can log
on to https:/ /rtionline.gov.in/ to file their RTI requests directly with EESL. This RTI MIS
portal is an efficient and responsive website for filing online applications. Also, the prescribed

! ‘EESL
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fee for filing can subsequently be paid on web portal electronic payment gateways. The
average time to conclude one RTT application at EESL is nearly 25 days, five days earlier than
the prescribed 30-day timeline,

Grievances are usually received through emails, regular posts, or the Department of
Administrative Reforms and Public Grievances’ highly responsive web portal operating
under the Centralized Public Grievance Redress and Monitoring System (CPGRAMS)
https:/ / pgportal.gov.in. In FY 2022-23, EESL resolved about 175 grievances received on the
CPGRAMS portal and through other channels.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the statement
containing the salient features of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures is given in Form AOC - 1 {Annexure - I). The detail of the
subsidiary/associate companies of EESL is as under:

EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited (EPAL)

EESL has a UK based subsidiary company, EESL. EnergyPro Assets Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “EPAL"} in which it holds 86.80% (PY 84.55%) Equity Shares. As on 31st March
2023, the paid - up share capital of EPAL was £41,182,100 (PY £41,182,100). During the
tinancial year 2022 - 23, EPAL has made a profit of £0.08 million as against the loss of £0.52
million in the FY 2021-22 as the business improves at Edina level.

List of companies under EPAL and name of the officers holding the position of director as on

31st March 2023 in EPAL and its subsidiaries are as under: -

a. EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited — > Vishal Kapoor, Shankar Gopal, Steven Fawkes, (Amit
Kumar Kaushik - up to 30.04.2022, Arun Kumar Mishra- up to 02.11.2022).

b.  Anesco Energy Services South Ltd —> Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto 30.04.2022, Amit
Kumar Bharadwaj (upto 29t August 2022), Nitin Wadhwa.

¢. Creighton Energy Limited —> Amit Kumar Kaushik - up to 30.04.2022, Amit Kumar
Bharadwaj (up to 29% August 2022), Nitin Wadhwa

d. EPAL Holdings Limited —> Vishal Kapoor, Steven Fawkes, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto
30.04.2022, Arun Kumar Mishra- upto 02.11.2022

e. Edina Acquisition Limited —> Vishal Kapoor, Steven Fawkes, Amit Kumar Kaushik ~
upto 30.04.2022, Arun Kumar Mishra- upto 02.11.2022.

f.  Edina Power Services Limited — > Vishal Kapoor, Shankar Gopal, Steven Fawkes, Hlugh
Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto 30.04.2022, Arun Kumar Mishra- upto

02.11.2022.

g. [Edina Limited —> Hugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto 30.04.2022, Nitin
Wadhwa

h. Edina UK Limited —> Hugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto 30.04.2022,
Nitin Wadhwa.

i.  Edina Australia Pty Limited—> Hugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto
30.04.2022, Julian Gyngell

j-  Armoura Holdings Limited —> Tlugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto
30.04.2022, Nitin Wadhwa

k. Stanbeck Limited —> Hugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik ~ upto 30.04.2022,
Nitin Wadhwa

I Edina Manufacturing Limited — > Hugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto

30.04.2022
o
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m. Edina Power Limited —> Hugh Kerr Richmond, Amit Kumar Kaushik - upto 30.04.2022,

Nitin Wadhwa

n. EPSL Trigeneration Private Ltd. —> Vishal Kapoor, Shankar Gopal, Venkatesh Dwivedsi,

Arun Kumar Mishra- upto 02.11.2022

Convergence Energy Services Limited (CESL)

CESL is a wholly owned subsidiary of EESL which was incorporated on 291 October, 2020 and
converted its status from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company on 9t
February 2021. CESL is incorporated inter-alia to demonstrate convergence in EESL’s
businesses (such as Electric Vehicles, Electric Charging Infrastructure and others) as well as
resource generation by monetization of carbon savings. As on 31st March 2023, the paid-up
share capital of CESL was INR 5,92,10,1000. During the financial year 2022 - 23, CESL has
made a profit of (315,90,18,717) as against the Profit of {(310,17,09,926}) in FY 2021-22.

NEESL Private Limited

NEESL (P) Limited is a Joint Venture company wherein EESL holds a 2.16% stake and has
invested ¥26,000/- for the purpose of supply, installation, operation and maintenance of
Public Street Lighting System in the state of Odisha on Public Private Partnership (PPP) basis.

Energy Efficiency Services Co. Ltd., Thailand

Energy Efficiency Services Co. Ltd., Thailand is a JV Company. The JV was established by
EESL along with M/s. Sun Leisure World Thailand on 10% October 2019 to tap the potential
market of Thailand. However, the plan couldn’t be implemented primarily due to the
pandemic-induced closure of international borders and change in JV partners’ priorities in a
post-pandemic business environment. EESL Board has approved the closure process of the
company.

Energy Efficiency Services LLC (UAE)

EESL Energy Solutions LLC is a JV in UAE incorporated in September 2020 wherein EESL
holds a 51% stake and has invested AED 87,000/- (approx. ¥17.40 lakhs) as seeding capital
during incorporation. EESL Board has approved the closure process of the company.

IntelliSmart Infrastructure Private Limited (IIPL})

IntelliSmart Infrastructure Private Limited is a Joint Venture Company of the National
Investment and Infrastructure Fund (NIIF) & EESL established to scale up the smart meter
projects. As on 31st March 2023, EESL holds 49% stake in the company amounting to ¥ 6,762
lakhs. During the financial year 2022-23, IIPL generated revenue from operations of INR
8,495 78 lakhs, incurred a loss Before Tax of INR 222.03 Lakhs, and suffered a Loss after Tax
of INR 206.26 Lakhs. The total comprehensive loss for the financial year is ¥ 201.14 lakhs.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TQ STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS
Information required to be furnished as per the Act and as per the Listing Regulations and
any amendments thereto are as under:

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Transactions covered under Section 177 and Section 188 form part of the notes
to the financial statements (Standalone) provided in the Annual Report.

*Edina Manufacturing Limited has been dissolved on 24 January 2023.
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10.2 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Act form part of the notes
to the Financial Statements (Standalone) provided in the Annual Report.

10.3 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
The information required as per Rule 5{2) & Rule 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is placed at Annexure ~ I1.

10.4 DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, hereby
confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

) they have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for
safeguarding assets of the Company, and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

10.5 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Management Discussion and Analysis report forms part of the report and is annexed at
Annexure - 1L

10,6 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the company in terms of Section 198 of the Act
enumerates the criteria for appointiment/re-appointment of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management on the basis of their integrity, qualification,
expertise and experience. The Policy also sets out the guiding principles for the remuneration
to be paid to the Directors, KMP and Senior Management. The Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company is available on our website (www.eeslindia.org).

10.7 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy of the Company is duly approved by the
Board of Directors and is available on our website (www.eeslindia.org).

10.8 VIGILANCE/WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY
The Company aims at bringing in transparency, objectivity and quality in the decision-making
process and hence to monitor the same, the Company has a well-defined Vigilance set up,
headed by Chief Vigilance Officer, consisting of GM-Vigilance and Vigilance Executives in
the Corporate Centre to deal with the various facets of Vigilance Mechanism. During the
financial year 2022 - 23, a total 17 nos. of complaints were received by the Vigilance
Department. Out of which, 15 nos. of complaints were examined and necessary action taken
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while the remaining 2 are under process. As a preventive vigilance measure, 2 surprise checks
were conducted and subsequently, System Improvements were suggested wherever found
necessary. Besides, Vigilance Awareness Week was observed for awareness of the employees.
During the year, 2 Preventive Vigilance Workshops were conducted at various places/CC in
which 176 employees participated

10.9 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

EESL has a CSR Policy in line with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and is available
at the link: https://eeslindia.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/EESL-CSR-Policy.pdf.
However, during the financial year 2022-23, the average profit before Tax for the last three
financial years was Rs. (6295.47) Lakhs hence it does not meet the criteria specified in Section
135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

1010 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Integrated Risk Management Framework at EESL, provides an enterprise-wide view i.e.,
from entity to operational level with a top-down and bottom-up approach, leveraging data
and technology, focusing on informed decision-making and culture of no surprise. The Board
of Directors has constituted a Risk Management Committee (RMC) to assist the Board in
fulfilling its corporate governance oversight responsibilities with regard to the identification,
evaluation, and mitigation of key internal and external business risks. The company is in
compliance with Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as amended) which has become applicable to the Company w.ef.
07.09.2021 and on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 2024, and on a mandatory basis
thereafter. The Risk Management Committee of the Board has been formulated as per the
resolution approved by the Board of Directors dated 29.12.2021. A comprehensive Integrated
Risk Management (IRM) Policy and a detailed risk assessment framework were presented to
the 1st Risk Management Committee of the Board on 31.03.2023.

10.11 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
Al EESL projects are focused either on the conservation of energy or on use of alternate & cleaner
sources of energy. The company has also emphasized on promotion of energy efficiency and
energy conservation within its premises. Some of the initiatives taken are as follows:

v

Censor-based lights have been installed in various areas and the Board Room in EESL
Corporate Office

All AGCs installed in office premises are BEE-5 star rated.

Usage of energy-efficient electronic appliances.

Support in the implementation of solar-based lights system by SCOPE.

Awareness of the usage of electricity

YV VYV

B) TECHNOLOGYABSORPTIONAND BENEFITS:
EESL is working with multiple organizations to develop new programs on energy-efficient
technologies through pilot projects. With the support of the Global Environment Facility,
EESL has identified 36 energy-efficient technologies under EESL UNIDO MoMSME GEF-5
project. A demonstration of 21 technologies has been completed under the project. These
technologies are cross-sector and sector-specific technologies comprising utility-based
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technologies in MSME clusters suitable for energy-efficient compressed air systems,
automation of existing processes and equipment, waste heat recovery etc. Additionally, EESL
has identified 9 innovative energy-efficient technologies for PAT industries under BEE
supported Demonstration of Energy Efficiency Project (DEEP). These technologies also
include technologies related to utility, low-grade and high-grade waste heat recovery,
industrial automation, etc.

10.12 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The details of foreign exchange earnings & outgo are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2023 (in%)  Year ended 31.03.2022 (in 3)
Expenditure in Foreign 80,51,39,781 39,76,10,564.25
CUII‘EIIC_y
Eaming in  Foreign 75,51,570 2,10,54,577.62
Exchange

10.13 DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERTAL PERSONNEL, BOARD OF DIRECTORS &
BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES
During the year, the company has appointed Chief Executive Officer, and Chief
Financial Officer as Key Managerial personnel. The details of Directors during the
period under the review and up to the date of this report, and Board Level Committees
form part of the Corporate Governance Report annexed to this report.

Re - appointment of Directors: -

In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Shri Ajay Tewari and Shri Aditya Dar shall retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re - re-appointment.

10.14 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed report on Corporate Governance as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is placed at Annexure - IV and forms part
of the Directors” Report.

10,15 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE: -
During the period under review, the Company did not have any Independent Directors
on its Board.

10.16 CODE OF CONDUCT:
EESL adopted NTPC’s code of conduct for its Directors and Senior Management
Personnel. This code is applicable to all the Board Members including Government
Nominees, Promoter Nominee(s) and the Senior Management Personnel of the
Company. A copy of the Code of Conduct is available at the website of the Company at
the web link: hitps:/ /eeslindia.org/wp-
content/uploads/2020/10/Code%200f %20Conduct%20-%20EESL.pdf.

For the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the Directors and Senior Management

Personnel have complied with the same with a view to enhancing ethical and
transparent processes in managing the affairs of the Company.

1
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Declaration as per para 18 of the Code of Conduct for its Directors and Senior
Management Personnel of the Company.

The members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023.

Sd/-
CEQO, EESL

New Delhi: 26t September 2023

10.17 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD
The company has Nominee Directors on its Board. The nominees of Promoter
Companies are nominated by the respective promoters and Government Nominee
Directors are appointed by the Ministry of Power (concerned administrative ministry).
The performance evaluation of the Directors of the Company is as laid down by the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

10.18 REPORTING UNDER PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR MICRO & SMALL
ENTERFPRISES (MSE) ORDER, 2012
The Government of India has notified the Public Procurement Policy on Micro & Small
Enterprises (MSEs) Order, 2012, and subsequent amendments to date. In terms of the
said policy, the following are the required details:

Summary of procurement in FY 2022-23
Description Amount (in INR)
Total procurement data by EESL corporate office in FY 2022-23 46,93,88,637.33
Total procurement in clusters in FY 2022-23 255,85,09,241.44
Total procurement by EESL in FY 2022-23 302,78,97,878.77
Total procurement from MSE by EESL in TY 2022-23 63,74,21,717.37
Percentage of procurement by MSE 0.2105
za'f:e value of amendments issued against already awarded LoAs has not been considered in the above procurement

10.19 ANNUAL RETURN:
A copy of the Annual Return of the company in terms of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)
of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, for the financial year 2022-23 will be available
on our website www.eeslindia.org.

10.20 STATUTORY AUDITOR
The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG), in exercise of powers conferred
under Section 139 of the Act had vide letter 30th August 2022 appointed M/sSP Chopra
& Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 000346N), New Delhi as Statutory Auditor
of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. The Statutory Auditor’s Report for the
financial year 2022-23 is annexed to the Financial Statements of the company provided
in the Annual Report.
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10.21 SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

1il.

M/s Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates, practicing Company Secretaries were
appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company to carry out Secretarial Audit for the
Financial Year 2022 - 23. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed at Annexure - V to
this report. The observations of the Secretarial Auditor are as under:

The Company did not have at least one-woman director on its Board as required under
section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 from June 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023.
Non-compliance/delayed compliance with respect to the audited financial results of the
Company for the period ended on 31st March 2022 under regulation 52(1) pertaining to
non-submission of annual financial results, regulation 52(4) pertaining to non-
disclosure of line items, regulation 54(2) pertaining to non-disclosure of extent and
nature of security created and muaintained with respect to secured listed NCDs,
regulation 52(7)/(7A} of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 pertaining to delay in
submission of a statement indicating the utilization of issue proceeds /material
deviation in the use of proceeds.

Non-compliance with the requirements of Regulation 50(2) for the quarter ended on Sep
2022 and Regulation 53(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the Financial year 2021-
22, and Regulation 60(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended Jan
2021,

Regarding the observation related to the late submission of disclosures under
Regulation 50(2), 60(2), and 54(2), we would like to inform you that based on the
clarification submitted to the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), the fine contemplated by
BSE for the late submission of these disclosures has been withdrawn or waived off. We
have taken diligent steps to rectify the situation, and the Company is committed to
ensuring timely compliance with all regulatory requirements in the future. Further, the
power to appoint Directors in EESL is vested with the promoter Companies. We have
initiated discussions and taken up the matter with the promoter Companies to ensure
that the necessary steps are taken in accordance with the applicable regulations/ Acts.

10.22 INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s KPMG Assurance and Consulting Services LLP were appointed as Internal
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2022 - 23.

10.23 MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS

The Company is not required to maintain the cost records as specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Act. Therefore, Cost Audit is not
applicable to the Company.

10.24 REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS BY COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA

(C&AG)
The comments of C&AG for both the standalone and consolidated financial statements
of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 are annexed at Annexure-

VI.
4
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10.25 DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUFPTCY CODE, 2016
Following are the cases in which EESL has filed applications to initiate the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP):

1. EESL Vs, A One Realtors Private Ltd.

EESL had floated a tender for the award of work of large-scale distribution of LED
Bulbs in the area of Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh and Uttar Pradesh. The work was
awarded to the Corporate Debtor by letters of award dated December 2, 2015, March
9, 2016 and January 1, 2016 issued by EESL. As per the terms of the letter of award
and contract, the money collected by the Corporate Debtor for the distribution of
LED bulbs was to be deposited into the bank account of EESL. Despite various
reminders/ notices sent by EESL to the Corporate Debtor, the Corporate Debtor
failed to deposit the outstanding amounts claimed (i.e. INR 8,71,03,050 (Rupees
Eight Crore Seventy-One Lakh Three Thousand and Fifty)). Due to the
aforementioned reasons, EESL filed the present petition under Section 9 of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. A-One Realtors during the pendency of the
aforementioned litigation filed Civil Suit before Delhi High Court for declaration
and recovery. EESL filed an Interlocutory Application on maintainability of suit and
under Section 8(1) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 seeking direction to
refer the aforesaid matter to arbitration as the agreement entered into between the
parties. The Hon'ble court vide order dated 31.03.2022 allowed the IA and appointed
Mr. Justice (Retd.) Jayant Nath, former judge of Delhi High Court as the sole
arbitrator to adjudicate the dispute between the parties.

2. Balaji Lifestyle Technologies Pvt. Ltd. Vs Excel Technovation Pvt. Ltd.

Balaji Lifestyle has filed an insolvency petition against Excel Technovation Pvt Ltd,
where EESL is not a privy or party to the litigation. However, EESL being one of the
claimants has filed its claims pursuant to “Claim Form B (being operational creditor)
under Regulation 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India Regulations
2016". Therefore, for the sake of clarity, EESL has not initiated the insolvency
proceedings against Excel Technovatio Pvt Ltd however has filed its claim to the
learned “Resolution Professional” Mr. Prashant Agarwal as appointed by Hon'ble
NCLT Jaipur.

3. Signify Innovations India 1td Vs Fon Electric Ltd And In the matter of Ritu
Rastogi, RP for EON Vs. EESL
Ms. Ritu Rastogi has been appointed as “Resolution Professional” by the Hon’ble
NCLT, Chandigarh pursuant to the petition filed by M/s. Signify Innovation Ltd
against M/s. Eon Electric. In this matter, Applications were filed by RP against EESL
for the release of BG in excess of 3%. 1A was also filed for declaring certain financial
transactions entered between the Corporate Debtor and EESL as null and void and
for direction for making contributions to such amount to the assets of the corporate
debtor However, EESL has maintained the stand that transactions which have been
alleged to be fraudulent are based on a written request made by the Corporate
Debtor through its authorized signatory vide various letters. Accordingly, all the
payments made cannot be said to be fraudulent and are a valid discharge of EESL’s
liability of the money payable under the applicable contract with the Corporate
Debtor. All such applications are pending.
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10.26 STATUTORY & OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial
year 2022 - 23,

b) The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, the prevention of and detection
of fraud and errors, the accuracy & completeness of the accounting records and the
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

¢) There was no revision in the financial statements or the Directors” Report during
the year.

d) The Company has not issued any stock options to the Directors or any employee of
the Company.

e) The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards as issued by
ICSL

f} During the financial year 2022 - 23, there was no failure to implement any
Corporate Action.

g} Till date, the company has not accepted any deposits, and therefore, no disclosure
is required relating to deposits under Chapter V of the Act.

h) No significant or material orders were passed during the period under review by
the Regulators /Courts / Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and the
Company’s Operations in the future.

i) Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, neither the Statutory Auditors
nor the Secretarial Auditor has reported any incident of fraud during the year under
review.

iy During the year, there was no one-time settlement with the Banks / Financial
Institutions.

k) The Consolidated Financial Statements are also being presented in addition to the
Standalone Financial Statements of the company.

) Any other material event having an impact on the affairs of the company:

There has been a significant increase in the atirition rate in the company. In FY 22-
23, the attrition was 5.81% amongst regular employees whereas amongst fixed-term
employees, it was 36.23%.

10.27 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
There are the following material commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred during the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023:

o IntelliSmart Infrastructure Private Limited is a Joint Venture Company of the
National Investment and Infrastructure Fund (NIIF) & EESL established to scale up
the smart meter projects. As on 31st March 2023, EESL holds 49% stake in the
company amounting to ¥ 6,762 lakhs. [IPL secured a contract for the deployment of
a total of 167 lakh smart meters. Towards this, EESL Board has given its approval
for an equity investment of approximately INR 1,254 Crores. This planned
investment is a crucial component of the company's annual capital expenditure
plan and is sourced from the promoters on an annual basis.

: B Eese
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Annexure —I1

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration nnder Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014.
S. | Name & ature of | Remunera Qualification [Date of Age ast Fumber Ifa
N. | Designation [Employme | tion Commencem | (DOB) Employmentof Equity| relative
nt Received ent of Shares | of any
{whether | (%In Employment held in | Director
contractual| Lacs) the or
or Compan | Manager,
otherwise) v name of
such
Director
or
Manager;
1, | BHAWANIJEET [Permanent | 56,77,329 [Bachelor of 01.07.2019  [20.09.1963) NTPC Nil NA
SINGH, A1 [Technology Limited
EXECUTIVE B.Tech.) &
DIRECTOR Master Of
Business
Administration
MBA}
2. | SHANKAR Permanent | 54,07,925 | B.Com (Hons), 08.06.2016  {(08.07.1967) Power Grid [Nil NA
GOPAL {(GROUP .65 C.W.A (ICWAD Corporation
EXECUTIVE of India
DIRECTOR - Limited
| COMMERCIAL)
3. | ABHISHEK Permanent | 51,87,242 | Bachelor Of [12.03.2020 28.01.1973) Balmer Nil NA
AGARWAL, .84 Engineering Lawrie & Co,
CHIEF GENERAL, (B.E.) & M.S i.td
MANAGER (Software
Systems)
4. | KUMAR Permanent | 48,53,651.9 | BACHELORS INil NA
SAURABH., 4 OF TATA
ADDL. GENERAL TECHNOLOGY| CONSULTA
MANAGER (ELECTRICAL #0220l P8OB.I979 iy
ENGINEERING SERVICES
)
5. iﬁéﬁg\ff{AL Permanent ;16,0::,238.7 CHARTERED RPG Nil NA
GENERAL ACCOUNTAN 09.01.2014  07.07.1968 |RAYCHEM
[ (CA) LIMITED
MANAGER
6. | SAVITRI SINGH [Permanent | 43.09.123.2 | BACHELOR crECTRICT NI INA
GENERAL OF Ty
MANAGER ENGINEERIN DEPARTME
G i K INT,
(ELECTRICA 30.12.2016  [30.10.1969 VTOYUT
L BHAWAN,
ENGINEERIN pR Dt Y
G) 52 NICOBAR
7. | TARUN TAYAL, Permanent | 41,14,822.0 MASTER OF 07.11.2013 [31.08.1978 |AMERIPRI Nil NA
GENERAL 4 BUSINESS SE
MANAGER ADMINISTRA FINANCIA
TION (MBA) L INDIA
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8. | PANKAJ Permanent | 40,69,441.2 MASTER OF 08.04.2015 126.12.1976 BTECON Nil INA
MOHAN, BUSINESS
GENERAL ADMINISTRA
MANAGER [TION (MBA)
9. | ARUN MEHTA, Permanent | 40,34,143.5 BACHELOR  P23.06.2022 [1.06.1964 NTPC Nl INA
GENERAL 6 OF
MANAGER ENGINEERIN
G
ELECTRICA
L
ENGINEERIN
5)
10 | TATHAGAT Permanent | 39,72,087.6 PGD IN TATA INil INA
CHATURVEDI, 7 BUSINESS
GENERAL MANAGEME 19,12.2018 [E1.04.1976 B%YER
MANAGER INT (PGDBM)
Note:

a. Remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

b. The Remuneration for the purpose of above table is defined as Salary Cost of the Company which excludes variable Performance
related pay.

c. In terms of the provisions of Rule 5(2) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, no
employee of the Company employed throughout the year who was in receipt of remuneration of Rupees one crore and two [acs or more
in a year. Further, during the year under review, there was no employee of the Company employed for a part of year who was in receipt
of remuneration of rupees eight lacs and fifty thousand or more per month.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Energy Efficiency Services Limited

W Sl
irector Director
DIN: 08079013 DIN: 09632316

Date: 29/09/2023
Place: New Delhi
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Management Discussion and Analysis
1. Economic Overview and Industry Outlook

The global economy appears to be gradually recovering from the powerful blows of the COVID pandemic and of
Russia-Ukraine war, Supply-chain disruptions are unwinding, while the dislocations to energy and food markets
caused by the war are receding. In its latest forecast, IMF has projected that the global growth will bottom out
at 2.8 percent this year before rising modestly to 3.0 percent in 2024. Notably, emerging market and developing
economies, particularly China and India are the main drivers of the global growth.

In India, the economy has shown resilience and regained momentum after the disruptions caused by the COVID-
19 pandemic. The growth in real GDP of the Indian economy is estimated at 7%* during 2022-23. Going forward,
the Indian economy is positioned to make speedy recovery across sectors and is poised to return to the pre-
pandemic growth trajectory in FY24 with an estimated robust expansion of 6 — 6.8%* in FY 2023-2024. The
government's focus on economic recovery and infrastructure development with enhanced focus on
sustainability initiatives provides a conducive environment for EESL's operations and expansion plans.

As governments worldwide commit to net-zero targets and implement policies to transition to clean energy, the
energy efficiency sector is poised for substantial growth and transformation in the coming years. The World
Energy Outlook (WEQ) 2022 states that although policy and technology changes since the Paris Agreement in
2015 have reduced the projected temperature rise, but there’s still a long way to go to cap global warming at
1.5°C, implying that emissions reduction from existing end-uses is as important as decarbonization of new
infrastructure. Energy efficiency thus holds major potential for meeting the climate goals in reducing emissions
from existing as well as upcoming energy infrastructure. Today’s high energy prices are further underscoring
the benefits of greater energy efficiency and are prompting behavioral and technology changes to reduce energy
use.

Keeping pace with meeting its increasing energy demand, India also aims to deliver its low carbon ambitions
and targets, including the net-zero emissions target by 2070. The country is making significant progress towards
meeting its emissions reductions targets under the Paris Agreement and fulfilling its agenda of a low carbon
development. As of May 2023, Renewable energy sources, including large hydropower and nuclear power, have
a combined installed capacity of 179 GW™**,. Renewable sources of energy such as wind and solar PV continued
with their rapid growth and electric vehicles set new sales records in the financial year 2022-23 proving that the
new energy economy, post the two Covid years, will be more electrified, efficient, interconnected, and clean.
Clean energy technology has become a major new area for investment and employment — and a dynamic arena
for international collaboration and competition.

* Economic Survey 2022-23
** Ministry of Power website

2. Key developments and Business Outlook

Key developments in the country:

With clarity on the strategy towards effective transformation of the country’s energy future, the Government
has taken several steps with potential to have far reaching consequences.

Long-Term Low Emission Development Strategy (LT-LEDS): In November 2022, India submitted its Long-Term
Low Emission Development Strategy (LT-LEDS) to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change
{UNFCCC}, during the 27th Conference of Parties (COP27). The seven core elements of India’s LT-LEDS are:

1. Low carbon development of electricity systems consistent with development
2. Develop an integrated, efficient, inclusive low-carbon transport system



3. Promote adaptation in urban design, energy and material-efficiency in buildings, and sustainable
urbanization

4. Promote economy-wide decoupling of growth from emissions and development of an efficient,
innovative low-emission industrial system

5. CO2 removal and related engineering solutions

6. Enhancing Forest and vegetation cover consistent with socio-economic and ecclogical considerations

7. Economic and financial aspects of low-carbon development

Establishment of Carbon Credit Trading Market in India: Pursuant to the Energy Conservation {Amendment)
Act, 2022 notified in December 2022, the Ministry of Power (MoP) has released the draft Carbon Credit Trading
Scheme (CCTS), which aims to establish a framework for the Indian carbon market for both voluntary trading
and compliance.

The introduction of a carbon credit market in the country will be a big step towards achieving the country’s
greenhouse gas reduction targets. As per industry estimates, the annual demand for voluntary carbon credits
globally is expected to reach around 1.5 gigatonnes, with India contributing around 200 million tonnes by 2030
{Source: Powerline, May15, 2023). A carbon credit market will go a long way towards incentivising actions for
emissions reduction, leading to increased investments in clean energy and energy efficiency. A robust anc
efficient market for carbon credits in the country would help EESL to further bring down the cost of energy
efficient technologies and make them affordable for consumers.

Sovereign Green Bond Framework: To significantly reduce the carbon intensity of the economy, the Union
Budget 2022-23 announced the issue of Sovereign Green Bonds (SGB) for mobilizing resources for green
infrastructure. Proceeds of the SGB will be deployed in public sector projects which help in reducing the carbon
intensity of the economy. Pursuant to the above, Sovereign Green Bond Framework was issued which sets for
the obligation of the Government of India as a Green Bond issuer and lays down the terms for classification of
‘Green Project’ for which the proceeds of SGB can be utilized.

Time of Day (ToD) Tariff, net metering and vehicle-to-grid {V2G) option: Deploying smart energy meters with
net metering and vehicle-to-grid (V2G) options in the country has the potential to revolutionize the energy
sector, reduce carbon emissions, and pramote sustainability by allowing electric vehicles to act as a storage
device for renewable energy. The EVs can receive power from the grid and return power back to the grid
depending upon ToD tariff structure thus bringing monetary benefits to the EV owner.

In this direction the Government has introduced two changes to the prevailing power tariff system, through ar
amendment ta the Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020. The changes are: the introduction of the Time
of Day (ToD) Tariff, and the rationalization of smart metering provisions. ToD tariff would be applicable for
Commercial and Industrial consumers from 1st April 2024 while for domestic consumers except agricultural
consumers, it will come into effect from 1st April 2025. Time of Day tariff shall be made effective for consumers
after installation of smart meters.

Energy Transitions Working Group (ETWG) meetings under India’s G20 presidency: As part of its various
measures to encourage energy transition for industries at the global level, the Energy Transitions Warking Group
(ETWG) meetings are being held under India’s G20 presidency to focus on accelerating efforts on adoption of
super-efficient appliances and their future deployments through appropriate incentives. India has emphasised
on the importance of carbon pricing in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and urged G-20 countries to explore
options for implementing carbon pricing mechanisms. India is encouraging the member countries to increase
their investments in clean energy technologies, including solar, wind, and energy storage. It has also highlighted
the importance of improving access to finance for clean energy projects.



Business Qutloock and key initiatives

Energy efficiency is a key driver in achieving energy access at affordable prices, improved energy security,
greater sustainability, and economic growth. It has been estimated that more than 100 GW additional coal
capacity can be avoided in India until 2047 through energy efficiency measures. Further, Bureau of Energy
Efficiency’s (BEE), through its strategy plan UNATEE (Unlocking National Energy Efficiency Potential), has laid
the framework and implementation strategy from short and medium to long term scenarios by establishing
linkages between ‘energy demand scenarios’ and ‘energy efficiency opportunities’. It elucidates total energy
efficiency investment potential of 8.4 lakh crore by 2031 and energy saving potential of 1010 TWh. BEE studies
have estimated energy saving potential to be 10.1 Mtoe in residential, 12.7 Mtoe in commercial and 40.2 Mtoe
in industrial sector by 2030.

EESL, setup as a Super ESCQ, is already implementing the world’s largest non-subsidized energy efficiency
portfolio across sectors like lighting, buildings, e-mobility, EV charging infrastructure, smart metering, solar,
industrial energy efficiency and efficient agriculture pumping at a scale which no other organization has been
able to achieve and thus, is naturally poised to take up large scale energy efficiency project implementation of
new and emerging technologies, which is the need of the hour. The enormous cost reduction achieved through
‘Demand aggregation & Bulk procurement’ strategy adopted by EESL has helped in making the cutting-edge
energy efficient technologies affordable for consumers without any subsidy from the Government. With the
renewed emphasis and urgency all around for implementation of energy efficiency projects, EESL is well placed
to expand its business portfolio.

Further, {EA in its World Energy Outlook-2022 has emphasized that demand for cooling needs to be the focus
area for energy efficiency interventions, as it is poised to be the second-largest contributor to the overall rise in
global electricity demand over the coming decades (after EVs) particularly in emerging and developing
economies. EESL's expertise and offerings in the field of cooling solutions and air-conditioning align perfectly
with the projected market requirements and enable it to leverage the growing market demand for expanding
its portfolio and business.

Furthermore, the concept of Energy-as-a-Service (Eaa$) is gaining traction globally. EaaS models offer end-to-
end solutions, including energy efficiency upgrades, renewable energy installations, and demand response
programs, thereby providing customers with comprehensive energy management services. EESL's expertise in
implementing such models positions it as a leader in the emerging EaaS market, enabling the company to
capture a significant share of this growing sector.

With proven track record in unlocking the energy saving potential coupled with the enabling environment being
created by the various measures taken by the Government in the last few years has positioned EESL favorably
to be the catalyst for India’s Net-Zero transition. The impact-driven business models of EESL will directly
contribute to decoupling of India’s economic growth from greenhouse gas emissions.

Riding on the success and learnings of the previous years, EESL would be looking to adopt the best practices for
its new programs. Also, based on the experience gained from the earlier projects and from the challenges faced
during previous years, new approaches have been designed to make the processes robust to strengthen and
expand its existing programs like UJALA, BLDC Fans, Decentralized Solar Plants and Industrial Energy efficiency
while at the same time foraying into new business areas like Induction Cook Stove, Dynamic Demand Response
{DDR), Energy Portfolio Management, etc.



Key initiatives taken by the company during the year are mentioned below:

 Expansion of Asset Light Business: In order to avoid getting over-leveraged and to keep the company ‘Asset-
light’, it was decided that EESL will curtail its capital investments-based projects and gradually shift towards
trading, services or value-based operations. Keeping in line with above EESL has taken the following significant
measures for diversifying its business portfolio:

New Verticals are being developed with focus an trading and consultancy business:

- Trading/PMC: Solar Induction Cook Stove, LED inverter bulb
- Consultancy: Energy Portfolio management, Energy Audit, Demand response

Diversification of product offerings and business models:

- Scaling up inventory-less Trading is being done for UJALA, Solar Induction Cook Stove, NMRP
- PMC/Service model for Cooling as a service, e-Mobility as a Service

Diversification of client base:

- CSCs, SDAs, SRLM, E-commerce, Department of Posts, GeM, Channel partners are the New clients being added
for trading business

« Financial prudence and Receivables Management: To accelerate cash collection from the debtors in order to
mitigate the pressure of large receivables EESL continued to remain focused on realizing its outstanding
payment. Persistent engagement with the debtors along with active support of the Ministry of Power (Mo¥P}
was leveraged in conveying to the non-paying clients the criticality and the urgent need for liquidation of
outstanding dues of EESL. The Company also took stringent actions against defaulting customers and initiated
arbitration/adjudication action, wherever required, for expediting liquidation of receivables. Operational and
commercial issues hindering the release of payment were addressed and closed on priority.

Owing to the above efforts, the highest ever cash collection of Rs. 1727 crores was achieved in the financial year
2022 -23.

« Carbon finance-based projects {Gram UJALA and Solar-based induction cooking): In its endeavor to make the
energy efficient appliances more affordable for consumers, EESL remains in pursuit of possible avenues for
funding. Carbon financing is one such avenue being actively leveraged by EESL and CESL {a wholly owned
subsidiary of EESL) for more and more business models. CESL has already distributed more than 1 Crore LED
bulbs under Gram UJALA program, wherein LED bulbs were sold at Rs. 10 to the rural consumers and the
differential cost of bulbs is targeted to be funded through carbon financing. EESL is also exploring opportunities
for solar-based induction cooking solutions in both rural and urban households with partial funding through the
carbon credits. Initiative by the Government in creation of domestic market for trading of carbon credits will
further boost the efforts in this direction.

« Induction Cookstove program: As per National Family Health Survey -5 (2019:21), 41% of households use solid
fuel for cooking, predominantly in rural India. Several studies have indicated that biomass fuel burning for
cooking accounts for up to 40% of India’s air poliution and causes around 800,000 premature deaths annually
in India. It also contributes to deforestation, and Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions, particularly Black Carbon,
directly.

Access 1o clean cooking energy is vital to India’s energy transition pathway. Access to cooking energy is also a
gendered and inclusivity issue because women and girls, who often spend hours cooking and collecting fuels.
Clean cooking solutions promote women’s empowerment by increasing available time for education and
economic empowerment and thus contribute towards achieving Sustainable Development Goals 5 (gender
equality) and 7 (affordable and clean energy).



Recognising the benefits of clean cooking the Government of India seeks to promote cleaner cooking options.
After achieving almost 100% household electrification under the Saubhagya scheme, and a significant
augmentation of renewable energy capacity the next big leap in India’s cooking transition story will be centred
on electrification of coaking.

Induction cookstoves have the potential to change the paradigm and emerge as the ideal option for transition
towards energy efficient and clean cooking in india. Recognising the importance of induction cookstoves in
supporting the transition towards clean cooking, EESL has launched a scheme for clean cooking solution through
enhancing the adoption of Induction cook stove at a mass scale. A target of 20,000 Induction cook stove has
been kept for implementation in FY 2023-24 and riding on its strong track record of designing and implementing
user-centric energy efficiency programs a demand aggregation program is being designed by EESL to ramp up
the sale of affordable Induction cook stove in next few years.

¢ BLDC Fan Program: Fans are widely used appliance in both rural and urban spaces in the country, across all
income categories. Ceiling fans are almost a default fixture in urban homes. Due to their high usage, the total
annual energy consumed by fans is only marginally lower than that of room air conditioners in India. With a
significant portion of the population unable to afford air-conditioning in the next two decades, natural
ventilation and fan-assisted ventilation will continue to be relied upon for thermal comfort. Therefore, fans are
crucial appliance from an energy efficiency point of view and with this consideration, Bureau of Energy Efficiency
{BEE) brought Ceiling fans under the ambit of mandatory star labelling from January 1, 2023.

The ceiling fan market for 2020-21 was estimated at 44 million units, with a total stock of 410 million whife the
projected ceiling fan stock by 2037-38 is 700 million. Unfortunately, only a miniscule percentage of the ceiling
fans are energy efficient 5-star models. It is estimated that adoption of these energy-efficient fans could support
in reduction of energy consumption by almaost 15%, making them a game changer for achieving the country's
NDC targets.

Typically, ceiling fans contain single phase induction motors, consuming 70- 80 W and deliver air at 210-220 m3
/minute while a Brush-Less DC (BLDC} fan with improved blade design consumes around 30-35 W for air delivery
of 220-230 m3/minute. Considering the energy saving potential EESL has brought its focus back on energy
efficient fans and has set a target of selling one crore Energy Efficient fans in the country.

= Interventions for Carbon Neutral Ladakh: Carbon neutrality for Ladakh is the best possible development
vision that will protect and enable its fragile but unique landscape to flourish while ensuring that the amenities
and benefits of modernity reach its population. The idea of a Carbon-Neutral Ladakh was envisioned by Prime
Minister Narendra Modi and it aims at planning future developmental activities to minimise carbon emissions.
EESL is contributing in a big way to the Governments effort in making the UT of Ladakh carbon neutral through
one of its kind energy efficiency intervention projects mentioned below:

» Reliable Induction Cookstove (RCS-DC) 1 kW with battery

» Energy Efficient school package: 9 W LED bulbs and 20 W LED tube-light at 332 nos. of government
schools in rural areas

» 10,000 Nos. of 20 W LED Streetlights in urban areas of Leh & Kargil

» Heat pump-based energy efficient space heating solutions in small/medium size public buildings -
Office, Hospitals, etc.

» Supply and installation of Energy Management System {EMS) monitoring wall and Energy Audit in 10
public buildings



¢ Preparation of 5-Year Strategic Business Plan: In order to realign the company with the emerging market
requirements, a long term business plan was needed for getting a clear picture of long-term goals for the
company, so that a clear direction for the organization could be provided for enabling all stakeholders to align
their efforis towards a common purpose. A comprehensive long-term business plan also demonstrates the
company's commitment to its vision, strategies for growth, and potential returns on investment and thus is
essential for instilling confidence in Promoters and investors in the long-term prospects of the company befare
equity commitment by them.

EESL has on-boarded M/s. PWC to help it develop a 5-year Business plan which will provide a roadmap for
achieving the company's long term goals and will outline the strategies and actions required to reach those goals
over a period of next 5 years.

The activity will be completed in a phased manner with the development of the Business plan in first eight
months and the roll out support for next six months.

3. Glance at EESL Operations

With the confidence gained from the enormous success of its LED programs viz. UJALA and Street Light naticnal
Program {SLNP}, EESL has been working on a series of Energy Efficiency programs and emerging Technologier
and has focused on the deployment of Electric Vehicle, EV Charging Infrastructure, Smart Meters, Decentralized
Solar, Solar-based Induction cocking solutions and Energy Efficiency interventions in MSMESs {GEF-5) as well as
in industries.

M/s IntelliSmart {JV of EESL and NIIF) is working as the execution arm for Smart Meter projects. Smart metering
is among the measures proposed by Government of India under RDSS, a part of erstwhile IPDS and UDAY
schemes to improve the financial health of DISCOMs. The Smart Meters are 1o be installed in phases, aiming to
cover an entire consumer base of 250 million across the country.

M/s CESL (100% owned subsidiary of EESL} is presently focusing upon carbon finance projects (e.g., Gram UJALA)
as well as clean transportation through demand aggregation including bulk tendering for Electric vehicles. Its
focus is on optimizing assets, monetizing and stacking multiple values and using innovative financial structures
to deliver at scale.

A glimpse of segment-wise performance is as follows:

e Under UJALA scheme, LED bulbs, LED Tube lights and Energy efficient fans are being provided to consumers
for replacement of conventional and inefficient variant. Till 31st March 2023, EESL has completed the
distribution of over 36. 8 crore LED bulbs, 23.6 lakh Energy Efficient Fans and 72.2 lakh LED Tube lights.

» Under Street Light National Program, EESL has completed installation of 1.29 crore LED streetlights across
India.

» EESL along with its JV, IntelliSmart has established itself as the leading smart meter player in India with
implementation of more than 33.6 lakh meters under the Smart Metering Program. Further EESL is also
providing value added services to its customers by enabling its smart meters to function in prepaid mode.

e Decentralised Solar: A first of its kind large scale program wherein existing agricultural feeders are being
solarized through implementation of decentralized solar power plants at vacant/un-used lands near DISCOM
substations. Under Decentralized Solar Power Plant Program EESL has cammissioned cumulative capacity of
decentralized solar power plant of ~206 MWp/177 MW as on 31 March 2023.

e In its EV program, EESL (through CESL) has aggregated demand of over 1.5 lac E3Ws, deployed 1880 e-cars
and has successfully carried out tendering for more than 11,900 e-buses.



= Under Buildings Energy Efficiency Program (BEEP) to retrofit commercial buildings in India intc energy efficient
complexes, EESL has completed retrofitting work in 12,701 buildings.

¢ Under Agricultural Demand Side Management (AgDSM) program EESL distributes BEE 5-star energy efficient
agricultural pumps with smart control panels. Under AgDSM, EESL has installed 81,180 nos. of agricultural

pumps.
* Under Motor Replacement Program EESL has deployed/replaced 5,280 with IE3 motors.

4. EESL’s Strengths

EESL has developed in-house expertise in execution of energy efficiency, clean energy, and demand side
management projects. The team has expertise and knowledge in the areas of Lighting projects and has
developed expertise over time in the areas of Smart meter, EV, solar and Industrial efficiency projects. EESL has
technical and financial support from its strong institutional promoters and has demonstrated proven track
record of delivering impactful outcomes, building a strong brand and domain expertise.

During its operations, EESL has developed strong relationship with its core customer base — distribution utilities,
municipal utilities, MSMEs and Industries.

EESL has pioneered the demand aggregation and bulk procurement intervention thereby driving down the
prices of appliances/equipment in Lighting, Smart Meter as well as EV segments thus making them affordable
leading to their wider adoption.

EESL has access to economical financing options from multi and bilateral funding agencies which enables it in
delivering value and better returns to its customers.

EESL is one the very few organizations which has successfully executed large scale energy efficiency projects in
the country, e.g., UJALA, SLNP, Smart meters program, etc. EESL has also forayed in the Carbon finance market
through its programs like Gram UJALA (through its wholly owned subsidiary-CESL), solar-based induction
cookstove, etc. and is endeavoring to leverage this innovative financing for further reduction in cost of its energy
efficiency interventions.

5. EESL's Weaknesses

Rapid growth of EESL’s business few years back resulted in shifting of its entire focus towards scaling up its
operations to meet increased demand, such as expanding its workforce, establishing new infrastructure, and
optimizing supply chain management. The spurt in business growth has resulted in lack of mature processes and
systems in the organization. EESL faces considerable challenges in alignment of internal capacity, processes, and
procedures, which needs to be improved. Following are the key challenges currenily being faced by the
company:

Human Resource: EESL's line of business calls for continuously reinvention of its business every three to four
years with new product and client line. Given the above, the expertise requirement of EESL changes over a
period of time, which necessitates consistent training on latest energy efficient technologies, systems and
processes pertaining to new business, etc. for upgrading the skills of manpower to handle them. Lack of a
institutionalized training process has resulted in shortage of skilled and expert resources in the organization for
catering to the ever-changing business demand. Further, in recent years there has been an increase in exodus
of experienced manpower from EESL to various new entrants in the sector. This has further aggravated the
shortage of expertise within the organization much needed for spearheading its new programs.



Quality Control and Standardization: Nature of EESL’s business calls for ensuring consistent quality and
standardization across operations. However, a quality assurance set-up conforming to the best practices
followed in the industry is lacking and needs to be established for ensuring robust quality control processes for
supplies, monitoring service delivery and maintaining standards across multiple projects and locations.

Outstanding payments: There have been large outstanding dues from various government departments i.e.,
Urban local Bodies {ULBs} and Distribution Companies (DISCOMs} which are hampering the growth
opportunities and hindering EESL’s foray into new business areas.

Also, the current equity base is small to fuel EESL growth in future and leveraging in new strategic initiatives.
The Promoters have been infusing equity into the company from time to time as needed, but new innovative
funding sources are needed to fuel its ambitious growth targets.

6. Opportunities

EESL works under administrative control of Ministry of Power {(MoP) and has been leveraging its position to tap
government’s project pipeline as well as in getting its outstanding payments cleared by Government agencies.
Appreciating the fact that a healthy cash flow will facilitate EESL’s investment in new energy efficiency projects,
MoP has been proactively supporting EESL in liquidation of its outstanding payments through periodic reviews
of receivables as well as issuing necessary directions to states/ULBs to liquidate EESL dues within a stipulated
timeframe.

EESL has developed excellent working relationship with distribution utilities, MSMEs, industries, urban local
bodies and multi/hi-lateral funding agencies. With its sectoral experience of more than a decade, the company
has cultivated a keen understanding of regulations and policies related to energy efficiency and demand side
management. Its unparalleled success in large scale deployment of energy efficient appliance such as LED
lighting, fans, motors, and other equipment makes EESL a prirne contender to partner and implement projects
in future to achieve NDC goal of reducing energy intensity of GDP by 45% by 2030 compared to 2005 levels.

Leveraging on its strategic partnership and synergy with Bureau of Energy Efficiency, Ministry of new and
renewable energy, Ministry of Heavy Industries, NITI Aayog, etc. EESL is foraying into businesses like
Demonstration of Energy Efficiency Projects in PAT industry, Solar-based induction cookstove, etc. EESL can
work to tap huge market potential for energy efficiency interventions in industrial pumping, compressed air,
waste heat recovery, chillers, district cooling, etc. through a standard business model.

7. Qverseas Oppartunities

EESL has made significant progress by forming alliances with various government agencies and leading
technology providers with the goal of increasing shareholder value by replicating a successful business model in
energy efficiencies beyond the country’s borders.

Energy Efficiency Services Limited (EESL) has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MolU} with Indonesia-
Malaysia-Thailand Growth Triangie Joint Business Council {(IMT-GT JBC) Malaysia at India Energy Week {IEW) to
promote energy efficiency and sustainability in the region.

EESL has also partnered with Etihad Energy for technical support in street lighting and trigeneration (through
EDINA).

M/s Edina is also exploring business opportunities in the UAE market, where initial market research and
meetings with strategic clients have been conducted and has made significant progress. Natural gas pricing in
the UAE market is under control because it is produced locally rather than relying on imported LNG gas. It is
estimated that around 20-25% energy savings can be realised in UAE market, and this driver will also help to
reduce carbon emissions.



8. Threats, Risks and Concerns

Huge outstanding receivables are an inherent risk to EESL as it has been facing challenges on the financial front,
mainly due to significant delays in realization of its outstanding dues primarily from Government Departments.
Most of the clients are either Municipalities (70% by revenue) or DISCOMS {19% by revenue). These institutes
reeling under financial stress themselves, pass on their financial stress contagion to ail entities in their value
chain. EESL faces this problem more acutely, as these clients form 89% of EESL’s outstanding revenue. EESL’s
total outstanding dues stand at Rs 3779 Crore as on 31.03.2023.

Further, as EESL's ESCO services models are investment-led and constrained cash flows from the executed
projects hampers its capacity for investment into new business opportunities. Also, the cost of debt always
needs 1o be maintained at a sustainable ievel to ensure healthy returns for both EESL and their shareholders
however, major delays in realization of its payments is directly affecting the profitability of the company.

9. Internal Control System and their Adequacy

The Company maintains a system of Internal Control including suitable monitoring procedures to ensure
accurate and timely financial reporting of various transactions, efficiency of operations and compliance with
statutory laws, regulations, and Company policies. There has been a regular review and some areas of
improvement have been noticed. Integrated Management System (IMS) is being implemented in the company
to inculcate a culture of process driven outcomes.

To develop risk mitigation strategies and establish appropriate controls to minimize potential risks a
comprehensive Integrated Risk Management ({IRM} framework has been established, encompassing
Operational, Project and Enterprise level risks. To facilitate the day-to-day monitoring and review of identified
risks, an IRM tool has been developed which facilitates EESL's management in identifying risks and ensuring
timely mitigation before they become critical.

Systemic improvement has been brought about in the Procurement Process through gap identification,
standardization of processes, improved evaluation, enhanced participation, leveraging technological measures
for M1S and record retrieval, etc.

Suitable delegations of power and guidelines for proper accountability have been evolved for uniform
compliance. To ensure that adequate checks and balances are in place and internal control systems are in order,
regular and exhaustive Internal Audit are conducted by experienced firms of Chartered Accountants.

Further, EESL has already implemented an ERP system to complement the internal controls.
10. Material Developments in Human Resources/Industrial Relations

The Total manpower of the Company stands at 838 which includes 238 regular employees, 63 fixed term
employees, 16 consultants, 521 third party employees. With this talent pool bearing a unique mix of experienced
and fresh executives and staff, the project execution capabilities have been enhanced.

11. Financial Performance and business analysis

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company registered an increase of about 4% YoY in total income which
went up to Rs. 1677.5 crore from Rs. 1614.6 crore during the financial year 2021-22.

There was a increase in the loss before tax which was at Rs. 361 crore in 2022 — 23 in comparison to loss before
tax of Rs. 217.2 crore in 2021 —22. Net Loss (After Tax} of the Company in 2022 — 23 is Rs. 277.7 crore. Concerted
action for resolution of legacy issues adversely affecting the financial performance of the company along with
cost optimization measures and focus on building strong process-based systems have contributed to reduction
inlosses being incurred in the last two quarters. Combined loss in Q3 and Q4 is Rs. 104 crore which is a decrease
of 40% as compared to the combined loss of Rs.174 crores incurred in Q1 and Q2.



Net worth of the Company as on March 31, 2023, stands at Rs. 980.93 Crore.
12. Environmental Protection and Conservation

The projects executed by EESL till the end of last financial year i.e., 2022 — 23 have saved about 58 billion kwh
of energy per year, avoided peak demand of about 11.6 GW and resulted in reduction in CO2 emission of about
47 million tonnes annually.

Cautionary Note

Certain statements in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section may be forward looking and are stated as
required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual resulis, which could be different
from what the Management envisages in terms of future performance and outlook.
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Corporate Governance Report
(for the period ended on 31* March 2023)
(Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY
EESL has been practising Corporate Governance 1o ensure transparency in corporate affairs. The Corporate
Governance framework has been built on the Company’s value system, aimed at conducting business ethically,

efficiently and in a transparent manner.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1. Size and Composition of the Board

Annexure ~ IV

As the Articles of Association of the Company, the number of directors of the Company shall not be less than
four (4} and not more than six (6). The Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31,
20235 is as under:

S. Name of the Director Designation

No.

Ik Shri K. Sreckant Chairman & Non — Executive Nominee Director
2. Shri Ajay Tewari Government Nominee Director (Non — Executive)
S Shri R.K. Tyagi Non — Executive Nominee Director

4, Shri D.K. Patel Non — Executive Nominee Director

5. Shri Aditya Dar Non — Executive Nominee Director

During the financial year 2022-23 and upto the date of this report, the following changes took place in the
composition of Board of Directors of the Company:

1.

2

(9%

0

2.2. Board

Shri Ajay Tewari was appointed as Additional Director, designated as Government Nominee Director
w.e.[. 297 July 2022 in place of Shri Vivek Kumar Dewangan,
Shri Vivek Kumar Dewangan was appointed as Additional Director, designated as Government Nominee
Director (Ministry of Power) w.e.l. 23% December 2021. However, he ceased to be Director in the
Company w.e.f. 28% July 2022 due to a change in nomination.
Shri R.K. Tyagi was appointed as an Additional Director, designated as Nominee Director of PGCIL
w.e.f. 4™ Dec 2022 due to a change in nomination.
Shri Abhay Choudhary was appointed as Nominee Director of PGCIL w.e.f. 18% June 2022 (in place of
Smit. Seema Gupta). However, he ceased to be Director in the company w.e.f. 1% Dec 2022 due to a

change in nomination.

Smt. Seema Gupta was appointed as Nominee Director of PGCIL w.e.f, 6% September 2021 who ceased
to be Director in the company w.e.f. 319 May 2022 due to a change in nomination.
Shri C. K. Mondol was appointed as Nominee Director (NTPC Limited) w.e.f. 6% September 2021,
However, he ceased to be a Director in the company w.e.f. 31% Jan 2023 due to a change in nomination.
Shri D.K. Patel was appointed as Nominee Divector (N'TPC Limited) w.e.f. 10% Feb 2023,

Shri Arun Kumar Mishra was appointed Chief Executive Officer of EESL w.e.f. 5% October 2021 and
Whole Time Director in the company w.e.f. 7° October 2021, However, due to a change in the structure
of the Board of Directors of the company where the Chief Executive Officer was made a below Board —
level position, he ceased to be the Whole Time Director w.e.f. 27% July 2022, Shri Arun Kumar Mishra
ceased to be Chief Executive Officer of EESL w.e.f. 2% Nov 2022 &7 0 )

Shri Vishal Kapoar was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company w.e.f 2™ Nov 2022, [ P

Meetings

IN)

The Board Meetings of the Company are held either at the Registered Office of the Company located at New
Delhi or over video—onferencing in terms of the notifications issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, from

time to time.

Twenty-One (21) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year under review and the gap between
two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were held on 25" April 2022, 18%
June 2022, 26" June 2022, 28" June 2022 (adjourned to 4™ July 2022), 8 July 2022. 17 July 2022, 30 July
2022, 12% August 2022, 6™ Sep 2022, 19™ Sep 2022, 29" Sep 2022, 8% Oct 2022, 12% Oct 2022, 2% Nov 2022,
12 Nov 2022, 13" Dec 2022, 26% Dec 2022, 11" Jan 2023, 14% Feb 2023, 12" March 2023, 3 1% March 2023.
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.



2.3. Attendance record of Directors at Board meetings and last Anpual General Meeting and number of other
Directorships / Committee Memberships / Chairmanships
The table below shows the attendance of Directors in Board Meetings held during the FY 2022-23, their attendance at
the tast Annual General Meeting and number of other Directorships / Committee Memberships / Chairmanships as on

31% March 2025:

Name and
Designation
of the
Director

No. of
Board
Meetings
held
during

the tenure

No. of|
Board
Meetings
attended
during the
tenure

No. of other
Directorship
in other
Companies

Directorship
in Listed
Entity &
Category

No. of Committee
Membership in
Other Public
Companies®

Whether
attended
the Last
AGM
(29.09.2022)

As As
Chairman | Member

Shri K.
Sreekant,
Chairman &
Non -
Executive
Nominee
Director

21

21

Power Grid
Corporation
of India
Limited —
Chairman &
Managing
Director

YES

Shri
Kumar
Mishra, Chief
Executive
Officer &
Whole -
Time

Director

Arun

14

14

YES

Sari Vivek
Kumar
Dewangan,
Government
Nomtinee
Director (Non
— Executive)

Smt. Seema
Gupta, Non —
Executive
Nominee
Director

Shri Chandan
Kumar
Mondol, Non
— Executive
Nominee
Director

19

17

YES

Shri  Aditya
Dar, Non —
Executive
Nominee
Director

21

21

YES

Shri R. K.
Tyagi
Nominee
Director (Non
— Executive),
PGCIL

th

Power Grid
Corporation
of India
Limited -
Director
(Operations)




Shri DK. |3 2 8 NTPC - - - -
Patel Director

Nomineg (HR)

Dyirector (Non |

— Executive),

NTPC

Shri Ajay | 15 10 2 Power YES
Tewart Finance

Govt Corporation

Nominee Limited

Drirector (Non SIVN

— Executive), Limited

2.4.

2.5

*includes only Audit Committee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee in all public limited companies
excluding EESL and Membership includes Chairmanship.

1. NA indicates that the concerned person was not a Director in EESL on 315 March 2023,

2. None of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairperson of more
than 5 Committees across all the Public Limited Companies in which they are a Director as prescribed
under Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. Further, none of the Directors of the Company
{s inter-se related to other directors of the Company.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors
None of the non—executive directors of the company hold any shares or convertible instruments of EESL.

Core Competencies of Directors
The Board of Directors comprises qualified members with sectoral experience, various skills and competencies
that contribute in guiding the management in the efficient functioning of the Company. A Brief profile of the

directors ol the company is as under:

Shri K. Sreekant is the Chairman & Managing Birector of Power Grid Corporation of India Limited and the
Chairman of EESL. He is 2 CMA and holds PGDM (Finance) from Management Development Institute,
Gurgaon. He has over 34 years of experience in the power sector in the areas of long-term financial planning,
investment appraisals, formulation of capital budgets, resource mobilization from domestic and international
markets, corporate accounts, commercial. regulatory affairs and enterprise resource planning systems.

Shri Ajay Tewari is Additional Secretary, Ministry of Power, Government of India and Government Nominee
Director on the Board of EESL. He is an Indian Administrative Service Officer of 1993 Batch of Assam
Meghalaya Cadre and B. Tech (Electrical Engineer) from the Indian Institute of Technology — Kanpur also holds
PG Diploma m Financial Management from Indira Gandhi National Open University (IGNOU}, New Delhi. He
is presently looking afier Energy Conservation, Energy Transition, International Co-operation, Training &
Research and Perspective Planning of the Ministry of Power. Before joining the Central deputation in the
Ministry of Labour & Employment as Joint Secretary & Director General of Labour Welfare in the year 2018,
he worked in different capacities in the State of Assam and Meghalaya. He has a wide range of experience
working in Finance, Education, Housing & Urban Affairs. Sports. Youth Welfare, General Administration.
Revenue Administration, Disaster Management & Labour Welfare sectors.

Shri Aditya Dar is an Executive Director in NTPC Limited and a Nominee Director in EESL. He holds a B.Sc.
{Hons} degree and PGDM (Finance) from MDI, Gurgaon. He has over 32 years of experience in the areas of
investors® services, resource mobilization from domestic and international markets. long—term financial
planning, formulation of capital and O&M budgets, and regulatory affairs.2/¢

Shri D.K.Patel- is a Director (HR), NTPC and a Nominee Director in EESL. He graduated in Mechanical
Engineering from NIT, Rourkela and did his Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management (HR & Finance)
from MDI, Gurgaon. He has also received management and leadership training inputs from ESCP-EAP {Paris,
Berlin & Turin), Harvard Business School {LUSA), 1SB Hyderabad & XLRI Jamshedpur. He has an illustrious career
spanning over more than three decades entailing both line and HR functions.

Mr. Ravindra Kumar Tyagi is working as Director (Operations) at Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
(POWERGRID). He is having a work experience of over 33 years in Power Systems at various key positions in
premier CPSUs in power sector such as POWERGRID and NTPC. He has handled multi-disciplinary functions
in various business segments of POWERGRID like Asset Management, Engineering, Business Development
(domestic & international), Telecom, Load Despatch & Communication, NTAMC. Safety, DMS ete. He is an
Electrical Engineer from Punjab Engineering College (P.E.C.), Chandigarh and has completed M.(Tech) in




2.6.

Energy Studies from IIT Delhi. Mr. Tyagi is a Fulbright Scholar from Carnegic Mellon University,
Pennsylvania, USA and has been representing India in many International technical committees for preparing
various Technical Standards. He is Author of more than 30 technical papers which have been presented in
National and International conferences. He has also published Handbooks on High Voltage Circuit Breakers
and Bamboo Nailing & Sand Piling Technique in Power Transmission.

Independent Directors

EESL is a Joint Venture Company of four CPSEs and therefore, in terms of proviso to Section 2{32) and Section
149 of Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification: of Directors) Rules,
2014, EESL is not required to appoint Independent Directors on its Board. However, pursuant to SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015, EESL is also a High-Value Debt Listed Entity and therefore, Regulations 15 - 27 of the said
Regulations became applicable to the Company w.e.f. 7% September 2021 on a 'comply or explain’ basis until
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter. .

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DPIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted various statutory committees i.e. Audit Committee, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee, Risk Management Committee, and other group of
committees of directors formed from time to time for specific purposes. The details of such committees are as
under:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2013, Audit Committee has
been constituted by the Board of Directors. The composition of the Committee as on 31% March 2023 was as
under:

S.Ne. | Name of the Member Designation

1. Shri R.K. Tyagi, Non — Executive Nominee Director Chairman of the Committee
P Shri D.K. Patel, Non — Executive Nominee Director Member

3. Shri Aditya Dar, Non — Executive Nominee Director Member

During the financial year 2022-23, the following changes took place in the composition of the Committee:

e Shri Abhay Choudhary and Shri C.K. Mondol ceased to be Members of the committee on 1¥ Dec 2022
and 31% Jan 2023 respectively whereas Shri R.K. Tyagi and Shri D K. Patei have been appointed as
Members of the committee w.e.f. 4% Dec 2022 and 10" Feb 2023, respectively.

The members of the Committee are financially literate. The Chief Financial Officer attends all the meetings of
the Committee. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. The Statutory Auditor and the
Internal Auditor also make their presentation at the Committee Meetings, as and when required.

The term of reference of the Audit Committee is as follows:-

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, term of appointment, and, if required, the
replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4, Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for
approval with particular reference to the following and examination of auditors” report thereon:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Staterment to be included in the Board’s

report in terms of clause (¢) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companjes Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

¢. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
d. Significant adjustments made in the firancial statements arising out of audit findings.

e. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

5. Reviewing and monitoring, with the management, independence and performance of statutory auditors, and
effectiveness of audit process.

6. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if’ any. including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit.

7. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

9, Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board.

=2




Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern,

Reviewing, with the management. investment guidelines /policies of the Company.

Review of the following information:

e Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

e  Statement of significant related party transaction submitted by management;

= Management letters / ietters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors:
e [nternal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.
Serutiny of inter corporate loans and investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company. wherever it is necessary.

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offering and related matters.

10.

.
12.

13.
14
5.
16.

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year 2022-23, fifteen (15) meetings of the Audit Committee were held and detzils including
attendance of members of the Committee are as follows:

Name of the Meeting Date Total Na. of | % of
Merbers Meetings meetings Attendance

I I 1 IS oy I 1 held attended

<F It} = = [y ) =) I I & o o a o d tenure

= = = 2 2 =2 2 & & = = & & & &

o < oo L (=] o e o o - — o = = [)

™ ot = = & - S & o5 ] = & F 7 =

— ol (=] - — = — o
ShriR K. Tyagi - - - - - - - - - - - b4 ¥ hil X 4 4 100%
Shri D.K. Patel - - - - - - - - - B A A 3 1 33.33%
Shri Aditya Dar Y Y Y Y 4 Y Y Y Y 4 W bt Y Y 15 15 100%
Shn Abhay - - A A Y Y Y Y Y Y - - - - g 7 T7%
Choudhary
Shi C K. ¥ ' Y b4 Y Y i [ 4 Y W |~ - - - 12 12 100%
Mondol
vls. Seema Y Y - - - - - - - - - - - - - 2 2 100%
Gupta
Shri Chandan Kumar Mondol, Chairman of the Audit Commitiee was present in the Annual General Meeting
held on 29" September 2022 to answer the queries of the Shareholders.
b. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee has been ¢onstituted by the Board of Directors. The composition of the Committee as
on 31 March 2022 was as under:

S. Name of the Member Designation

No.

L. Shri Ajay Tewari, Government Nominee Director Chairman of the Committee
2. Shri K. Sreekant, Non — Executive Nominee Director Member

3. Shri D.K.Patel, Non — Executive Nominee Director Member

During the financial year 2022-23, the following changes took place in the composition of the Committee:

¢ Shri Vivek Kumar Dewangan ceased to be a member of the Committee and Shri Ajay Tewari and Shri D.K.
Patel have been appointed as NRC Commitiee Members w.e.f, 27 July 2023 and 10 Feb 2023

respectively.

The Term of Reference of the Committee is as under:

1. To formulate a criterion for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.

2. To formulate criteria for evaluation of individual Directors and the Board.

3. To identify persons whe are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this Policy.

4. To carry out an evaluation of every Director's performance.

3. To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.




6. To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management.

7. FEnsure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, the relationship of
remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

8. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

9. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

1¢. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of such duties.

Meetings and Attendance
During the financial year 2022-23, two (2) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held
and details including attendance of members of the Committee are as follows:

Name of the | Meeting | Total  Meetings | No. of | % of
Metrbers Date held during the | meetings Attendance
tenure attended

|| 30/07/2022
ra == 12/10/2022

Shri Ajay Tewari 2 1 50%
Shri K. Sreekant 2 2 100%
Shri C. K. Mondol 2 2 100%

During the financial year 2022-23, the following changes took place in the composition of the Committee:

s Shri Ajay Tewari and Shri D.K. Patel have been appointed as NRC Committee Members w.e.f. 27
July 2023 and 10 Feb 2023 respectively. Shri C. K. Mendol ceased to be a member of the NRC
Committee on 31% Jan 2023,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted in compliance with the provisions of
Section 135 of the Act. This Committee is constituted to formulate and recommend to the Board, the Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy as per Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time; to
recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities specified in the CSR Policy; to monitor
the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time; and any other matter as the Board
may delegate from time to time. The composition of the Committee as on 31% March 2023 was as undet:

S.No. | Name of the Member Designation
1. Shri R.K. Tyvagi, Non-Executive Nominee Director Chairperson of the Committee
3. Shri Aditya Dar, Non — Executive Nominee Director Member

During the financial year 2022-23, the following changes took place in the composition of the Committee:
¢ Shri RK. Tyagi was appointed as a Member of the committee w.e.f. 4 Dec 2022

EESL’s policy on Corporate Social Responsibility is available on the website of the company at weblink:
htips://eeslindia.org/wp-content/uploads/202 1/04/EESL-CSR-Policy.pdf

Meetings and Attendance
During the financial year 2022-23, No meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Regulation 21 of the SEBI (LODR} Regulations 2013, the Risk Management Committee has been
constituted to properly align with management as it embarks on a risk management program. The primary
responsibility of the risk committee is to oversee and approve the company-wide risk management practices to
assist the board in:

a. Overseeing that the executive team has identified and assessed ali the risks that the organization faces
and has established a risk management infrastructure capabte of addressing those risks.

b. Overseeing, in conjunction with other board-level committees or the board. risks, such as strategic,
financial. credit, market, liquidity, security, property, Information Technology, legal, regulatory.
reputational, and other risks.

c. In conjunction with the board. approving the company’s enterprise-wide risk management framework.



The composition of the Committee as 31%* March 2023 is as under:

s. Name of the Member Designation

No.

1. Shri  Ajay Tewari, Government Nominee Director | Chairman of the
(appoinied w.e.f, 29 July 2022) Commitiee

21 Shri RK. Tyagi, Non-Executive Nominee Director | Member
(appointed w.e.f. 4™ Dec 2022)

3 Shri Aditya Dar, Non — Executive Nominee Director Member

The Chief Risk Officer of the Company is a permanent invitee to the meetings of the Committee. One meeting
of the Committee was held on 31 March 2023,

OTHER BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEES
Some of the other major sub-committees of the Board of Directors including their constitution are as under:

Committee by the Board from time to
time.

Name of the | Roles & Responsibility Members as on 31 March 2023
Committee
Project Sub- | 1. To consider and accord approval for the | 1. Shri K Sreekant, Chairman and Non —
Committee investment in a project having project Executive Nominee Director
cost of more than Rs. 20 Crores but less | 2. Shri R.K, Tyagi- Non — Executive
than Rs. 100 Crores in each case. Nominee Director
2. Torecommend projects for investment to | 3. Shri D.K. Patel- Non — Executive
the Beard of Directors having project Nominee Director
cost of more than Rs. 100 Crores in each | 4. Shri Aditya Dar- Non — Executive
case. Nominee Director
3. To consider upward variation in project
cost in aggregate, which exceeds 10% of
originally approved project cost but are
up to 25% of originally, approved project
cost within the scope of Project Sub
Committee.
4. To consider changes in means of finance,
validity and terms and conditions of the
project proposal within the scope of
Project Sub Committee.
Business a. To review and oversee the development | 1. Shri K Sreekant, Chairman and Non —
Development and implementation of the Company’s Executive Nominee Director
Committee growth strategies, including: 2. Shri RK. Tyagi- Non - Executive
* identification of growth horizons. Nominee Director
. deve[opment of new business |3. Stui D.K. Patel- Non ~ Executive
maodels, Nominee Director
s  Strategic equity or debt investments, |4. Shri Aditya Dar- Non — Executive
and Nominee Director
e Sirategic alliances with  other
companies.
b. Toreview and make recommendations to
the Board with respect to
(1) investments in growth strategies or
(2) business acquisitions or divestitures.
in each case to the extent that the Board's
approval is required pursnant to
applicable law, the Company’s Articles
ol Incorporation or By-laws or
resolutions adopted by the Board.
c¢. To review restructuring of the
organization.
d. Te fulfil any other duties or
responsibilities  delegated to  the




5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
The details of remuneration paid to directors during the year are as under:

Name of Director / Remuneration Details Shri Arun Kumar Mishra, Chief Executive
Officer & Whole — Time Director (up to 27
July 2022)

Salary* Rs. 18,25,744

Benefits Rs. 71.906.87

Bonuses -

Stock Options -

Pension Rs. 1,09,285.37

Employer’s contribution to Provident Fund Rs. 1,45,714.84

Employer’s contribution to Superannuation Fund Rs. 2,42,856.36

Performance linked incentives Rs. 8,07,739.35

WNotice Period 3 months

Total Rs. 32,03,246.79

*includes perquisites

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Annual General Meetings

Financial 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Year ]
Date 29t September | 30" November 2021 30 January 2021
2022
Time 545 p.m. 01:30 p.m. 10:00 a.m.
Venue Energy Efficiency | Energy Efficiency Services | EESL Registered Office, 5" &

Services Limited, | Limited, NFL Building, 7" | 6% Floor, SCOPE Complex,
NFL Building, 7* | Floor, Board Room, Core — | Lodhi Road, New Delhi —
Floor, Board Room, | ITI, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi | 110003

Core — I1I, SCOPE | Road, New Delhi — 110003
Complex, Lodhi
Road. New Delhi —

110003
Special » Appointment of | NIL s Alteration of Articles of
Resolution Shri Abhay Association of the Company.
Choudhary (DIN: ® Appointment of Shri Saurabh
07388432} as a Kumar (DIN: 06576793),
Non — Executive Managing Director, Edina UK
Nominee Director Limited as a Whole Time
(PGCIL) in the Director designated as
Comparny. Executive Vice Chairman
* Appointment of (Interim  Charge) of the
Shri Ajay Tewari Company.

(DIN: 09633300)
as a4 Non -—
Executive
Government
Nominee Director
{MoP) in the
Compaty

No special resolution was passed or is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot.

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report, disclosures made on Stock
Exchange and on its Website, Information, latest updates and announcements regarding the Company can be
accessed at company’s website: www.eeslindia.org.

During the financial year 2022-23, Quarterly Results have been published as per details given below:
Quarter Date of Publication Newspaper(s)
Q1 17-08-2022 Financial Express




Q2 14.11.2022 Financial Express
Q3 16.02.2023 Business Standard
Q4 01.06.2023 Financial Express

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
i. Annual General Meeting: 14
Date — 29" Sepiember 2023
Time - 05:30 p.m.
Venue — Energy Efficiency Services Limited. NFL Building, 7" Floor, Board Room, Core — III, SCOPE
Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110003
Financial Year — 2022-23

ii. Listing on the Stock Exchange:
The Non — Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued by EESL are listed on the following Stock Exchange:

BSE Limited

Address: Phiroze Jegjeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400001

The details of NCDs as on 313 March 2023 are as under:

Series Particulars of Bonds | [SIN Serip Amount (in | Date of | Date  of
Code Issue Maturity

Series 1 | 1250 no.s of 8.07%

(2016 — | Secured Redeemable

17) Taxable Non -

(STRPP | Cumulative Non-

©) Convertible Bonds of | INE68ZV07033 | 934969 | 250.00.00.000 | 20.09.2016 | 20.09.2023

face wvalue @ Rs.
20.00.000 each issued
on a Private
Placement Basis

The Annual Listing Fee for the financial year 2023-24 has been paid to BSE. The above-mentioned NCDs
were fully redeemed on 20" Sep 2023,

iii. Debenture Trustee:
Axis Trustee Services Limited
Plot 25, 2™ Floor, Pusa Road.
Karol Bagh, New Delhi — 110003

Email ID: rajat.cupta@axistrustee.in; subhash.ihachaxistrustee.in
Website: https:/www.axistrustee.in/

iv. Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents
KFin Technologies Private Limited.

Selenium Tower B, Plot Nos. 31 & 32, Financial District Nanakramguda,

Serilingampally Mandal,

Hyderabad — 500032

Toll Free No.: 1800 309 4001

Email ID: einward.risi@kfintech.com
Website: www kfintech.com

v. Share Transfer System:
All securities issued by the Company are in dematerialised form. Therefore, the transfers are affected through

depositories and RTA, without involvement of the company.

vi. Distribution of Shareholding:
The Sharcholding pattern of the Company as on 31% March 2023 was as under:

S. Name of Shareholders No. of Shares | % of

Ne. Held @ ¥10 each | holding

1. NTPC Limited and its Nominee 46.36.10.000 33.334

2 REC Limited 21,81,60,000 15.681

3. Power Finance Corporation Limited and its Nominee 24.55,00.000 17.651

4. Power Grid Corporation of India Limited and its Nominee | 46,36.10.000 33.534
Total 1,390,820,000 | 100




*As on the date of this repott, the paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,88,78,20,000. The
Shareholding pattern of the Company is as under:

vii. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity;

NTPC LIMITED 71,21,09,832 37.721278
POWER GRID CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED 71,21,09,832 37.721278
POWER FINANCE CORPORATION LTD 24,54,99,832 13.004409
REC LIMITED 21,81,00,000 11.553008
ARUN KUMAR 168 0.000009
DILIP NAGESH ROZEKAR 168 0.600009
PRAVEEN KUMAR SINGH 168 0.600609

The shares and debentures of the company are in the compulsory dematerialized segment and are admitted
with both the Depositories i.c. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services {India) Limited (CDSL). Details of holding in dematerialized mode as on 31* March 2023 are as

under:

Security Share % | Holder %
Equity
CDSL Nil Nil
NSDL 100 100
Debentures
CDSL 1.92 4
NSDL 98.08 22

viii.

impact on equity:

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely

No GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other convertible instruments have been issued by the Company.

ix. Credit Rating:

ICRISIL

CARE

[ICRA

Facility

NCDs

CRISIL A/Negative

CARE A/ Negative

[ICRA] A Negative

Long Term Loan

CRISIL A/Negative

CARE A/ Negative

[ICRA] A Negative

Shott Term Loan

CRISIL A2+

CARE A2+

[ICRA] A2+

Date of Rating

20.12.2022

15.11.2022
Surveillance)
22.03.2023
Surveillance)

(Mid-term

(Annual

25.10.2022

Revision in the rating

NCDs

Downgraded
A+/Stable

from,

Reaffirmed
A/Negative
22.03.2023 during
Annual  Surveillance.
{Downgraded from
A+/Stable to A/Negative
on 15.11.2022 during
midterm surveillance)

to
on

Downgraded from

A+/Stable

Long Term Loan

Downgraded
A+/Stable

from

Reaffirmed
A/Negative
22.03.2023
Annual  Surveillance.
{Downgraded from
A+/Stable to A/Negative
on 15.11.2022 during
midterm surveillance)

to
on
during

Downgraded from

A+/Stable




D
(@)

)

(c)

(d)

()

()

(2

(h)

(i)

Short Term Loan Downgraded from A1 | Reaffirmed to A2+ on |Downgraded from Al
22.03.2023 during
Annual Surveillance.

| (Downgraded from Al

| to A2+ on 15.11.2022

during mid-term
surveillance)
Reasons CRAs have downgraded their respective ratings |-

provided by the| due to the following reasons:

rating agency for |« Weak counterparties and continued build-up

a downward in receivables position

revision *  Leveraged capital structure with deteriorating
debt coverage indicators and susceptibility of
margins to adverse {luctuations in the foreign
currency rates

¢ Net losses reported during FY22 and HIFY23
(UA)

X. Address for Correspondence:
NFL Building, 5 & 6% Floor, Core — 111, SCOPE Coraplex. Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003

DISCLOSURES
Related Party Transaction:
Related Party Transactions covered under Section 177 and Section 188 form part of the notes to the Financial
Statements (Standalone) provided in the Annual Report.

Whistle Blower Policy:

The company has a Boeard approved “Whistle Blower Policy’ for directors and employees to repott to the
management, concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud. or violation of the company's code
of conduct or ethics policy. The Whistle Blower Policy is available at the web link: https:/eeslindig.org/wp-
content/uploads/202 1/04/EESL- Whistle-Blower-policy.ndf

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements: EESL
is a High-Value Debt Listed Entity as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 (as amended) and therefore, the
provisions relating to Regulations 15 - 27 of the said Regulations became appiicable to the Company w.e.f, 7%
September 2021 on a 'comply or explain’ basis until March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter. The
outstanding NCDs were fully redeemed on 20% Sep 2023.

During the financial year 2022-23, there were no instances where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation of any committee of the Board, which is mandatorily required.

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part:
Rs. 50.00.000/-

Web link for Policy for determining “material’ subsidiaries are disclosed and Policy on dealing with Related
Party Transactions: EESL is a High-Value Debt Listed Entity as per SEBI {LODR) Regulations 2015 (as
amended) and therefore. the provisions relating to Regulations 15 - 27 of the said Regulations became
applicable to the Company w.e.f. 7% September 2021 on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 2024 and
on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021. The outstanding NCDs were fully redeemed on 20% Sep
2023.

Details of *Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested in
name and amount™: Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended on 31 March 2023 may be
referred.

The extent to which the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule 1t have been adopted:
Till date, none of the discretionary requirements have been adopted.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act.
2013:
¢ Number of complaints filed during the financial year — 0



»  Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year —0
s  Number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year — 0

(j) Certificate of Non — Non-Disqualification of Directors: Annexed as Annexure — A
(k) Declaration w.r.t Compliance of Code of Conduct: as stated in the Board Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors:
Energy Efficiency Services Limited

irector {ect-o r

DIN: 0809012 DIN:09£323%16

Date: 29/09/2023
Place: New Delhi
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KUMAR NARESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES 121, Vinayak Apartment
Company Secretaries Plot No.: C-58/19, Sector-62
Noida-201309 (U.P)
Mobile: 9868282032, 98101842569

Email: kumarnareshsinha@gmail.com

Form No. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2023
[Pursugnt to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Monageriol Personnel} Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Energy Efficiancy Services Limited

CIN: U40200D1.2008PLCI96789

NFL Building, 5™ & &' Floor, Core - lil, SCOPE Complex,
Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Energy Efficiency Services Limited {hereinafter called “The Company”), having its
Registered Office at NFL Building, 5% & &% Floor, Core - ill, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi — 110003.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonabile basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and autherized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial vear ended on 31 March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions
prescribed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

¥

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii} The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA’} and the rules madethereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv}Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Overseas Direct investment - As per the information provided to us and documents furnished before us, the
Company has made Overseas Direct Investment during the financial year and complied all the provision of
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 along with Companies Act 2013 as applicable.

(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1952

(‘SEBLACE): -

{(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011; {(Not Applicable during the period under review)

{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading} Regulations, 2015;

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Not Applicable during the period under review)

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Fmployee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations
2021; {(Not Applicable during the period under review)
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(€) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities] Regulations, 2021;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; {Applicable to the company during the audit
period)

(g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Defisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable
during the period under review); and

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities} Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable
during the pericd under review)

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed
in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory auditor and other designated professionals.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/Regulations of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(if) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
{Applicable to the company during the audit period as the debt securities of the company are listed on BSE).

During the period under review, the Compary has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ruies, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1% Non-appointinent of woman director for the period from june 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023.

2. Non-compliance/delayed compiiance with the requirements of Regulation 52{1) pertaining to non-
submfission of annual financial results, Regulation 52(4) pertaining to non-disclosure of line iterns
along with helf yearly/annual financiol results and Regulation 54(2) pertaining to non-disclosure of
extent and noture of security created and maintained with respect to secured listed NCDs in the
financial statements, of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the period ended 31° March 2022,

3, Non-compliance of Regulation 52{7)/{7A} of SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015 pertaining te delay in
submission of a statement indicuting the utilization of issue praceeds /material deviation in the use
of proceeds for the period ended 317 March 2022,

4, Mon-complignce with the requirements of Regulation 50(2) and Regulation 53(2) of SEBI (LODR)
Reguigtions, 2015 pertuining to Delay in furnishing intimation about the meeting of shareholders or
holders of non-convertible securities and non-submission of the annual report within the period
prescribed.

b .
5, Non-compliance with Regulation &0{2} of SEB! {LODR} Regulations, 2015 pertgining to delay in
submission of the notice of Record bate.

We further report that:

s The Board of Directors of the Company consists of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors except a ‘
woman Director for the period from June 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisians of the Act.

*= The Company has received notices from BSE fmposing penalties for non-compliance/delay with the
reguirements pertaining to Regulations 50{2), 521}, 52{3), 52(7}/(7A), 53(2}, 54(2) and 60(2) of SEBI {(LGDR}
Regulations, 2015.

s  However, based on the revised submissions/written representation made by the company, the fine imposed
by BSE vide mail dated 25.05.2023 and 05.09.2023 for late / non-comphance of Regulation 54{2) regarding
details of asset cover and Regulation 50{2) regarding intimation about meeting of shareholders or NCS
helders respectively has baen withdrawn,

s Further, based on the company’'s [etter / mail requesting waiver for fine imposed for late / non-compliance
under Regulation 60(2) regarding Notice of Record Date, BSE vide mail dated 24.04.2023 waived the fine,
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»  Generally, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on the agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, other than those held at shorter naotice, and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agends items befare
the meeting and for meaningful participation in the meeting.

= WMejority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period i.e., Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has;
L. Altered its Articles of Assaciation in its 13 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders held on 26%

July 2022,
i Redeemed Bonds as under:
Particulars SIN Date of alletment | Date of redemption
7.80% p.a {Fixed Rate}, Secured, | INEGBRVOR01S 187 July 2017 18% July 2022

Not guaranteed, Senior, Taxable,
Non-Cinnulative, Rated,
Redeemable, Non-Convertible B
Bonds Series - STRPF A, Privaie
Placernent Bonds issued as

Debentures
Date: 15 September 2023 For Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates
Place: Noida Company Secretarie

Kumar Sinha
{Proprietor}
FCS No.: 1807; CP No.: 14984
PR: 610/2019

FRN: 5201510440500

UDIN: FO01207£001015701

1
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is onnexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part
of this report.
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KUVIAR NARESH SINHA & ASSOCIATES 121, Vinayak Apartment
Company Secretaries Plot Mo.: C-58/19, Sector-62
Noida-201309 {U.P}
Mobite: 9868282032, 9810184269

Email: kumarnareshsinha@gmall.com

Annexure-A

To,

The iviembers,

Energy Efficiency Services Limited

CIN: U40200DL2009PLC196789

NFL Building, 5% & 6% Floor, Core - Ill, SCOPE Complex,
Lodhi Road, Mew Delhi— 110003

Auditor’'s responsibility
1. Based o audit, aur responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and
maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards
€SAS 110 CSAS 4 (“CSAS") prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of tndia (“ICSI), These standards
require that the auditor comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

2. Due to thé inherent limitations of an audit induding internal, financial and operating controls, there is an
unavoidable risk that some misstatermnents or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the
audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the CSAS. Gur report of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

3. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

4. wWe have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on a random test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasanable basis for our opinion.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
corapany-and for which we relied on the report of the statutory auditor.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and the happening of events etc.

7. Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, and standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a random test
basis. '

8. TheSecretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efﬁcacy.’
or effectiveness with which the management has condurted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 15" September 2023 For, Kumar Naresh Sinha & Associates

Place: Noida Company Secretarjes

Naresh Kumar Sinhg”
{Proprietor)
FCS No.; 1807; CP No.: 14984
PR: 610/2019
FRN: S2015UP440500
UDIN: FO01807E001015701
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COMMENTS OQF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ENEROGY RFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Energy Efficiency Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Acl. This is stated to have been
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 30 May 2023.

1, on behalf of the Comptroiler and Auditor General of India,-have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Energy Efficiency Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without
access to the working papers of the statutory anditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory
auditor and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

O the basis of iy supplaaentary aodit nothing significant has come to my irowleldge wi-:icl‘f
would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under s.eciion 143(6)(.55
of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptrolier & Auditor General of India

mn

Place: New Delhi ) (Sanjay K. Jh‘s?)
Dated: 1 /? /}«'S Director General of Audit (Energy)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6){tb) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  OF ENERGY
EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of Consolidated financial statements of Energy Efficiency Services
Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 139(5) read with section 129(4) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial stalements under section 143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act.
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 30 May 2023,

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of Energy Efficiency Services
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6){(a) read with section 129(4) of
the Act. We conducted a supplementary sudit of the financial statements of Energy Efficiency
Services Limnited but did not conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of
Convergence Energy Services Private Limited for the year ended on that date. Further, Section
139(5) and Section 143(6){(a) of the Act are not applicable to the entities listed in Annexure I
being private entities/ entities incorporated in foreign countries under the respective laws, for
appointment of their Statutory Auditors and for conduct of supplementary audit. Accordingly,
Compiroller & Auditor General of India has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor
conducted the supplementary audit of these companies, This supplementary audit has been
carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor and is
limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon c¢r supplement to statutory auditor’s report under
section 143(6){b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

IR b

Place: New Delhi {Sanjay K Jha)
Dated:15.09.2023 Director General of Audit {Energy)
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List of subsidiaries, assgciate companies and jointly controlled entitics where section 139(5)
and 143(6) of the Act are not applicable.

Subsidiaries

1. EESL Energy Pro Assets Limited

12

Anesco Energy Services (South) Limited

(WA ]

Creighton Energy Limited
EPAL Holdings Limited
Edina Acquisition Limited
Edina Power Services Limited
Edina Limited

Edina UK Limited

9. Edina Australia Pty Limited

22l [ e oAl B

10. Armoura Holdings Limited

11. Stanbeck Limited

12. Edina Manufacturing Limited

13, EPSL Trigeneration Private Ltd

14. Edina Power Limited

15. EESL Energy Solutions LLC {Dubai)

Associates and Joint Venfure

1. Intellismart Infrastructure Pvt. Lid.



S. P. CHOPRA & CO. Corporate Office
Chartered Accountants 15085, Astralis Supernova
Sector-94, Gautam Buddha Nagar

Noida - 201 301

Phone 0120 - 4516921

www.spchopra.in

spe1949@spehopra.in

Independent Auditor's Reporf
Io the Members of *Energy Efficiency Services Limited’

Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ‘Energy Efficiency Services
Limited’ (the "Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the
standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (inciuding Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (the “standalone financial statements™.

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the informaiion required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 2023 and its loss
{including other comprehensive loss), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statemenis in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs} specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the ‘Audifor's responsibilities for the audit of the sfandalone financial statemenis’
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institule of Charlered Accountants of India (ICAl} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalene financial statements.

Emphasis of matiers
We draw attention fo the following matters in the notes to the standalone financial statements:

a} Necessary reciifications as may bs required to be effected in the standalone financial statements
upon completion of reconciliation of trade receivables, frade payables, capital work in progress and
property, plant and equipment including its physical verification. Refer note 3(i), 4{d) and 64 o the
standalone financial statements.

b) {i) The Company is in the process to seek clarifications/ amendments in certain agreements for
smart meter projects, for exiension of pericd, change in rates ete. including for those meters where
the biling could not be done (i} reconciliation of street lights installed/ completed so as to
adequately capitalize/ recognize revenue, the effect of these notes shall be considerad in the year
in which such amendments/ reconciliations/ receipt of data is finalized and amounts determined.
Refer note 35(d}, 35{e} and 35(f) to the standalone financial statements.

fegistered Office — F-31 Connaught Place New Delhi - 110 001 Tel: 81-11-23313495
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ch Accumulation of trade receivables 1o ¥ 4,15,247.63 |akhs against which Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) of ¥ 11,775.03 Iakhs created during the year (cumulative ECL of ¥ 25,184.65 lakhs as at 31
March 2023), based on estimation by the management on the basis of the methodology earlier
followed by an external agency, as stated in note 14{f) to the standalone financial statements.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matiers ware addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matiers described

below to be the key audit matters ta be communicated in our report.

Sr. Key audit matter Hew our sudit addressed the key audit matter
No.
1 Depreciation accounting An understanding of the system of capitalizafion of

property, plant and equipment and calculation of

The Company has charged the | depreciation was obtained and adopted the following

depreciation of ¥ 70,847.84 lakhs for | audit procedures:

tzhgzg errt;i1 Al 20225 B Wiarel] « Evaluated and fested the effectiveness of the

property, plant and 3 ) : :

squipment as disclosed in note 3 and company’s design of internal contrels re_[ajtmg o

40 to the accompanying standalone recpgmiton and measurement pf depreciation for

financial statements of the Company. various property, plant and equipment.

Such depreciation is charged on| « The calculations of depreciation on various class

straight line method, as per the of property, plant and equipment were tasted and

accounting policy disclosed in note verified.

2209, « Verified the accouniing of depreciation based on

This is considered as Key Audit applicable IndAS.

Matier due to iis nature and area of

significant risk which may have } paged on the above procedures performed and based

material impact on the standalone | o the explanations/ representation by the company,

financial statements. the recognition of depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is considered fo be adequate and
reasonable.

2 Centingent Liabilities We obiained an understanding of the company's

internal instructions and procedures in respect of

There are number of litigations | estimation and disclosure of contingent liabilities and

against the company perding before | adopted the following audit proceduses:

varjous forums. There is a high levsl

of judgement required in estimating | » Understood and tested the design and operaiing

the contingent liabilities. The effectiveness of controls as estahlished by the

company's assessment of contingent management for obtaining the relevant

liabilities is supported by the facts of information for pending litigation cases;

the matter, company's judgement

thereon, past experience and advice | «  Discussed with the management any material

from legal and tax consultants, developmenis thereto and latest status of [egal

wherever necessary. matters;

We identified this as a key audit | . Read various correspondences and related

matter because the estimates on documents pertaining to litigation cases and

which these amounts are based relevant external legal opinions obtained by the
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involve a significant degree of managemant and  performed  substantive
management judgement in procedures  on  calculations supporting  the
| interpreting the cases and in view of disclosure of contingent liabilities;

associated uncertainly relating to the

outcome of these matters. » Examined recent orders from competent

authorities and/ or communication received from

{Refer note 53(b) and 53(c) to the various authorities, judicial forums and follow-up
standalone financial statements, read action thereon.

with the significent accounting policy

no. 2.9} s Examined managemeni's judgement and

assessment for the requirement of provisions;

s Reviewed the adeguacy and completeness of
disclosures;

Based on the above procedures performed, the
estimation and disclosures of contingent liabilities is
censidered o be adequate and reasonable.

information other than the standalone financial statements and auditor’'s report thereon

The company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the report of the board of diractors’, including annexures, but
does not include the standatone financial statements and our audifor's report thereon, which is expected to be
made available io us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinton on the standalone financial staternents does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusicn tharaon.

In connection with our audit of the siandalone financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our aud, or otherwise appears to he materially misstated.

When we read the report of the board of directors’, including annexures, if any, thereon, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
govemance.

Responsibitities of the management and those charged with governance for the standalone
financial statements

The company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect {o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true ang fair view of the
financial position, financial performance inciuding other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting palicies; making judgmenis and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequaie
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completaness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or
arror.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board of directors either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but o do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statemenis as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will aiways detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstaterents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepreseniations, or the
override of internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures madz by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that & miaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalane financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalane financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ji} fo
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mafters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, in extremely rare circumsiances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other matter

We did not audit the financial statements/ information of a foreign branch of the company, included in the
standalone financial statements of the company whose financial statements/ information reflects total
assets of ¥ 3,753.72 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 and total revenue of ¥ 30.43 lakhis for the year ended on
that date, the financial statements/ information of the said branch is certified by the management and has
not been audited by any other auditor. Qur opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the said branch solely on the information ceriified by the management. However,
this branch is not material to the Company as a whole.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
Report on other legal and regulatery requirements

1. As required by the 'Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020" (“the Order”), issued by the Central
CGovernment of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in Annexure —
‘A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order,

2. We also enclose our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the information
and explanations given to us by the management, in Annexure - 'B’, on the directions and sub-
directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. As required by section 143(3} of the Act, we report, {o the extent applicable, that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge &nd belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. i our opinicn, proper books of account, as required by law, have been kept by the company
50 far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢.  the accounis of one foreign branch of the company that reflect total assels of ¥ 3,753.72
lakhs as at 31 March 2023 and tofal revenue of ¥ 30,43 lakhs for the year ended on that date
are unaudited and certified by the management.

d. the standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statemen: of changes in equity and the standaione
stalemant of cash flows dealt with, in the report are in agreement with the books of account;
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in our opinicn, the siandalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {(Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 31 March 2023
and taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as at 31
March 2023 from being appointed as a director, in terms of section 1684{2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the company and the operating effectivensss of such controls, refer to
our separaie report in Annexure - ‘C’

the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule V of the Act;
and

with respect 1o the other matters fo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given fo us:

The company has disclosed the impact of pending fitigations on its financial position in
note 53 to its standalone financial statements;

The company has not entered into any long-term centracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foresesable losses;

There has been no amount which were reqguired to be transferred to ihe Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company;

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of iis knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds} by the company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or ctherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, direcily or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b} The management has represented, that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("*Funding
Parties”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{¢c) Based on the audit procedurss that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come te our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (i} of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (2) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement; and

v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year;, hence, the said clause is not

applicable.
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vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining the
books of accounis using accounting software which has the feature of recording audit trail
(edit log} facility is applicable to the Company with effect from D1 April 2023, therefore,
reporting under Rule 11{g) is not appliable for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

For 3. P. Chopra & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

%ESW-—#

Ankur Goyal

Partner
Place: NMew Delhi Membership No. 099143
Date: 30 May 2023 UDIN 23059143BGPMWAZ308
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Annexure - ‘A’ to Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragragh 1" under "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of the
intlependent Auditors Report of even dale on the standalone financial statements of Energy Efficiency
Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporling a frue and fair view on the
standalone financial statemenis of the company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, and to ithe best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i} In regpect of its property, plant and equipments, intangible assets and Right to use assets;

a. {A) The company has maintained the records showing particulars of property, plant and
equipments. However, the quantitative details, situation of property, plant and equipment
etc. have not been recorded therein.

(B) The company has maintained the records showing particulars of intangible assets.
However, the quantitative details of intangible assets efc. have not been recorded therein.

b. As explained to us, the physical verification of property, plant and equipments has not
been carried out during the year by the management,

e According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properiies are
held in the name of the company except for a properly located at Kolkata whose
registration is pending, hence the title deed of the said property is not held in the name of
the Company. The details of said property are disclosed in note 3(f) on property, plant and
equipment to the standalone financial statements and are also given below:

Description Gross Property Whether title Data since Reason for
of property | canying | held inthe | deed hatder is whén | property not
value rdie of a promoter, | propextyis | beng held in'the
#Fin 1 rectorar - held name of the
lakhs) their relative sompany
- orefiployee
Office 335.08 NBCC Mo 31-Mar-21 Awaiting
building in {India) compledion of
Kolkata Limited legal formalities
d. The company has not revalued any of its properly, plant and equipment (including Right of

Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

=3 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the company as at 31 March 2623 for halding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1888) and rules
made thereunder, as amended.

{ii) (m) As explained to us, the physical verification of inventory was conducted during the year by
the management and is under finalization/ reconciliation. In view of the management, the
impact thereof will not be material. In our opinior, the system of physical verification should
be strengthenad and the same shall invariably be conducted peridocially, having regard to
the size of the company and nature of its business.
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(i)

(iv)

(v)

(b) According to ths information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has been sanctioned the working
capital limif in excess of ¥ 5 crores, in aggregate at any point of time during the year, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of sscurity of current assets. The amount reportad
in guarterly statements filed by the company with such banks/ financial institutions during the
year are generally in agreement with the books of account of the company and no material
differences were observed therein.

The company, during the year, made investmenis of ¥ 4,921 lakhs in Convergence Energy
Services Limited and ¥ 3,993,50 lakhs in [ntellismart Infrastructure Private Limited and granted
unsecured loan of ¥ 2,390 lakhs to Convergence Energy Services Limited. The disclosures under
clause 3(iii{a} to 3(ii(f) in this respect are as under:

(@) (A) Loan of ¥ 2,390 lakhs was given during the year (aggregate amount given is ¥ 5,390
lakhs} to Convergence Energy Services Limited, a subsidiary company. The amount of loan
ouistanding as at 31.03.2023 is ¥ 4,808 64 lakhs.

Further, no additional corporate guarantee or lrrevocable standby letter of credit {SBLC) has
been given during the year in respect of any of its subsidiaries and joint ventures. The
amount of corporate guarantees of GBP 14 million (equivalent to ¥ 14,262.19 lakhs) and
lirevocable standby letter of credit (SBLC) of GBP 20.21 million (equivalent to ¥ 20,588.49
lakhs) been given to subsidiary company namely EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited in past
years, is outstanding as at 31 March 2023.

(B) The company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured during the year, to parties other than
subsidiaries and joint ventures. Further, the company has no associates.

(b} The investments made, guarantees pravided, security given and the tarms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guaraniees provided are not
prejudicial io the company’s interest.

(¢} In respect of loans and advances in the natwe of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. An installment of the aforesaid loan
has fallen due and has been paid timely during the year,

{d) The repayment of installment of loan has been done within the stipulated time period, hence
no repaymant has fallen overdue as at the year end.

(e) During the year, neither the loan has fallen overdue nor renewed/! extended or fresh loan
granted to settle the averdue of existing loan given to same party.

{fy The company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given {o us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, the company has not granted any loans or has not given any
guarantee and security covered undar Section 185 and 186 of the Acl. In respact of investments,
company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of
the records of the company, the company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of seclion 73 to 76 ar any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the rules framed thereunder o the extent notified, hence reporting under this clause
is not applicable,

%;Qt
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Pursuani to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the company is not required to

maintain cost records as specified under sub-section {1} of section 148 of the Aci, hence

reportirig under this clause is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

a.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the racords of the company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues
including goods and service tax, provident fund, employee state insurance, income-tax,

sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and ofther

statutory dues, as applicable have generally been deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there have been delays in few cases and no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of aforesaid dues are outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for a period of

more than six months from the date they became payable.

The statutory dues of ¥ 9,696.72 lakhs are disputed on account of matter pending in
appeals before appropriate authority against which company has deposited ¥ 5,005.25
lakhs under protest, the details of which are as under:

Sr. | Name of statue | Nature { Forumwhers | Periodto | Ambtnt Deposit
Na. | of dues dispute is which | ®in under
pending amount/ lakhs) protest
disputes {Fin
relaies e M lakhs)
1 AP Value Added Tax Andhra Oct-14 10 3,703.55 3,715.19
Tax Act, 2006 Pradesh VAT Nov-15
Appellate
2 | AP Value Added Tax Tribunal, Dec-15to 1,291.68 B45 84
Tax Act, 2005 Visakhapatnam | Dec-16
3 | AP Value Added | Penalty Cct-14 to 925 89 46294
Tax Act, 2005 Nov-1i5
4 | AP Value Added | Fenalty Dec-15to 322.52 40.36
Tax Act, 2005 Dec-16
5 | AP Value Added | Interest Appellate Jan-17 to 427 0.53
Tax Act, 2005 Additianal Jun-17
Commissioner,
6 | AP Value Added | Penalty Commercial Jan-17 to 8.70 0.84
Tax Act, 2005 Tax, Jun-17
Viiayawada
7 HP value Added Tax Asst, Comm Apr-16 to 2249 -
Tax Act, 2005 State taxes - Mar-17
Shimla, HP
& Odisha Good Tax GST Appellate | Ap~-181io 701.34 44 43
and Services Tax Authority, Mar-19
Act, 2017 Cdisha
2] Qdisha Good Tax Apr-18 1o 829 0.59
and Services Tax Mar-20
Act, 2017
10 | UP Value Added Tax Dy. Comm, Apr-15 to 25.83 -
Tax, 2008 Commercia! Mar-16
Tax Division,
11 1 UP Value Added Tax Noidz, UP Apr-15 to 35.03 -
Tax, 2008 Maz-16
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{(vili)

{ix)

x)

12 | UP Value Added |  Tax Apr-16 to 30.24 - i
_ Tax, 2008 ! Mar-16
. f
I3 T UPvale Aaded | Tax Apri5ta | 68620 B
| Tax, 2008 Mar-16
14 | UP Value Added Tax " Apr-15to 820.93 e
Tax, 2008 | Mar-16
16 | UP Value Added | Tax T Apei7to | 36021 | -
Tax, 2008 Mar-18
16 | UP Value Added Tax Apr-17 ta 1.45 -
Tax, 2008 Mar-18
7 Central Goods Tax Cffice of Apr-18io 47.33 47.33
and Services Tax Assistant Mar-20
-2017 (Delhi} commissioner
of CGST Dethi
18 Central Soods Tax | Apr20to 47.20 47.20
and Services Tax iar-21
2017 {{Deathi)
19 | Income Tax Act, Tax Commissioner | Apr-17 to 851.17 -
1861 of Income Tax Mar-18
e Total | 968672 | 500525

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments undar the Income Tax Act, 1861 (43 of 1861).

{a)

(k)

(c)

(d)

(&)

U

(@

Based on the audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender,

Based on the audi procedures and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
ather lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the term foans received during the year were applied for the purpose for
which these term loans were obtained,

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been utilized during the year for long-term
purposes by the company.

Based on the audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to mest
the obligations of its subsidiaries and joint veniures. Further, the company has no associate.

Based on tha audit procedures and according o the information and explanalions given to
us, the company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries and foint ventures. Further, the company has no associate.

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
hag neither raised funds by way of initial pubtic offer nor further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year hence repaorting under this clause is not applicable,
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()

(i)

{xiv}

()

{xvi)

(xvii}

{xviil)

(b) The company has not made any preferential alloiment or private placement of shares or
corvertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year, hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(a) Based on the audit progedures and according to the infermation and explanations given fo us,
no fraud by the company or no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year,

{by No report under sub-seciion (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amendad, with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, no whistle blower complaint was received by the company
during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi company hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(@) to 3(xii)(c) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such transactions have been
disciosed in the standalone financial statements as required by Ind AS 24 — Related Party
Disclosures. However, some of the related party iransactions were not put up to the Audit
Committee/ Board for their approval as reguired by the Act,

(@) In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

{(b) The internal audit has been carred aut by an independent firm of chartered accountants of
which the report for the year 2022-23, issued to the company was considered by us while
conducting our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or person connected with them.

(&), {b) and {c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the carnpany does not
undertake any activity which requires the company to be registered under section 45-A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834, hence, reporting under clauses 3(xvi}{a), (b} and {c} of the
Crder is not applicable.

{d) In our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direclions, 2018) and accordingly repariing under
clause 3{xvi}{d) of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered under our audit and
in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no rasignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.
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(xix)

(o)

On the basis of the financial ratios {as given in note 60(i) of the standalone financial slaternents},
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
cother information accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the
board of directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the dale of the audit report indicating that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities exisling at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

{a) There are no unspent ameunts fowards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR), in respect of
oiher than engoing projects, requiring a transfer o a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the
Act in compliance with second proviso 1o sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.

(b} There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CER), pursuant to
any ongoing projects under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act, requiring a transfer tc a
special account in cormnpliance with the provisien of sub-seciion (8) of section 135 of the said Act,

For $.P. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accouniants
Firm Registration No. 000344N

[é@\mmmc’f
__-—-/
Ankur Goyal

Pariner

Place: New Delhi Membership No. 099143
Dated: 30 May 2023 UDIN 23099 143BGPMWA2398
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Annexure - ‘B’ to the independent Audifor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on other legal and reguiatory reqguirements’ section of the
independent Auditor's Report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Energy Efficiency
Services Limnited for the year ended 31 March 2023)

Directions and Sub-Directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5}
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of annual accounts of Energy Efficiency Services Limited for the
year 2022-23.

loan or cases of waiver! write
off of debts/ loans/ interest
etc. made by a lender io the
company due to tha
company’s inability fo repay
the loan? H yes, the financial
impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In
case, lender is a government
company, then this direction
is also applicable from
statutory auditors of lender
company}.

no case of restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/
write off of debts/ loans/ interest
etc. made by any lender to the
company due to the company's
inability to rapay the loan.

Sr. Directions/ Auditor’s Responses Action taken | DLiipacton
No. Sub-Directions therecn by standalone
management financial
statements
A | Birections
1 Whether the Company has | Based on audit procedures No action is No Impact
system in place to process | carried out by us and according required
all the: accounting | to the information and
transactions  through T | explanations given to us, the
systam? i yes, the | company has a sysiem in place
implications of processing of | t¢  process  the  material
accounting fransactions | accounting fransactions through
outside T system on the | IT system {SAF) under various
integrity of the accounts ! modules such as Financial
along with the financial | Accountiing and  Controlling
implications, if any, may be | (FICQO), Sales and Distribuiion
stated. (S&D), Maferial Management
(MM, Payrolll Human Capital
Management {(HCM).
Accordingly, there are no
implications on the integrity of the
accounts.
2 | Whether there is any | According fo information and No action is No impact
restruciuring of an existing | explanations given to us, there is required
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| Whether funds  (grants/ |
subsidy etc.)  received/
receivable for speciic

schemes from Central/ State
governments or its agencies
were properly accounted for/
utiized as per its ferm and
conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

‘According to information and

explanations given to us, the
funds received/ receivable for

specific  schemes from the
central/ state government or iis
agencies were properly

accounted for/ utilized as per the
respective terms and conditions.

Continuation sheet

No actionis | No Impact

required

Sub-Directions

Nil

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 May 2023

For . P. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No. 000345N

SOV

Ankur Goyal
Partner

Membership No. 099443
UDIN 23099143BGPMWAZ2338
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Annexure ‘'C' to the Independent Auditor's Repord

{Referred io in paragraph 3(g) under "Report on other fegal and regulatory requirements’ section of the
tndependent Auditor's Report of even dale on the standalone financial statements of Energy Efficiency
Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023)

Report on the internal financial controls under clause {i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference io the standalone financial statements of
‘Energy Efficiency Services Limited’ ("the Company”) as at 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the company far the year ended on that date.

Management responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the company Is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over reporting criteria established by the company considering the
essential components of internal contro! stated in the “Guidance note on audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting” (the "Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia
{'ICAlM. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adharence {0 company's policles, the safeguarding of ils assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accourting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance nols on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting {the '‘Guidance Note’) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Instifute of Charered Accountants of India and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, boih issued by the Instifute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require thai we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference o standalone financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standaione financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference io standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
aperating effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We beilieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the company's internal financial controls system with reference to standalone
financial statements.
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feaning of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internal financial conirel with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's infernal financial control with reference o standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that {1} periain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary {o psrmit
preparation of standalone financial statements In accordance with generally accepied accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable assurance
regarding prevention or timely datection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial siatements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of colflusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due fo error or fraud may occur and not be detecied. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the intermal financial controls with reference to standalone financial staiements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statemenis may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
of procedures may deteriorate.

Cpinion

in our opinion, to the best of our infonmation and according o the explanations given to us, the company
has mainiained, in all material respecis, adeguate internal financial controls with reference to standslone
financial statements and such internal financial conirols with reference to standalone financial statements
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control with reference to standalone
financial statements criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the guidance note on "Audit of intemal financial conirols over financial reporting’ issued
by the Institute of Chariered Accountants of India’.

For S. P. Chopra & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

lgarﬂwwa
W

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 098143
Date: 30 May 2023 UDIN 23099143BGPMWA2398




S. P. CHOPRA & CO., Corporate Office

Chartered Accountants 1505, Astralis Supernova
Sector-94, Gautam Buddha Nagar

MNoida - 201 301

Phone 0120 - 4516921

wwr.spchopra.in

spel1848@spchepra.in

Compliance Ceriificate

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Energy Efficiency Services Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the directions/ sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 and certify that we have complied with all the directions/ sub-directions issued to us.

For S.P. Chopra & Co.
Charterad Accountants
Firm Regisfration No. CO0348N

= ,\_Wr‘é.;

Z

1

Je
““g“"w

- nkur Goyal
et S Pariner
i e Membership No.098143

Place; New Delhi
Dated: 30 May 2023

Registered Office — F-31 Connaught Place New Deifhi - 110 001 Tel: 81-11-23313486



ENMERGY EFTICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U40200DL2069PLC196789
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 ¥March 2023

(AR amounts in lakhs of T,except share dora and as stated otherwise)

Particulars Note As at As at L As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 1 Aoril 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,83,413.72 2,97.834,72 2.85383.04
Capital work-in-progress 4 1,21.466.59 1,05,524.25 1,20,540.07
Right-of-use assets 3 844.08 1,125.72 1.214.88
Intangibie asseis & 283.33 535.73 717.60
Investments in subsidiary and joint venture companies 7 45,964.48 37,068.31 28.109.87
Financial assets
Other investments 8 0.26 0.26 -
Loans g 437644 2.911.06 284.18
Other financial asssts 10 10,887.21 12,070.64 10,148.35
Deferred tax assets (net} 11 [5,509.98 7.396.20 699.41
Other non-current assets 17 224.81 5,611.24 1.921.10
" al non-current asseés 4,83,370.92 4,71,078.13 4,51,018.56
Current asseis
Inventories 13 13.484.63 1577127 201,387.15
Financial assets
Trade raceivables 14 31,77.860.23 3.50,061.12 3.09.835.07
Cash and cash equivalents 15 43.024.08 72,992.54 70.352.27
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 16 2102779 29.394.51 51,136.46
Loans i7 922,71 33817 132,92
Other financial assets I8 15,013.13 13,097.49 i8,623.06
Current tax assets (net) 1% 1,727 82 1.562.80 1,114.461
Other cwrent assets 20 33.833.26 43,120.68 48,117.37
Total current assels 5,06,893.67 §,28,538.68 5199229
Assets held for sale 63 1,799.28 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 9.92,063.87 9,99.616.81 9,70,941.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 21 1.3%.082.00 1,39,082.00 98,332.84
=tap equity 28] {40.988.37) (13,237.3%) 2,166.67
Al equity 98,693.63 1,25,824.65 1,00,499.51
Liabilities
Mon-current Eabilities
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 23 4,20.295.09 4,46,213.53 4.91,695.04
Lease liabilities 24 - 168.66 369.1¢
Trade payables 25
~total putstanding dues of micre and small enteprises 1,237.53 938.80 1,809.21
-total outstanding dues of ereditors other than 6,950.78 16,130.39 13.314.02
micro and small enterprises
(hher financiat liabilities 26 1,080.58 207596 4,304.82
Provisions 27 1,132.16 1,383.17 1,112.03
Other non-current Habilities 28 3.266.58 3,680.33 1,786.59
Total non-current Habilities 4,34,562.72 4,64,594.84 5,14,390.81

*



Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro znd small enterprises
~total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Total cierrent liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
* Restated (refer note 43)
Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes form an jntegral part of
standaione financial statements

= ™is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

For 5.P. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

WM &2 LA (o

Ankar Gayal Sreekant Kandikuppa
Partner Chairman
Membership No. 099143 DIN : 066135674

UDIN : 23099143BGPMWA2398

29
30
|

32
33
34

3to 63

Place @ New Delhi Vishal Kapogr

Daie : 30052023

Chief Executive Officer

2,76,107.03 2.48,022.54 1,77.028.57
168.66 294.93 167.12
10,339.57 8.689.33 8.030.59
99,104.35 91,427.10 1,04,215.89
55,278.31 49.923.36 56,227.69
18.147.38 10,563.11 10,128.92
62.54 68.98 3593
199,66 207.95 19642
4,59,407.52 4,09,197.32 3.56,051.15
9.92,063.87 9,99,616.81 9,70,941.47

N

DI - 08079013

r

’”~

umar Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Pooja Shukla
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Energy Efficiency Services Limited



ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U40200DL2009PLLCIF6T78D

Standalone Siatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amemis in lakhs of Texcept share data and as stated othervise)

Particulars Noie For the year ended For the vear eaded
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2822
[ncome
Revenue from operations 35 1,61,748.21 1,56,204.31
Cither income 36 5,997.84 5,258.56
Total income 1,67,746.0% 1,61,462.87
Expenses
Purchasc of stock-in-trade 5,165.27 11,842.22
Changes in mventory of stoek-in-trade 37 2,286.64 4,615.88
Employee benefits expense 38 5,585.65 3,529.69
Finance costs 39 47,934 82 30.070.61
Depreciation and amortisation expense 40 71,387.04 65.441.85
Other expenses 41 70,46529 56,581.03
Total expenses 20384477 1,83,184.28
Loss before fax (36,098.66) {21,718.41)
Tax expense 42
Current tax
-Current year 199.66 207.93
-Earlier years - 272
Deferved tax (8,52723) (6,606.15)
Totai tax {credifi/expense {8,327.59) (6,385.50)
Loss for the year 7.771.07) (15,332.91}
Crther compreheusive income
Items that witl not be reclassified to profit or loss (net of tax)
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 53.52 (121.76)
- Income tax relating to itern that will not be reclassified to profit or foss 13.4% (30.64)
Othey comprehensive income for the year, nef of income tax 40.05 (91.12)
Total comprehensive income for the vear {27,731.02) (15,424.63)
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of ¥ 10/~ cach) 52
Bagzic earnings per share {3) {2.00; {1.28)
Diiluted earnings per share (¥) {2.00) (126
* Restaed (refer note 43)
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes form an tategral part of standalone financial
statemenis It 63

This is the statement of profit and loss refesred to in cur report of even date

For 5.P. Chopra & Ce.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

GO

Awnkur Goyal Sreckant Kandikuppa
Pariner Chainman
Memberzhip No. 099143 DIN : 66615674

UDIN ; 23099143BGPMWAL398

Piage ; New Delli
Date 30052023

Director
DIN : 08079613

ﬁ/ o
;}){. mar Jain Pooja Shulkla

Chief Financial Officer Company Sacretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Energy Efficlency Servites Limited



ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:T02 0D L2009PLCTYETRY

Seapdalone Statement of ehanges in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
A amounts i akhs of € .except share dain tid as stated otherwise)

‘This is the statement of chanyes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For 5.F. Chopra & Cp.
Chantersd Accountants
Finn Registration Ne. 000346N

%,@mwﬁ”ﬁ
Ankw{.oyai/,/

Sreekant Kandikoppa
Partner Chairman
Membership No, G99 143 DIN : 06613674

UDIN 1 23059143RGPMWALISE

Tew Delhi
< AD0IN3

Place

Date Chief Execltive Qfficer

fj;‘;&;“{‘}#m & 0

Aditys-Tar
Director

(A) Equity share capitai®
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2022 Changes in Equity Share | Restated balanee | Changes in equity share capital] Balance as ai
Capital due tog prior as at 1 April 2022 during the year 31 Mareh 2023
period errors
1.35.082 00 1,39.082 60 b 1.39.082.00
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Balonce as st 1 April 2021 Changes in Equity Share | Restated balance { Changes ie equity share capital |  Balance as at
Capital due to prior | as at 1 April 2021 during the year 31 March 2022
periot errors
68,332.84 - 98,332.84 40,749.16 1,39,082.00
* Refier note 21
(B) Gther equity**
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Other
Reserves and surplus eomyprehensive
Particulars Income Total
Share application mogey l}ebentu.re Retained AEmearman
pending allotment L U earaings Sihet
reserve benefits plaay
Balagce as st 1 April 2022 - 7,000.00 {20,005,11) {138.06) {13,233.17)
Prior period ecrors - - {24.18) - {24.18)
Restated balance as at 1 Apri] 2022 - 7.000.00 §20,119.29) (138.06} (13,2587.535)
Loss for the year - - {(27,771.0%) - (27.771.07)
Other comprehensive income for the year {ne? of taxes) - - - 40,05 40.05
Transfer (tal/ftom retained esrmngs - (4,500,010} 4,500.00 - -
Balnnee as at 31 Mareh 2023 - 2,560.60 {43,390.36) {98.01) {40.988.37)]
For the year ended 31 plarch 2022
Other
Reserves and surplos comprehensive
Particaiars et Total
Share application money DR Betained Bemensurgnt
5 redemption 3 of defined
pending sllotment o eareings Jemefits plans
Balasce as at 1 April 2021 - 12,434.13 {10,433.17) {4634} 1,952.02
Prior period emrors - - 214.66 - 21466
Restaied balance as at 1 Apuil 2021 ~ 12,434,13 {10,220.51) (46.94) 2,166.68
[oas For the year - - {15,332.91) - (15,332.91}
Gther comprehensive income for the vear {net of taxes) - - H {%1.12) 91.12)
Share application money reseived 40,749.16 - - - 40,749.16
Shares allotted against share application money (40,749,163 - - - (40,749.16)
Transfer {to)/from retained camings N {3.434.13) 5.:434.13 - B
Balznce as at 31 March 2022 - 708000 (20.119.29) {138.05) {13.257.35]
¥ Refer note 22
Significam Accounting Policies 2}
The aceompanying notes formm an integral part of standalone financial statements It b5

DIN - 08079013

Chiel Financial Gfficer

o

Pooja Shukla

Far and en hehalf of the Board of Directors of Energy Efficiency Services Limited

100
[ VAN

Company Secretary



ENERGY EFFICTENCY SERVICES LIMITED

CIN:U40200D L2009PLCEIGTEY

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Mavch 2023
(.l cimoerits in lakhs of Tescept sharve date and as stated otherwise)

Particulars For the year ended [ar the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Cash flow from operafing activities
Loss before tax (36.698.66) {21,718.41)
Adjnstments for:-
Depreciation and ameortization expense 71,387.04 65,441.85
Finance costs 37.990.73 34,493,520
Allowance for doubtiul recejvables 11,775.03 5,642 89
Provision for interest variance 1,385.86 4,145.96
Provision for doubiful advances 2. 13822 852,27
Provision for shorizge in inventories 80.64 353.02
Less on sale of property. plant and equipment (net) 9.63 1351
Interest income {2,420.30) {1,872.89)
Loss on foreign currency ransactions and transiation {aet) 22 810.90 5,824.11
Grant income {1,24431) (807.74)
Liquidation damages recovered from vendors (447.40) (642.15)
Liabilities/excess provisions ne longer required, written back - (R.23%)
Operating profit before working cepital changes 1,07,367.38 91,717.79
Adjustments for:
Increase in Trade receivables (40,660.71) {49,701.58)
Decrease in Fnventories 2,206.00 4,262 86
Decrease in loans, other fnancial assets asnd other assets 7.608.39 3,508.15
ncrease{ Decrease) in trade payables, other financial Hahilitics and other 16,429.14 (11,732.40)
Increasef{Decrease) in provisions (203.93) 16241
Cast generated from operafions post working capital changes 92,746.27 38,217.23
Less: Income tax paidfirefund) {213.72) Trr41
MNet Cash generated from operating aclivities (A) 92,952,592 37,499,82
B Cash flow from isvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant aud equipment and intangible assets (including capital (61,294.04) {6%,733.98)
wark-in-progress and capital advance)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 10.43 0.71
Assets held for sale 1,799.28 -
Interest received 2,104.95 1,560.84
Investment in subsidiaries and joint venture companies (8,896.17) {8,958.70)
Loan given v subsidiary (net) {1,799.99) {3,000.00)
Invesiment in deposits with banks 8.362.51 21,864.03
Met Cash wsed in investing activities (B) (39,713.02) £37,267.10)
{ Cash flow from financiag activiiies
Proceeds from share capital - 40,749.16
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 55,597.70 52,890.58
Repayment of non-current bomowings 1,10,921.65} (72,235.97)
Proceeds / (repayments) of current borrowings {net) 3233576 38,189.47
Interest paid (42,176.24) {38,076.69)
Principal payiment of lease Habilities {204.96) (253.31)
Interest payment of lease Babilities £29.72) {56.01)
Net Cash {used)/geaeraied from financing activities () {65.485.11) 28,250.73
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+) (32.242.14) 1,443.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Mote 15) 72,692.34 70,552.27
Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents 2,273.68 996.83
Cash and cash equivalents at the ead of the year (Refer Wote 15) 43,024.08 72,9%92.54

* Restated {refer note 43}




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U4G260DL2009PLC196789

Naotes to the Stapdalene Staiement of Cash Flows (continued)
Al aimounts m lokhs of € except shave daia and as siated otherwise)

ay Cash and cash equivalents consists of balances with banks.
b} Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents:

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
Current accounts 25,837.11 4782094
Deposits with original maturity upte three months {(inciuding interest acerued) 17,186.97 25,171.60
Cash and cash equivalents as per nofe-13 43,024.08 72,5992.54

¢) Reconeiliation between the opening and closing balamces of the balance shest for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars Non-current Current Lcase liabilities  Inferest acerued on
berrowings* borrowings™* borrowings***

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 3,30,658.64  1,43,577.43 463.61 4,657.85

Cash flow during the year {55,323.95) 3233576 {324.67) (42,176.24)

Non-cash changes due to:

- Variation in exchange rates 25,225.99 - - -

- Interest acorued - - 29.72 42.438.10

- Transaction cost on borrowings (71.73) - - i32.13

Clesing balance as at 31 March 2023 5,20,488.95  1,75,913.1% 168.66 5071.86

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Opening balance as ai 1 April 2021 5.63,335.64  1,05,38797 536.22 633491

Addition in lease liabifities - - 263,78 -

Cash flow during the year (19,335.39) 38,189.46 {314.83) {38,076.69)

Non-cash changes due to:

- Variation in exchange rates 6,774.43 - - -

- Interest acerued - - 56.01 36,290.10

- Modification in leases - - {(19.57) -

- Transaction cost on borrowings {115.08) - - 109,53

Closing balance as at 31 Mareh 2022 5,50,658.64 14357743 463.61 4,657.85

* includes current makurities of non-current borrowings, refer note 29.
#* Inflows/outflows from current borrowings have been presented on et basis,
*## jncludes commitment fees payable
o) Refer note 43 ( ¢) (1) for details of undrawn borrowing facilities that may be available for future operating activities and 1o settle
capital commitments.
) The above staiement of cash flows has been prepated under 'Tndirect Method' as set out in TND AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral Jwés
part of standalone financial statements

This iz the statement referred to in our report of even date
For 8.7. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000346N

——

Ankur Goyal

Partner

Membership Mo. 099143

UDIN @ 23099143BGPMWAZ393

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Energy Lificiency Serviees Limited

é’?f ( k(-wv/

Ad;tya ar
Dirgetor
DIN : 08079013
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Sreeliant Kandikuppa
Chairman
DIN . 96615674

W@q

Poaja Shakla
Company Secretary

MNew Deiili

Place

Trate Chief Executive Officer ChiefFinancial Officer




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: UG40260D1.2009PLC196789
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023

i. Company information

Energy Efficiency Services Limited (the “Company™) is a Company domiciled and incorporated in India (CIN:
U40200DL2009PLC196789). The address of the Companys registered office is NFL Building, 5th & 6th Floor, Cote
—III, SCOPE Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi- 110003. The Company has its debt securities listed on BSE Limited.

The Company is a Joint Venture of NTPC Limited, Power Finance Corporation Limited, Rural Electrification
Corporation Limited and Power Grid Corporation of India Limited under the Minisiry of Power. The Company is
engaged in implementation of energy efficiency projects as an Energy Saving Company (ESCO). It acts as the resource
center for capacity building for State Distribution Companies (DISCOMSs), Energy Regulatory Commissions (ERCs).
State Development Authorities (SDAs), upcoming BESCOs, financial institutions, etc.

The standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved for issue by Board of Directors
on 30 May 2023.

2. Significant acconnting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given
below, These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.
The Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions of Ind AS 16 and ind
AS 38 retraspectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the
date of transition to Ind AS. Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as
per the previous GAAP as at 1 April 2015, i.e. the Company’s date of iransition to Ind AS, were maintained on
transition to Ind AS.

2.1. Basis of preparation

(i} Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounting and
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companjes {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 {to the extent notified and applicable) and
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1556.

(ii} Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for:

¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair vatue (refer

accounting policy regarding financial insiruments); and

»  Plan assets in the case of employee defined benefit plans that are measured at fair value.
The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in notes to the financial statements.
Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to acquire
assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation, or at the
arnounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(iif) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is the Company’s functional currency. All
[mancial information presented in ¥ has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two decimals), except as stated
otherwise.
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(iv) Current and non-cnrrent classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-cutrent classification.
An asset is current when it is:
¢ Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
s Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
=  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
s iis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
o There is no unconditional right to defer setilement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-curretit.

Deferred tax assets/liabilitics are classified as non-current.
2.2, Property, plant and equipment

() TInitial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less
accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management,

Project Development Cost incurred on ESCO Model Energy Efficiency Projects undertaken by the Company are
recognized as property, plant and equiptnent.

Project Development Cost includes purchase price, taxes and duties, labor cost and any other costs di rectly atiribuiable
to the implementation of the project or acquisition of property, plant and equipment are allocated on systematic basis
on implementation of projects, incurred up to the date when the asset is ready for its intended use.

When parts of an itern of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are recognized separately.

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be affected, capitalization is
done on a provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final settlement.

(ii) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably,

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced pat is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or Toss as incurred.

{iii) Decommissioning costs
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset afier its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition eriteria for a provision are met.

e £
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{iv) Derecognition

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no fitture economic benefits are expected from their use or upon
their disposal. Gains and losses on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal, if any, with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

{v) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of profit and 1oss on pro rata basis on Straight Line Method using the rate
arrived on useful lives of assets, specilied in part C of Schedule II thereto of the Companies Act 2013 (the 'Act),
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Estimated nsefil lives of the assets, based on technical assessment, are as follows:

Nature of assets Life of property, plant and eguipinent

Project equipment 3-10 vears

Solar plant 25 years B
Smart meter 8-10 years

Public chargers 10 years

E-Vehicles 5-8 years ]
Building 30 years

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers __ 3 years

Cell phones _ ) 2 years -
Residential assets 3 years

Leasehold improvetments are depreciated on straight line basis over lower of 3 years and their initial agreement period
unless the entity expeacts to use the asset beyond the lease term.

Depreciation method, useful kives and residnal values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year is charged on pro-rata
basis from/up to the month in which the asset is available for use/disposed of.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to increase/decrease in long term
liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, the unamortized balance of such asset is charged off prospectively over
the remaining useful life determined following the applicable accounting policies relating to depreciation/
arnoertization,

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred wiil flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a PPE along-with its unamortized depreciable
amount is charged off prospectively over the revised useful life determined by technical assessment.

The Company considers the residoal value of project equipment of  160.

2.3.Capital work-in-progress

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of matsrials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and borrowing costs,

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they are ready for their
intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related assets.

If the ESCO Model Energy Efficiency project doesn't matetialize, then the expenditure incurred in respect of the same
is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in that year.
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2.4. Intangible assets

{i) Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are recognized at cost. Subsequent
measurement is done at cost less accnmulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any
directly attributable incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for their intended use. - ’

(if) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits deriving from the cost incarred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

(iii) Derecogaition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their
disposal. Gains and losses on derecognition of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal, if any, with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

{iv) Amortisation

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of legal right to
use or 3 years, whichever is less.

The amortization period and the amortization method of intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.

2.5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist oft

(a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial
Instruments’;

(b) finance charges in respect of leases recognized in accordance with Ind A8 116 — ‘Leases” and

{¢) exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are dirscily attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as

part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are

assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing costs

incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a

qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of general

borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition or construction of the qualifying asset.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when

substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Other

borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

The borrowing cost proportionate to the unutilized amount of borrowings are being kept for utilization of qualifying

assets being carried forward for capitalization in the subsequent year of utilization.
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2.6, Inventories

Inventories are valuad at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incwred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a
FIFO basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and non-moving items of stores and spares is
ascertained on review and provided for.

2.7.Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three mouths or [ess, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.8. Government grants

Government grants related to assets are recognized initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received, and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Grants that
compensate the Company for the cost of an asset are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the related asset. Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized over the period in
which the related costs are incurred and deducted from the related expenses.

2.9, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is tecognized if, as a resuli of a past event, the Company has a present legal or consiructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due fo the passage of time is recognized
as & finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable Is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement wil! be received, and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement,

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past evenis and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of ene or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed #s a contingent Hability, unless the probability of outflow of economic beunefits is remote.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed based on judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management astimate,

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or mors uncertain futurs events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable based on
Jjudgment of management. These are assessed centinvally to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the financial statements.
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2.10, Foreign curreacy transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the prevailing exchange rates at the date the transaction first
gualifies for recognition,

Monstary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated by applying the RBI reference rate at
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on setilement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss in the year in which it arises with the exception that exchange differences on long term monetary items related
to acquisition of property, plant and equipment recognized up to 31 March 2016 and still outstanding are adjusted to
carrying cost of property, plant and equipment.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency and are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. In case of advance consideration received or paid in a foreign currency, the date of
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on iritial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it), is when the Company initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the payment or veceipt of advance consideration.

2.11. Revenue

The Company’s revenues arise from sale of goods and rendering of services related to energy efficiency and
consultancy. Other income includes interest from banks, employees and customers, management fee income, gnarantee
fee income, other miscellaneous income, etc.

(i} Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or is expected to be
received in exchange for the products or services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
Company recognizes revenue wher (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as)
control over the products or services is transferred to a customer.

(ii} Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the services and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied and after confination
from clients/customers, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the services is transferred to a customer.

The revenue recognition in respect of the various streams of revenue is described as follows:

s Energy efficiency services:
Revenuc from rendering of energy efficiency services by supply and installation of streetlights, agricultural pumps
and other equipment is recognized over time as the customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
ptovided by the Company.

o Consultancy services:
Revenue from consultancy services rendered is recognized over time based on satisfaction of performance
obligations over time as the customers simultaneously receive and consumne the benefits provided by the Company.
Income on consultancy contracts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion was assessed by reference to actual
progress/technical assessment of work execated, in line with the terms of the respective contracts.

Contract modifications

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope
or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts invelves assessing whether the services added to an
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not
distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catchup basis, while those that are distinet are accounted for prospectively,
either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of
the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.
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{iiDy Other income

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on a time
proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate, using the effective interest rate
method {EIR).

For debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

The interest/surcharge on late payment/overdue trade receivables for sale of energy is recognized when no significant
uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists,

2.12. Employee benefits

{i) Defined coniribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will
bave no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized as an employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period during which
services are rendeted by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in future payments is available.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due after more than 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

The Company pays fixed contribution at the predetermined rates in the providant fund scheme,

The Company has a trust for Contributory Superannuation Scheme which provides pension benefits and Company
pays a fixed contribution to the trust,

The contributions to both the fumds for the year are recognized as expense and are charged to the statement of profit
and loss,

(i) Defined benefit plans

A detined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan, The Company’s
liability towards gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The Company contributes to (Life Insurance
Corporation of India) a fund set up by the Company and administered by a board of trustees with respect to its gratuity
obligation.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have camed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian goverment securities as at the reporting date that
kave maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations snd that are denominated in the same
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit methnd. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognised past
service costs and the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. An economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realizable during
the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they arise.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is
recognized in profit or less on a straight-line basis over the average period uniil the benefits become vested, To the
extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss.

—
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(iif) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashrnent constitute other long-term employee benefit.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of leave encashment is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting
date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The caleulation is performed
using the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
in the period in which they arise.

{iv) Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided.

A Hability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.13. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized
in OCI or equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
arounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation puaposes. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be epplied to temportary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to ftems recognized
directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity respectively.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Additional income faxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized while the liability to pay the related
dividend is recognized.

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses whether the tax authority is likely
to accept an uncertain tax treatment. I it concludes that the tax authority is unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of the uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is recognizad.
The effect of the uncertainty is recognized using the method that, in each case, best retlects the outcome of the
uncertainty: the most likely outcoms or the expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to consider
each uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other uncertain fax treatments, based
on the appreach that best prefixes the resolution of uncertainty.

2.14. Leases
At inception of a contract, the Comparty assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys fhe right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:
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» the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has 2
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

+  the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughouwt the
period of use; and

# the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either:

o the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
< the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the consideration

in the contract to each lsase component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

(i) Where the Company is a lessze
The Compaty recognizes a right-of-use assot and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it
is a lessee, except for leases with a term oftwelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases for low value underlying
assets. For these short-term and leases for low value underiving assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incwred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the sitz on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straighi-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-cf-use assets are determined cn the same basis as those of property, plant and cquipment. In addition, the right-
of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, If any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the eommencenient
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, ifthat rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental
borrowing rate is nsed.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
« fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
» variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initiaily measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residuaf value guarantee; and
»  the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for
satly termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early,
The lease liabitity is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a cotresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset or is recorded in statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reducad to zero.
The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as a separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.
The Group has elected to use the recognition exemptions for short-term and low value leases as per Ind AS 116.
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{il} Where the Company is a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantiaiiy all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantiaily all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized as income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables (Finance lease receivables’) at the
Comparny’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods te reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.15.  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal and its
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™, or “CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recaverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in staternent of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of
{GUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in priot periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment foss had been recognized.

2.16. Operatling segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information are
identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments
and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker’
or “CODM" within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be aflocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses, finance expenses and
inceme tax expenses.

Revenue directly attributable to the segments is considered as segment revenue. Expenses directly attributable to the
segments and common expenses allocated on a reasonable basis are considered as segment expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets other than goodwill.

Sepment assets comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, trade and other receivables, inventories and
other assets that can be directly or reasonably allocated to segments. For the purpose of segment reporting, propetty,
plant and equipment have been allocated to segments based on the extent of usage of assets for operations attributable
to the respective segments. Segment assets do not include investments, income tax assets, capital work in progress,
capital advances, corporate assets and other current assets that cannot reasonably be allocated to segments.

PRA £ 3




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 Mareh 2023

Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities in respect of a segment and consist principally of trade and other
payables, employee benefits and provisions. Segment Habilities do not include equity, income tax liabilities, loans and
borrowings and other liabilities and provisions that cannot reasonably be allocated to segments.

2.17. Dividends
Dividends and intetim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the
period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors respectively.

2.18. Material prior peried crrors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods
presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the opening balances
of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

2.15. Earmings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Corpany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share
and aiso the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all difutive
potential equity shares,

2.20. Statement of cash flows
Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 Statement of cash

flows.

2.21. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial Hability or equity

instrument of another entity.
(i} Financial assets

Initial recognition and measuremeni

The company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured al transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of tinancial assets,
which are not at fair valus through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition,

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

(b) Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPT) on the principal amoant outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR methad.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The

losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to

trade and other receivables




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U40200DL2009PLC196789
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair Value through OCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

{b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair

value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCL However, the Company recognises interest income,

impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or foss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition

of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI s Teclassified from the equity to statement of profit

and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, s classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Investments

Equity investments in subsidiary and joint venture companies are measured at cost, less impairment if any.

Other equity investments are measured at fair value. The Company decides to classify the equity investments ejther as
at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Equity ipstruments included within the FVTPL category are measuted at fair value with all changes recognized in the
profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a {inancial asset or pari of 2 Company of similar financial agsets) is
primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:
« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flaws in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; and
either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In sccordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recogaition of impairment loss on the following financial asscts and credit risk exposure:

{a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost €.g., loans, debt sscurities, deposits
and bank balance.

(b) Receivables, unbilled revenue and contract assets under Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 116.

For {rade receivables and unbilled revenue, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109

Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the

recetvables. ; SR
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Notes to the standzlone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit visk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL
is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since inftial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based
on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/ income in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and
loss.

(it} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measursment
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable fransaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and

retention meney.

Subseqguent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Finaneial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequent!y measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the Habilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings, trade payables and other cantractual
lisbilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by [nd-AS 109,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the eriteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently
transferred fo the statement of profit and loss. Flowever, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

»

.v’,
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(iii) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

222, Other expenses
Expenses on annual maintenance, legal & professional consultancy, training & recruitment etc. are charged to
statement of profit and loss in the year incurred.

2.23. Related party transactions
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

2.24.  Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may
impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related
disclosures concerning the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The
estimates and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable and
prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financia! statements, information about significant areas of estimation,
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements is as under:

{0 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company estimates the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of
the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset. The useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are also based on estimates and
assumptions regarding the expected market outlook and futwe cash flows. Any changes in these assumptions may
have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment.

(i)  Impairment of nou-financial assets

The recoverable amount of investroent in subsidiary and joint venture companies is based on estimates and assumptions
regarding in particular the future cash flows associated with the operations of the investee Company. Any changes in
these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in
impairtnent.

(iii) Revenues

The Company applies judgements that affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from coniracts
with customers. The Company also applies judgement to determine whether each product or service promised to a
customer are capable of being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or
services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. The Company allocates the consideration to
separately identifiable performance obligation deliverables based on their relative stand-alone selling price. Rebates
and discounts, if any, are recognized as a reduction from revenue based on management estimates.
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{iv) Provision for expected credit less (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and coniract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company calibrates the matrix to
adjust the historical credif loss experience with forward-looking information. At every repotting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in civcumstances and of forecast economic conditions, The Company’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also nof be representative of customer’s actual default in the

future.

{v)  Leases not in legal form of lease

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Tdentification
of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
{including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether
the Company Is reasonably certain to exercise an option ic extend a leass, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
iease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise
the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term
if there is o change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the ineremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portiolio of Ieases with similar characteristics.

(vi) Post-employment benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured based on actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal
rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discouni rates, the rate of salary increases and the
discount rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate and
documented. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations,

{vil) Provisions and coniingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accerdance with Ind A8
37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the Tikelihood of the contingent
events has required best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should
circumstances change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

{viii} Income taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing
of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results
and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income
and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, The amount of
such provisicns is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority,
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in lakhs of Texcept share data and as stated otherwise)

4 Capital work-in-progress

As at 31 Maveh 2023
Particnlars As at Additioas Capitalised / As at
1 April 2022 adjusted 31 Mareh 2023
Buildings - 9,740.59 - 9.740.39
Plant & Machinery
ESCQO projects 5909723 9,902.15 7.544.32 61,455.08
Solar plant 16,032.18 14,411.33 12,687.85 17,755.66
Smart Meter 27.821.72 39,787.44 37.230.50 3037826
Public chargers 257310 241.15 677.25 2,137.00
Total 1,05,524.28 74,082.60 58,140.32 1,21,466.59
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars As at Additions Capitalised / As at
i April 2021 adjusted 31 March 2822
Plant & Machinery
ESCO projects 60,425.23 20,341.72 21,669.70 59.097.25
Solar plant 32.387.80 9.626.74 23.982.36 16.032.18
Smart Meter 26,245.44 29,889.24 28.312.96 27.821.72
Public chargers 1,481.60 148439 302,89 2,573.10
Total 1,20.540.07 61,342.0% 76,357.91 1.05,524.23

a) The borrowing cost propertionate te the unutilised 2mount of borrowings for qualifying assets is carried forward for capitalization in the year of
its utilization. However, income earned on temporary invesoment of the bomowings is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. During the year, the Company has capitalised employee benefit expenses amounting to ¥ $32.52 Lakhs (31 March 2022: T 1,910.79
Lakhs) and other expenses amounting to € 1,291.01 Laths (31 March 2022: ¥ 1,237 97 Lakhs) which are directly artributable to assets.

b) The Company is in process of assessment of assets held under capital work-in-progress available for use but perding capitaiisation/ recognition of
revenue fo that extent, dus to non-receipt of completion certificate from the customers, Obtaining of peading completion certificates is nnder
active follow-up with the customers and same will be capitalized on receipt thereof,

¢) The Capital work-in-progress inclides inventory of capital items of T 51,062.93 Lakhs held with the Company as at 31 March 2023 (31 March
2022; ¥ 46,227.83 Lakhs).

d) The details/ components of project wise work/ components appearing uader capital work-in-progress are under preparation/ compilation in view
of number of contracts of farge quantities consisting of small items, hence the assessment of stage of completion of such small quantities could not
be ascertained due to lack of complete information of its installation from the contractors/ vendors. Appropriate steps have been initiated to
coulpile those details to suitably capitalise these items project wise.

) Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress

As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Amourd for a peried of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years Meore than 3 years
Projects in Progress 62,790.53 30,193.7C 5,758.51 18.721.85 1,21,466.39
Projects temporarily suspended - - = - -
Total 62,790.53 30,195.70 5,758.51 18,721.85 1,21,466.39
As at 3] March 2022
Particulars Amount for a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years lore than 3 years
Projects in Progress 51,474.73 20,909.26 12,784.51 20,333.75 1,05,524.25

Projects tempotarily suspended - S =
Total 31,474.73 20,909.26 12,784.51 20,355,758 1,85,524.25




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U40200DEL2009PLC196789

Notes to the standalone fnancisl statements for the year 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in lakhs of € except share data and as stated othiervise)

fy Completion schedale whose completion is overdue or has excesded its cost compared to its original plan:

As at 31 Mareh 2023

FParficulars Aunvunt for a period of Total
Less éhan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mere than 3 years
Projects in Progress
Completion iz overdue - = =] = ®
Exceeded its costs 1o its original plan: - = @ - -
Projects temporarily suspended
Completion is overdue: - - = = s
Exceeded its costs to its original plan: - - - . =
Total - = - - -

As gt 31 March 2022

Partiealars Amount for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in Progress
{ompletion 15 gverdue = - g . R
Exceeded its costs to ity otiginal plan: - - - s -

Projects temporasily suspeaded

Completion is overdue: - - o 1 3
Exceeded its costs to ifs original plan: - . - . =
Tatal - - = £ -

As per the information available, there is no project of which the completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as at
the date of the financial statements.
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITEDR
CIN:U40200D1.2009P1L.C196789

Hotes to the standalone fipancial statements for the year 31 Mareh 2023
(Al amonnis in lokhs of T except share data and as stated otheiwise)

7 Investments in subsidiary and joint venture eompanies (Non-Current)

Parficulars As at As at
31 March 2023 3t March 2022

Equity instruments - Unquofed {fully paid up - usless otherwise stated, at cost)

Subsidiaries

EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited 3328147 3328147

35,745,680 (31 Muarck 2022: 35,745,680) equity shares of £1 cach

EESL Energy Sotutions LLC 1833 1833

87 (31 March 2022; 87} equity shares of AED 1,000 ¢ach

Convergence Energy Services Limited 5,921.01 1,000.061

59,210,100 (31 March 2022: 10,000,100} equity shares of 10/ each
Joint venhure company

Inteismart Infrastrocture Private Limited 6,762.00 2,768.50

67,620,049 (31 March 2022: 27,685,049) equity shares of T10/- each

45,982.81 37,068.31

Less: Impairment on investment EESL Enerey Solutions LLC (18.33) -
Total 4596448 37.068.31
Aggregate amount of unquoted invesiments 4596448 37,068.31
Aggregate amount of impairment in valoe of investments 18.33 -

a) Invesiments have beea valued as per accounting policy a0 2.21, Equity investment in subsidinries and joint venture company are
measured at cost as per the provisions of nd AS 27 on 'Separate Financial Statements', considering the investment being long tenm
strategic investment

bj The Company had invested T [8.33 Lakhs during the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and acquired 29% equity stake in a pewly
formed Company EESL Energy Solutions LLC with management control. The JV partners in the meeting held on 27 March 2023
have agreed to liquidate the company afler the approval by the Board of the respective JV partners and also the Board of the company
which s under process.

©) The Company during the year has further invesied ¥ 4,921.00 Lakhs (31 March 2022+ T [,000.0C Lalkhs) in its wholly owned
subsidiary namely Convergence Energy Services Limited by acquiring 4,92,10,000 equity shares at a par vafue of € 10/- per shars,

d) The Company during the year has further invested T 3,993.50 Lakhs (31 March 2022- T 1,808.10 Lakhs) in fts joint venture namely
Intellismart Infrastructure Private Limited by acquiring 39,935,000 equity shares st 2 par value of 2 10/ per share against right issue.

¢) EESL Energy Pro Assets Limited has accunulated losses of € 2,952.23 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 2,562.74 Lakhs), Convergence
Energy Services Limited hias accumulated Josses of T 2,820.54 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 1,230.35 Lakhs) and EESL Energy
Solutions LLC has accumulated losses of ¥ 68.93 Lakhs (31 Macch 2022 ¥ 39.90 Lalchs) as at reporling date. However, being
strategic investments and censidering the long term nature of these investments, there i no permanent impaimment in the value of
shates as on date, except EESL Sotution LLC where Company has recognised impairment Joss amounting tc 2 18.33 Lakhs,

) Details of investments;

Particuiars Proportion of ewaership interest (%)
Asat Asat
31 March 2823 31 March 2022
Investment in subsidiary company:
EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited (incorporated in United Kingdom) 86.80% 86.80%
ELSL Energy Sohwticas LLC (incorporated in United Arab Emirates) 29.00% 29.00%
Cenvergence Energy Services Limited (incorporated in India) 146.00% 100.00%

[wvestment in joint venture company:
Intellismart Infrastructure Private Limited (incorporated in India) 49 00% 49 00%




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LEMITED
CIN:U40200DL2809P1L.C196738

Notes o the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(AN amounts in lakhs of T except share data and as stated otherwise}

& Other investments {(Non-Current)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Investment in fully paid up unquoted equity instruments
{measured at Fair value through profit and loss)

NEESL Private Limited 0.26 0.26
2,600 (31 March 2022: 2600) equity shares of T10/- each
Totak 026 0.26
Aggregate amouont of naguoted investments 0.26 026

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

a) Refer note 44 for disclosures related to fair valuation.

b) During the previons year, the Company's sharcholding in its joint venmure namely NEESL Private Limited has reduced from 26% to

2.21% as the joint venture parteer has introduced fresh equity in the joint venture company. It resulted into reduction in shareholding
and i terms of the joint venture agreement, the Company has lost joint control of NEESL Private Linited, which is yet to be ratified
by EESL., Further, the said investment is carried at cost considering the value of investment is nominal.

9  Loans {(Non-current}

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2822

Loan to Subsidiary Company (refer note (a) below)

Unsecured, considered good 4,808.64 3,008.65

Less: Current matutities of loan (Refer note 17) 77223 38536

Sub-total 4,036.41 2,62329
Lean to employees (including interest accrued}

Secured, considered good (refer note {b) below) 27538 21422

Unsecured, considered good 64.67 73.35
Total 4,376.46 2.911.06

2} During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has given an unsecured loan of ¥ 2,390 Lakhs ( March 31, 2022 ¥ 3,000.00
Lakhs) to Convergence Energy Services Limited, 2 subsidiary company. The loan carries interest rate of 7.80% p.a. payable on half
yearly basis and is repayable in seven annual instalments starting from 31 March 2023 as stipufated in the agreement.

) House building loan and vehicle loan to employees are secured against the mortgage of house properties and hypothecation of
vehicles respectively for which such loans have been given, as per policy of the Company.

¢ Refer note 48 for the zelated pary disclosurss.
d) Refer note 44 for dizclosures related to fair valnation.
) Refer note 45 for details with respect to credit risk.

19 Other fivancial assets (Non-carrent)

Partteulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Uinbilied revenue (Refer Note 53(d) & 60(1)) 3000 192,48
Security deposits - 13524
Lease receivables 10.815.69 11,706.61
Depcsits with banks {including imerest accrued) 1.82 1.71
Earuiarked batancss with banks (including interest accrued)
Deposits held as margin money for letter of eredit and bank 3561 3254
guarantees
Deposits held as security with government authorities 3.09 2.06
10.887.21 12.670.64




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U40200DL2009PLC196789

Notes o the standalene financin} statemenis for the year 31 March 2023
(All ameunnes i lakhs of Texcept share data and as stated othervise)

11

Deferred tax assets (net)

Particalars Agat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Tax effect of items coustituting deferred tax asseis

Unabsorbed losses/depreciation carried forward 13,121.84
Timing difference on account of expense allowsble on paynient basis 10,443.74
Others 8.05
23,573.63
L.ess: Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liahilities
Difference between accounting base and tax base of property, plant and 7.253.60
equipment
Financial assets and liabilitics measured at amortised cost 410,035
7,663.63
Net deferved tax assets 15,909.98

a) Refer note 42 for disclosures as per Ind AS 12 Income Taxes.

b} Deferred tax assets of 7 8,527.25 lekhs (31 March 2022: T 6,666.15 Lakhs) has been recognised in the sratement of Profit & loss and
T (13.47) Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 30.64 Lakhs) Lakbs in other comprehensive income during the year, as the management based on

1z

13

a} Inventory items have been vained at lower of cost or net realisable value as per accounting policy po.2.6.

theit projection is confident that the taxable profit is achicvable in near fenure.

Other non-current asseis

7,496.58
6,766.90
16.7]
14,280.19

6,071.76

81223

6,883.99
7.396.20

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 Maych 2622
Unsseured, considered good
Capital Advances
~Capital advances to related parties (Refer note 48 ¢d)) 224 81 762.80
~Capital advances to othezs - 3,834.77
Prepaid expenditure - 13.67
Total 224.81 6,611.24
Inventories
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Stock in trade 1391829 16,124.29
Less: Provision for shortage in inveniories 433,65 333.02
Total 13,481.63 13,771.27

b} Inventories have been pledged a3 scourity for borrewings, for details refer noie 29,
¢) The cost of inventories recognised as expense for the year ended 31 March 2023 is T 7.451.9] Lakhs (31 March 2022: T 16,461.04

Lakhs (incinding T 2.94 Lakhs as Business Promotion)).

d) The write dowsn of inveniories to net tealisable value amounting to T 639.21 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 637.39 Lakhs) has besn
recogaised as m expense during the year and included in changes in nventory of stock-in-rade in statement of profit and logs.

@) The Company does not have any goods in fransit,
[) Reports of sales and purchase orders issued during the year, stores ledger depicting itemised inventory ledgers showing its receipt and
issues could not be generated from SAP due to technical issne. However, the Company has carried out the inventory valuation based

on balances extracted from SAP and valued it as per the accounting policy,




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

CIN;U43200D L2008 PELC19678Y

Noies to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(A1l amaunts in lakhs of €.except share data and as stated othervise)

12 Trade receivables

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Considered good — Unsecuréd 3.92,096.34 3,51,804.41
Trade receivables — credit impaired 23.151.2% 22,393.22
Sub-total 4,15,247.63 3,74,287.63
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 25.194.65 13,419.62
Less: Provision for interest variane 12,192.75 10,805.89
Total 3,77.860.23 3,50.661.12

2) Refer note 45 for details with respect to credit risk.
b) Amounts receivables from related parties are disclosed innote 48.
¢} Trade receivahles have been pledged as security for borrowings, for details refer note 29.

4} Based on agreements entered with the customers, the receivables have besn discounted with the Bank. Accordingly, trade receivables

bave been disclosed nei of bills discounted amounting o % 3,789.87 Laldhs (31 March 2022 : ¥ 7524.73 Lalhs). Refer note
53(bI(vii).

¢} Refer note 60(]) for trade receivable ageing.
f) Trade receivables, primarily consisting of dues recoverable from various government bodies/ ULBs, has accumulated to €

4,15,247.83 Lakhs as st 31 March 2023 (% 3,74,287.63 lakhs as at 31 March 2022). The company has estimated the amount of ECL
ot the basis of the methodology eardier followed by an appointed external agency for assessment/ evaluation of credit risk based on
factors such as ageing of dues, specific credit circtmstances, nature and credit weorthiness, historical payment behaviour etc. On the
Dasis thereof, Expected Credit Loss (ECL) of € 11,775.03 lakbs has been created during the year wsulting in cumulative ECL of €
25.104.65 lakbs as at 31 March 2023 (¥ 13,419.62 lakhs as at 31 March 2022).

The compamy is actively pursuing/ following up for the vecovery of dues under trade receivables with the stpport of various
stakeholders including the administrative ministry and is confident of recovery of these dues as these are mainly from various

government agencies, hence the aforesaid provision is considered adequats by the management.

15 €Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars A at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Balances with banks
Current accounts 25,837.11 47,820.94
Deposits with original maturity upto thres months (including interest 17.186.97 25,171,60
agerued)
Total 43,024.08 7289254
a) There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting and previous year.
16 Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months aad maturing 51.53 16,848.14
within one year (including fiterest aconizd)
Earmarked balances with banks (including interest accruedy
Deposit against standby letter of credit issusd with respect to term loan 19,7017 12,360.83
facility avaifed by EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited
Deposits held as margin money for letter of credit and bank guarantees 1,273.7% 183.94
Dieposits held as security with government authorities 0.76 [.60
Total 21,027.79 29,394.51




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

CIN:IE0200DL2009P 1196738

Notgs to the standalone [nancial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(Al amounty in lakhs of T.except share data and as stated otherwise)

17 Current loaas

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Laoan to Subsidiary Company {refer note 9)
Unsecured, considered good

Loan to employees (including interest accrued)
Secured, considered good (refer a below)
Unsecured, considered good

Totat

77223

4297
[87.51

£22.71

38336

3455
118.26

53817

a) House building loan and vehicle foan to employees are secured against the morigage of house properties and hypothecation of
vehicles respectively for which such loans have been given, as per policy of the Company.

8 Other financial assets (Curreat}

Particulars Asat Asat
31 Barch 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled revenue (Refer Note 55(d) & 60{* 10,606.70 B8,302.68
Lease receivabies 3.583.93 3,1041.80
Recoverable from related party (Refer Note 48} 77543 3,206.48
Security deposits® 647,07 435847
QOther recoverables - 29.06
Credit impaired 178.10 178.18
Less: Allowances for doubtful recoverabies (178.10) (178,10)
Total 15,613.15 15!9_97.49
*Refer note 44 for disclosures related to fair valaation
19 Carrent tax asseis (net}
Barticnlars Az at Asat
31 March 2623 31 March 2822
Advance tax {net of provision for tax) 1,727.82 1,562.90
Total 1,727.82 1.562.90
20 Other current assets
Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023

31 March 20232

Balance with government austhorities
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecurad, cousiderad doubiful
Less: Provision for doubtfil receivabics

Advances oiber than capital advance
-Advances to Related party {Refer Note 48)
-Advarnces tof Recoverables from suppliers

Unsecured, comsidered good

Unsecured, considered doubiful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances
-Advance 1o employees

Unsecuted, considered gond

Unsecured, considerad doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtfil advances

Deposits paid under protest (Refer Note 53 (e}(ip)
Prepaid expenditure
Prepaid assets-surplus of plas assets®

Total

* Refer note 49 for disclosurs as pev Ind AS 19 on 'Employee Benefits',

-

£

4

i

18.624.52
115

(1.15)
18,624.52

1,935.48

6,622.49
2,806.55
(2.806.55)

35.86
7.64
(7.64)

3,060528
1,518.23
79.40

15,208.74
-33.833.26

23,043.16
115
{1.15)

23,043.16

2,360.60

10,593.53
67435
(674.35)

73.79
f.61
(1.613

4.868.15
2.181.45

20,677.52

43,120.68




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LEMITED
CIN:U402¢0DL200YPLCIO6789

Wotes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(A anounis in lakhs of except share duta and e xinded otherwise)

21 Share capital

Particulars As 2t 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022

No. of shares Amonnt No. of shares Amgnnt
Authorised
Equity shares of par value 2107 each 350,00,00,600 3,30,000.00 350,00,00,000 3,50,008.00
Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of par value 10/~ each 1,39,08,20,000 1,39,082.00 1,39,08,20,000 1,39,082.00

a) Movements in equity share capital:

Particulars As at 331 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022

Ng. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,35,08,20,000 1,39.082.00 98,33,28,350 98,3384
Add: Shares issued during the year - - 40,74.91,650 40,748,165
Balauce #¢ the end of the year 1,39,08,20,000 1,3%.082.00 1,39,08,20,000 1,39,082.00

b} The Company has neither issued any bonus shares nov issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the five years immediately preceding
the current financial year, The Company has also not bought back any shares during the same perind.

¢) Terms and rights atiached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having 2 par value of T 10~ per share. The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time, voting rights proportionate to their share holding at the meetings of sharehalders and share in the proceeds of winding
up the Company in proporton 1o the nwnber of and amounis paid on the shares held. No dividend has been paidiproposed to be paid to the

shareholders during the year 202223 (2021-22: NiD).

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the Company:

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares Yeage holding Ne. of shares Yoage hoiding
Powe1Grid Corporation of India Limited 46.35,10.000 3333% 46,36,10,000 33.33%
MWTPC Lirited 44,36,16,000 33.33% 46,36,10,000 33.33%
Powver Finance Corporation Limited 24,35,00,000 17.65% 24,55,00,000 1765%
REC Limited (subsidiary of Power 21,81,00,0C0 13.68% 21,81.00,000 15.68%
Finarnce Corparastion Limited)
Taotal 1.39.408.20,000 100%, 1,39.08.20,006 100%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations, if any, received from shorekolders regarding
beneficia! interest, the above shareholding reprasents hoth legal and beneficial ownesship of shares.

%) Details of changes in promoter shareholding during the year ended 31st March 2023:

Name of the promoter As st 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change during
No. of shares Yoage holdiag Mo. of shares Shage holding the year
PawerGrid Corporation of India Limited 46,36,10,000 33.33% 46,36,10,000 33.33% -
NTPC Limited 44,5%6,10,000 33,33% 46,36,30,000 33.33% -
Power Finance Corporation Limited 14,55,00,000 17.63% 24,55,00,000 17.55% -
REC Limuied {svbsidiary of Power 21[,81,60,000 15.60% 21,81.65,000 15.69% -
Finance Cotporation Lirmited)
Total 1.39.08.20.880 180% 1,39,08.20,600 100%

Details of changes in prewmeter shareholding during the year eaded 31st March 2022:

Name of the promoter As 2t 31 March 2022 Ag at 31 March 2021 % Change during
No.of shares  %hage holding  No. of shares %age holding the year

PowerGrid Corporation of Tndia Limited 46,36,10,000  33.33% 5,61,18.350 5.70% 27.63%

NTPC Limited 46,36,10,000 33.33% 46,36,10,00¢ 47.15% {13.82%)

Power Finanee Corporation Livaited 24,55 00,000 17.63% 24.55,00.000 24.97% (7.32%)

REC Limited (subsidia;-y of Power 21,81,00,000 15.69% 21,81.00.000 %% {6.49%)

Finance Corporation Limited}

Total 1.3‘}3__,08.20.939 100% 58.33,28.350 100%

f) The promoters initially subscribed to 25% shares each of the Company. Over the years, the Company has made offers for right issue under private
placersent of eqaity shares to existing sharehelders. Some shareholders have aot subscribed to the offered shases or reneonced their right 10 other
shareholder resulting in change in their shareholding percentage from tha original 25%.

Further, the promoters in accordance with the recommendations of fhe Ministry of Power bas approved the restructuring of the company op st
September 2021 and it was decidad that shareholding of NTPC Limited and PowerGrid Corporation of Indiz Limited shali remain equal going forward
and shaveholding of Power Finance Corporation Limited and REC Limited shall be brought dowa to less thar 10%. Accordingly, NYPC Lirnited and

PowerQrid

orporation of Indic Limited shall infuse the capitad equally in future.



ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED

CIN:U49200D L2009PL.C196789

Motes {o the standalone linancist statements for the year 31 March 2023

(AR comtenerds itr Jukhs of S exeept share dulo ured as stated othervse) g

22 Other equity

Particulars Asg at Asat

3 March 2023 3] March 2022
Debenture redemption reserve 2,500.,00 T.060.00
Retained zarnings (43,390.36} {20,119.29)
Remeasurement of defined benefits plan (83.013 (138.06)
Total (4D,9588.37) (13,257.35)

a) Deberture redemption veserve
The company is required to create a debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose of
redemption of debentures. Movement in reserves is as follows:

Particuiars For the year ended For ihe year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening belance 7.006.00 12,434.13
Add: Transfer to retained eamings (4,500, 00) [5434.13)
Closing baiance 2,500,00 7,000.00

) Retained earnings
Retained earning represents the amount of acenrnulated samings of the company, Movement in reserves is as follows:

Particulars For the year ender] For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mlurcch 2022
(pening balance {20,095.113 {10,435.17}
Prior period errors {24.1%; 214.66
Restated balance (20,119.29; (1, 218.51)
Loss for the year as per statement of profit and loss (27,771.07) (13.332.91)
Travsfer fiom debentre redemption reserve 4,504,006 543413
(43,390.36) {20,119.29)
¢ R ement of defined benefit plans
it represents actuarial gain/loss recoguised on the bases of assumption used iz achariad valuation. Movement in reserves is as follsws:
Porticoiars For tie year ended For the year endded
31 parch 2020 31 March 2022
Opening Balaace (138.06) {46.54;
Net actuasial grins/{losses} on defined benefit plans 40,05 (91.12%
Closing balaare . {58.01} {135.06)
Py,
7
L




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U40200 D L2MOPLC196789

Motes 1o the standalone financial statements for the year 31 Mareh Z023
(Al amounts in lakhs of ¥ except share data and as stated othervise)

23 Non-curreat borrowings

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2422
1) Debentures/Bonds
a) Secured Debentures/Bonds
(i) 8.07% Debentures (Domestic bonds)- Secured by pari passu charge on the movable fixed 26,066.79 26072.32
asscts both present and future
(8.07% p.a. secured von-cumulative mon-convertible redeemable taxable bonds of T
2500000 Lakhs (STRIP *C") redeemable at par on 20 September 2023 (First Tssue -
Private Placement))
by Unsecured Debentures/Bonds
(&) 7.80% Debentures (Domestic bonds) - 4747142
(7.80% p.a. unsecured non-cumulstive non-convertible redeemable taxable bonds
amounting 245,000.00 Lakhs (Second Issue - Private Placement) repaid on due date of
18th July 2022)
2) Term loan from banks
4) Secured rupee term loan
(i) Canara Bank- Secured by pari passu charge on the movable fixed assets both present and 45,951.23 20.016.22
fisture
(RO linked to | year MCLR, repayable in 5 equated yearly instalments of each tranche
starting from December 2022 and ending in July 2027}
(ii} Bank of Baroda- Secured by pari passu charge on the movable fixed assets both present 33,000.00 43,000.00
angt fisture
{ROI Iinked to 1 year MCLR, repayable in 10 equated half yearly instalments starting from
January 2622 and ending in July 2026)
{iify Bank of Baroda- Secured by pari passu charge on the movable fixed 2ssets both present 24,989.53 34,979.95
and future
{ROI linked to 1 year MCLR, repayable in 10 equated half yearly instalments starting from
March 2021 and ending in September 2023}
(iv} Canara Bank- Secured by pari passu charge on the movabie fixed assets both present and 19,958.71 26,939.91
future
(RO linked to 1 year MCLR, repayable in 10 equated half yearly instalments starting from
September 2020 and ending in March 2023)
b3 Unsequred rapee term loan
(i) Punjab National Bank 29.321.38 39.838.32
(RO linked to 6 months MCLR, repayable in 10 equated half yearly instalments starting
from June 2021 and ending in December 20235}
3) Term loan from other than banks
2} Unsecored foreign carrency loans
{i} ADB Loan -Guaranteed by Government of India 32,218.36 15,147.56
(SOFR+ spread +/- rebate/surcharge, if any, currently 5.609963% p.a., lcan repayable on
half vearly basis starting from §35 May 2025 in 30 equal instalments)
(i3 CTF Loan (ADB)-Guaranteed by Government of India 37,747.42 14,793.69
(0.25% p.z. loan repayable on half yearly basis starting from 15 May 2030 in 20
instabments of USD 460,000 and 40 instalments of USD 926,000 each)
{itiy IBRD Loan -Guaranieed by Government of India 1,29,395 4% 1,06,943.36
(SOFR+ spread +/- rebatefsurcharge, if any, cuirently 3.31743317% p.a, loan repayable
on half yearly basis starting from 15 May 2023 in 27 equal instalments of 3.57% of
disbursed amount and Fast instalment of 3.61% of disbursed amount)
{iv) ADB Loan ~Quaranteed by Government of India 99 438.87 £,04.179.54

(SOFR+ spread +/- rebate/surcharge, if any, currently 5.570135% p.a., loan repayable on
half yearly basis stagting from 13 March 2022 ia 30 equat instalments)

<




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CEN:U48200DL2009PLC156789

Mates to the standalone financis! statemenis for the year 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in [akhs of Texcept share data and as stated oifezrvise)

23 Non-current borrosvings (continued)

As at
31 March 2023

Particuiars

As at
31 March 2622

{vy AFD Loan -Guaranteed by Government of India 26,253.20 28.110.77
{1.87% p.a. for Euro 3,719,016.59, 2.20% p.a. for Euro 1,205,674.41, 2,19% p.a, for Euro
8.460,156.73. 2.22% p.a. for Buro 3,112,936.93, 1.35% p.a. for Eure §,235,022.51, 1.44%
p.a. for Euro 5.932,983.061 and 1.42% for Euro 77,14,307.54. Loan repayable in half
vearly basis starting from 3t October 2029 in 1 instalment of Euro 15,33,289.51 and 19
instalments of Buro 19,3%,305.70 each}
{vi) KFW Loan -Guaranteed by Gevernment of India 18,541.62 22,522.20
(1.96% p.a loan repayable on half yearly basis starting from 30 June 2018 in 14
instalments of Euro 2,941,000 each and 3 instalments of Euro 2,942 000 each)
5,25.382.56 5,55,033.66
Less; Current maturities of long tevm borrowings (Refer note 29)
Unsecured Debentures/Bonds 25,000.60 45,000.00
Secured rupee term loan from bank 40,000.60 34,000.00
Unsecured rupee term loan fom bank 14,060.00 10,000.00
Unsecured foreign cumency loans 25,193.85 15.443.11
Less: Interest accrued but rot due on borrowings 4,393.61 4377.02
Totat 4,20,295.99 4,46,213.33

) The eompany has no cases of any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory time

limits.
b) The company has used its specific borrowings for the specific purpose for which they were taker,
c) There has been no default in repayiment of the loans/ interest thergon as at the end of the year/ during the year
d) The company has not been declarad as & wilfal defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

€} The Company has access to € 1,73,78% lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥4,43,494,51 lakhs) foreign curmrency borrowings which has been sanctioned
but not availed as at 31 March 2023, These borrowings have been guaranteed by Government of India. Refer nate 43(c)0).

24 Non-current lease liabitities

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Barch 2022
Lease Habilities - 168.66
Total - 168,66
ay Refer note 45(c)(ii) for maturity analysis of undiscounted tease liabilitics
25 Nen-current frade payable
Particelars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Trade payable
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small eaterprises 1,237.53 933.8¢
Fotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and smalf enterprises 6,950.78 10,130,390
Total £.158.31 11,069.19

a} Amounts payable to related parties are disclosed in note 48
b) Refer note 38 for disclosures as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
¢} Refer note 60(k) for tade payable ageing.

d
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(A1 cwnowris in lakhs of T excep! share data and as stated otherwise)

36 Other financial liabilities (Non-Current)

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Retention money 1,080.58 207996
Tatal 1,080.58 257995
#) Refer note 58 for disclosures as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
b) Refer note 44 for disclosures related to fair valuation.
27 Non-current provisions
Particulars As at Agat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity - 195.81
Leave encashment 1,132.16 [,187.36
Total 1,132.16 1,383.17
a) Refer note 49 for disclosure as per Ind A5 19 on 'Employee Bensfits”,
28 C¢her nos-current liabilities
Particalars As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Deferred income on account of govemment grants 3,806.58 3,680.33
Taotal 3,866.58 3.680.33
a) Refer note 30 for disclosure as per Ind AS 20 on 'Government Grants'.
29 Borrowings {Curreaf)
Particnlars As at Asat

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

8) Secured short-term loan from banks

(i) ICICI Bank ~ Secured by first pari passu charge on the current asset of the company beth
present and future
(ROL: Linked to tenor based MCLR, repayable as Bullet payment within | year maximum
from the draw! of the loan amonnt)

{i5) Bank of Baroda - Secured by first pasi passu charge on the steck and receivables of the
company both present and future
(RO Linked to tenor based MCLR, repayable as Buliet payment within 1 year maximum
from the drawl] of the loans amount}

{ii) Indusind Bank - Secured by pari passu charge on stock and book debts of the Company
(ROL: Linked to ténor based MCLE, repayable as Bullet payement within 1 year maxinzum
from the draw} of the loan amount)

{iv) Unton Bank of India- Secured by the current assets of the Company both present aod future
(ROL: Linked to tenor based MCLR, repayable as Bullet payment within 1 year maximum
from the draw! of the loan amount)

{v) Canara Bank- Secured by first pari passu charge on the steck and receivables of the
company both present and future
(ROL Linked to tenor based MCLR, repayabls as Bullet payment within 1 year miximum
from the drawi of the loan amount)

18.200.00

13,200.00

69,959 50

19,999.95

18,160.00

15,960.00

12.500.00

64,999.99

19,990.21
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Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
{4H amounis in lakhs of 3,2xcept share data and as stated otherwise)

29 Borrowings {Current) (Continued)

a) Refer nete 43(c)(1i} for maturity analysis of undiscounted lease Habilities.

(v1) indian Bank- Secured by first pari passu charge on the stock and receivables of the 28,499.74 -
company both present and future
{ROL: Linked to tener based MCLR, repayable as Builet payment within 1 year maximum
frotn the drawl of the loan amount)
(viiy Kotk Mahindra Bank Ltd:- Secured by first parl passu charge on current assets of the 4,006.00 -
cosipay both present and future
(ROTL:-Linked to ore month MCLR, repayable as Bullet payment within 3 months from the
drawl of the Joan amount)
h) Seeured shart-term loans from others
(i) Bajaj Finance Limited- Secured by first pari passv ¢harge on the current assets of the 15,600,060 7.5360.60
company (recetvables amd inveniory) both present and future
(ROT: Linked to repo rafe with quarterty reset, repayable as builet payment after 12 months
from the drawl of the Loan amount)
¢) Hnsecured short-term loas from banks
(i) CTBC Bank - 4.600.00
{ROI linked to MIBOR, repayable as bullet payment afier 6 months trom the draw] of the
Loan amount and will be rolled over twice a year)
(it} Loan from KFW 2 4,239.67 -
{1.15% p.a. loan, repayable on 15 June 2023 (Euro 4,723,373.930)
d) Bank Overdraft
Secured
(i) Bank of Bareda - Secured by first pari passu charge on the stock and receivables of the
company both present and future BLO7 58723
(ROL Linked to one year MCLR based, repayable on demand within | year maximum
from the drawl of the loa: amount)
Sub-fotal 1,75,928.36 1,43,577.43
Less; Iterest accrued on curment bomowings (7.17) -
Current maturities of non-cerrent borrowings (refer nots 23)
Unsecured Debentures/Bonds 25,000.00 43.600.00
Secured rupee term loan from bank 40,000.00 34,000.060
Unsecured ruper term foan from bank 10,000.00 10,600,60
Unsecured foreign currency ioans 25,193.86 15,445.11
Sub-iotal 1,06,1%3.86 1,04,445.11
Total 3.76,157.03 243.022.54
30 Lease liabilities {Current)
Parficulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease liabilities 168.66 20495
Total 168,66 294.93
— e =
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Notes to the standalone fivancial siatements for the year 31 March 2623
(il amounis in lakhs of T except share data ard as siated otheryise)

31 Trade Payables

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 3] Mareh 2622
Trade payabfe
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and srmall enterprises 10,338,537 8,689.33
Total putgranding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 90.104.35 91,427.10
Tatal 1,09.443.92 1.00.116.43
7) Amounts payable to refated partics are disciosed in aote 48.
b) Refer note 58 for disclosures as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
¢} Refer note 60(k)} for trade payable ageing.
32 Oihber financial liabilities (Current)
Particulars Asat As ai

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Interest accrued on borrowings 4,900.78 4,377.02
Unclaimed interest on debentures/bonds - 1.6l
Retention money* 45,002.08 42,334.21
Liabilitizs for expenses 4,726.27 2,179.63
Bamest money deposits 44.70 404.7G
Commitment fee payable . 171.08 280.83
Security deposits 383.80 10850
Payable to employees 49,60 237.24
Total 53.278.31 49.923.36
*Refer note 538 for disclosures as required under Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
33 Other current liabilities

Particolars Asat As at

31 MEarch 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues {refer note a below) 1,083.92 §,593.65
Advance from customers 12,665.81 .
Revolving/project fund 301898 800.86
Unearned income 40%.83 411,91
Deferred income 01 account of government grants 968,84 756.69
Total 18,147.38 16,563.11

a) The sales and its corresponding output tax liability, purchases and its coresponding input tax credit reported in GST retums, the nes input
tax credit receivable/ net output tax liability payable are subject to reconciliation with the beoks of accounts and the impact, if any,
subsequent to the reconciliafion will be taken I annuwal GST statements/ revised retums 10 be filed in due course, which in view of
management will not be matsrial

34 Current provisions

Partienlars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity - 15.93
Leave encashement 62.54 4943
Total 62,54 63,98

a) Refer note 49 for disclosure as per I Ind AS 19 on 'Emplayes Benefits'.
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2623
(Al amowurits in lakhs of 3, except share data and as stated otheryise)

35 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of gaods 8.916.,39 15,788.12
Rendering of services 1,52.831.82 1,40,416.19
Total 1,61,748.21 1,56,204.31

a) Refer note 35 for disclosure in respect of Ind AS 113, 'Revenue from contracts with customers'.

b} Refer note 48 for transactions with related parties.

¢} The Company as per practise, recognises revenue under street light agreements with ULB’s whereby the start date of project peried
is taken as the date of first completion certificate received fiom ULB. For subsequent completion cartificates, revenue is recognised
co-terminus to the project period based on the initial completion certificate.

d) The company is in the process to seek clarifications/ amendments in certain agreements for smart meter projects, for extension of
period, change in rales stc., the effect of which shall be considered in the ysar in which such amendments are finalized. Further, as
per terms of agreement, revenue from smart meters to be booked For which reading is captured from various Discoms however
where the reading could not be captured due to tele communication issue, temporary disconnection/permanent disconmection cases
ete, the Company is taking steps to devise a snitable mechanism to bill for sueh installed meters,

e} The details of streetlights installed and completed till date against quantily ordered by Urban Local Bodies {ULB) is vnder
compilation and thereafler adjustments towards capitalizaiion and revenue recognition, if any. will be underiaken. No maierial
differences are envisaged at this stage and the samie will be accounted in the year of completion of compilation/ reconciliation.

£y Under Trigeneration ESCO segment, the defails of bill read’ gas consumption etc. could not be compiled due to non-receipt of
televant data from customers since October 202 1. Consequently, the tevenue from Trigencration projects could not be recognized
for the period October 2021 to March 2023 and will be recognized in the subsequent period.

3¢ Other income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income from {inancial assets measured at amortised cosi
Bank deposits 1.745.99 1,540.69
Trade receivables 19920 28932
I.oans to empioyees 23.36 15.17
Loarss/Advances fo related parties 331.61 2.62
Security deposit 16.03 14.09
Interest on income tax refund 280.00 «

Other non-operating income

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) - 750.66
Guarantes fee income 72546 869.46
Management fee income 11098 21131
{Grant income 1,244.31 807.74
Teader fees 10.39 2895
Liquidation damagss recovered fiom vendors 44740 642,13
Liabilities / excess provisions nio longer requirad, written back - 8.23
Miscellancous income (refer note b below) 759.00 116.17
Tetal 5.997.84 5,258.56

) Refer note 48 for transactions with related parties.
b} Miscellaneous income includes recovery against notice. recovery for health insuranee, recruitment income ele.
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MNotes to the standalone financial siatemnents for the year 31 March 2323
(A}l amounts in lakhs of Texcept share data and as stated otherwise)

37 Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Maich 2423 31 March 2022
Opening stack 13,771.27 20.387.13
Closing stock 13,484.63 15,771.27
Total 2.286.64 4,613.88
38 Employee benefits expense
Particulars Feor the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages 6,734.37 6,835.54
Contribution to provident and other finds 615.40 599.39
Staff welfare expenses 63.40 103.55
7,418.17 T,540.48
Less: Transferred to capital work-in-progress (Note 4) §32.52 1,910.7%
Total 6,585.65 3,629.69
a} Refer note 49 for diselosure 2s per Ind AS 19 on 'Employee Benefirs'.
3% Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 Maych 2022

Finance charges on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Debentures/Bonds
Short term loans
Foreign currency term loans
Rupee term foans
Unwinding of discount on retention money
Unwinding of discount on trade payables
Lease liabilitics

Loss on foreign currensy transactions and translation (net)

Ofther borrowing costs
Guarantee fees For foreign currency ferm loans
Commitment fees for foreign currency term loans
Processing fee
Other (refer note a below)

Less: Transterred to capital work-in-progress (Note 4}

Total

3,050.55 6,180.54
11,393.11 8,427.51
10,313.18 2.889.59
13,469.12 13,246.17

529.89 831.9%
784.56 996,36
2972 36.01
12211.21 6,524.77
3,751.38 3.416.61
74206 932.40
1.00 383.8¢

= 1,032.14
56.277.78 44,918.29

3.322.96 5.847.68
47.954.82 39,070.61

) Qiher Borrowing costs includes factoring cost of T Nil (31 March 2022: ¥ 780.05 Lalkhs) and loan cancellation fes of T Wil (31

March 2022: ¥ 252,09 Lakhs).

b) Borrowing costs capitalised during the year incliudes mterest cost of ¥ 6.075.84 Lakhs (31 March 2022: % 3.900.02 Lakhs) and
fereign exchange variation of ¥ 2,247.12 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 1,947.66 Lakhs).




ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
CIN:U40200DL20609PL.C19678%

Motes to the siandalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023

Al amounts In faldis of Texcent share data and ag siated otherwise)

46 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Tarticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on properiy, plant and equipment 70847.34 64,949.83
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 283.74 28578
Anmortisation of intangible assets 25546 206.24
Tetal 71.387.04 65,441.85
4} Other expenses
Partienlars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2623 31 Mareh 2022
Annual maintenance charges (projects) 33,934.84 . 33,153.21
Manpower cost 5,044.08 4.456.81
Rent 2,316.68 2.116.87
Legal fees & professional 968.79 1,843.51
Project cost 144,53 62.47
Insurange 449.97 479.52
Travel and canveyance 785.61 621.34
Communication 406.16 451.90
Bank charges 33554 306,56
Repair and maintenance
- Building 134.83 181.72
- Computer 348 221
Electricity 30839 178.56
Rate and taxes 314.99 142,52
Primting and stationery 57.07 7177
Corporate social responsibility {refer note 37) - 67.80
Payment to audifors (refer note a below) 60.12 39.48
Internal audit fees 36.62 37.52
Advertisement and Business prometton 89.29 50.95
Meeting and hospitality 44.85 28.84
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment (net) 9.63 13.61
Allowance for doubtful receivables 11,775.03- 3,642 .89
Provision for inferest variance 1.385.86 4,143.96
Provision for doubtful advances 2,138.22 85227
Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (net) 10,599.69 -
Proviston for shortage In inventories 30.64 353.02
Impairment for togses on investment 1833 -
Miscellaneous expenses 260.06 2,487.4%
71,756.30 57,809.60
Less: Transfersed 1o capilal work-in-progress (Nete 4) 1.291.01 1,227.97
Tatal 70,463.29 36,581.03
a} Details in respect of payment to anditors:

Statutory audit fee 25.00 17.33
Tax audit fee 7.50 G.44
Certification 21.30 13.70
Remmbursement of expenses 1.44 201

Arrears 4.63 -
Total 60,12 3948
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Notes to {he standalone financial statements for the year 31 March 2023
{All amounts in lokhs of € except share data and as stated otherwise)

#2 Intome taxes

aj Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Partienlars Forthe year ended  For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax expense
Current year 19466 207.93
Earlier vears - 7272
Sub-total (A) 199.66 280.65
Deferved tax credit
Origination and reversal of temporary differances {8,527.23) (6,666.15}
Sub-total (B} {8,527.25) {6,666.15)
Tota! income tax {credif) / expense (A+B) {8,327.59) (6,385.50)
The gross movement in the net current income tax asset is as follows:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net eurrent income tax asget at the beginning 1,354.95 918.1%
Adiustment pertaining to earlier years 159.15 -
Incoms tax paid (et of refunds) 21372 717.41
Current income tax expense (199.66) {280.65)
Net current income tax asset at the end 1,528.16 1,354.95
b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other comprehensive income
Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 33.52 (121.76)
Less: Income tax relating to above items 13.47 (30.64)
Other comprehensive income / {expense) for the year, net of income tax 40.05 {21.12)

¢ Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit mubtiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

Particulars

For the year ended

Tor the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prafit before tax (36,098.66) (21,718.41)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate of 23.168% (31 March 2622: 25.168 %0) (9,085.31) (5.466.09)
Tax effect of:
Unrecognised deferred tax of previeus year on account of adjustment in PPE 1,170.83 {1.543.09)
Tax on foreign branch 199.66 207.93
Earlier year tax - 72.72
Excess business loss of previous vear {679.46) (20.14)
Non-deductible tax expenses 64.34 (13.14)
Others 2.33 438.30
Income tax expense {8,327.5% (6,385.50)
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY SERVICES LIMITED
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Notes to the standalogse finaacial statements for the year 31 March 2023
(All eorounts in lakhs of Texcept share dota and as stated otherwise)

42 Income taxes (econtinned)
d} Movement in deferred tax balances

For the year ended 31 Mayrch 2023

Particulars Balance Recognised in Recogaised Balance
1 April 2022 profit or foss in OCI 31 Mareh 2023
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed losses/depreciation carried 7.496.58 5,625.26 - 13,121.84
forward
Timing difference on account of expense 6,766.90 3,690.31 {13.47) 10,443.74
allowable on payinent basis
Dthers 16.71 (8.66) - 8.05
14,280.1% 9,306.91 (13.47) 23,573.63
L.ess: Deferred tax lizbifities
Difference between accounting base and tax 6,071.76 1,181.84 - 7,233.60
base of property, plant and equipment
Financial assets and Habilities measured at 21223 {402.18) - 410.03
amortised cost
6,883.99 779.66 - 7,663,653
Deferred tax assets (net) 7,396,208 8,527.25 {1347) 15,909.98
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Particulars Balance Recognised in Recognised Balance
1 April 2921 prefit or loss in OCIL 31 March 2022
Deferrved tax assets
Unabsorbed losses/depreciation carried 2.933.13 4,563.44 - 7.496.38
forward
Timing difference on account of expense 3,927.63 2,.808.63 30.64 6,766.90
allowable on payment basis
Others 17.26 0.5 = 16.71
6,878.02 737152 .64 14,288.19
Less: Deferved tax Habilittes
Difference between accounting base and tax 4,609.83 1.461.93 - 6.071.76
hase of property, plant and equipmient
Financial assets and liabilities measured at 1.032.82 (220.60) - 81223
amortised cost
Others 833.96 {33396 - -
6,178.61 70337 - 6,883.99
Deferred tax assets (net) 699,41 6,666.15 30.64 7.396.28

¢) Accumulated earnings of subsidiaries, if paid out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of recipient. An assessable temporacy
difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has been recognised as the Company is able to contral the timing of distributions from the

subsidiary, The subsidiaries are not expected to distribure the profits in the foreseeable future,
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(Al crnounts In fakhs of £.except share date and us staled otherwise)

43 Restatement for the year ended 31 March 2022 and as at 1 April 2021
In accordance with Iné AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' and Ind AS 1 ' Presentation of Financial
Statements', the Company has retrospectively restated its Balance Shest as at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2021 (beginning of the preceding
period) and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 for the reasons as stated in the notes below. Reconciliation of items

which are retrospectively restated in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss are as under:

2) Reconcifiation of restated items of Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2022
As previongly Reclass Remeasure | As restated
reported adjustments | adjusiments
ASSETS
Non-curreat assets
Property, plant and equipment {i) 2,99,889,38 - (2,055.16)] 2.97.834.72
Capital work-in-progress 1,05,524.25 - - 1,03,524.25
Right-of-use assets (1} 1,125.73 - (0.01) 1,125.72
Intangible assets (i} 53277 - 2.96 335,73
Tnvestrments in subsidiary and joint venture companies 37,068.31 - - 37.068.31
Financial assets
Other investrments 026 - = 0.26
Loans 2,911.06 - - 2,911.06
Other financial assets (ix) 10,524.43 - 1,5346.21 12,070.64
Deferred tax assets (net) (iv) 7.813.83 - (417,68} 7.356.20
Other non-cuirent assers 6,611.24 - - 6,611.24
Total pon-current assets 4,72,001.81 - (923.68) 4,70,078.13
Current assefs
Inventories 15,9702 - - 13,77127
Financial assets
Trade receivables () 34822351 - {,837.61 3,50,061.12
Cash and cash equivalents {vil) 72,403.31 58723 - 72,992.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis 29304 .51 - - 2939451
Loans 538.17 - - 33817
Other financial assets 15,097.49 - - 15,697.49
Current {ax assets {nef) 1,562.90 - - 1,562.%9
Other current assets x) 43,133.33 - {£2.63) 43,120.68
Total currens assets 5,26,126.49 28723 1,824.96 5,28,538.68
TOTAL ASSETS 9,98,128.34 §§7.23 901.28 9,99.616.81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1.36,082.00 - - £,39,082.00
Other equity {v) (13,233.17) - (24.18) (13,257.35)
Total eguity 1,23,818.83 - (24.18)] 1,23,824.63
Liabilities
Non-current lHabilities
Financial Jiabilities
Bosrowings 4.46213.53 = - 4,46,213.53
Lease lizbitities 168.66 - - 183.66
Trade payables
~total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 933.80 - - G38.80
~total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 10.130.39 . i
small enterprises L 16,136,39
{Other financial liabilities 207356 - - 2.079.96
Provisions 1,383.17 - - 1,383.17
Other non-cwrent liabilities (Hy 3,771.09 - (90.76) 3,680.33
Total non-current liabilities 4,64,683.60 - (90.76)] 4,64,594.84
= .
5 55 Vi ;
- } o

R
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(Al amounts in lakhs of ¥ except shave duta and as siated otherwise)

Current abiliies
Financial tiabilities

Borrowings {vii) 2,47435.31 587.23 - 248,022 534

Lease liabilities 28485 - - 29493

Trade payables

-total oulstanding ducs of micro aed small enterprises 3,689.33 - - 8,089.33
<total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro (iii), (viii) & 90,410,838 - 1,61622 91,427.10
and small enterprises {x}

Other fnancial Habilities 4992336 - - 49,923,36
Other corrent diabilitics 19.563.11 - - 10,563,11
Provisions 63.98 - . 68.98
Current tax liabilities (net) 207.95 - - 20793
Total current Habilities 4,07,593.87 58723 1,016.22 4,089.197.32
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9.98,128.30 587.23 201.28 9,99.616.81

b) Reconcifiation of restated items of Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2021
Particulars WNote Asat 1 April 2021
As previously Reclass Remeasure | Asrestated
reported adjustments | adiustments

ASSETS

MNon-enrrent asseis

Property, piaot and equipment §}] 2,86,085.3¢ “ (702.26}  2.83,383.04
Capital wark-in-progress 1,20,540.07 - - 1,20,540.07
Right-of-use assets [,214.88 - - 1,214,588
Intangibie assets (i) 717.61 - .05 717.66
Investments in subsidiary and joint venture sompanies 28.109.87 - - 28,109.87
Financial assets

Loans 284 .18 - - 284.18

Other finansial assets {1x) 5.051.36 - 1,096.99 10,148.35
Deferred tax asseis {net) {iv) 801.44 - {162.03) 699.41
Other non-current assets 3,921.18 - - 3.921.10
Total non-current assess 4.50,725.81 - 292,75 4,31,618.56
Carrent asseis
Inventories 20,387.13 - - 20,387.15
Financial asscts

Trade receivables 3,09,839.07 - - 3.09,859.07

Cash and cash equivatents 70,552.27 - - 70,552.27

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 31,136.46 - - 51,136.46

Loans 132.92 - - 132,92

Other financial assets 18,623.06 - - 18,623.06
Current {ax assets (nef) 1,114,61 - - {,iid.6l1
Other current assets 48 117.37 - - 48, 1E7.37
Total current assets 5,19,522.91 - - 519,920
TOTAL ASSETS 5.70,648.72 - 292.73 9,70,941.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 98,332.34 = - 98,332.84
Other equity (&%) 1,952 02 - 214.65 2,166.67
Total equity 1,50,284.86 - 21465 1,80,499.51
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Motes to the standalone financisl statements for the year 31 March 2023
(ANl amownis in lnfhs of T except share datg and o5 stated otherwise]

Linbilities
Non-current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,91,695.04 - - 491 695.04
Lease liabilities 369.10 - - 369.10
Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises 1,809.21 - - £,809.2¢
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro {viii} 13,225.32 - 88.70 13314.02
and small epterprises
Other financial lizhilities 4,304.82 - - 4.304.82
Provisions 1,112.03 - - 1,112.03
Other non-current liabilities (i) 1,797.19 (10.60) 1,786.39
Total nen-current liabilities 5,14,312.71 - 7810 | 5,34,350.81
Curreat liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,77,028.57 - - 1.77,028.57
Lease ligbilities 167.12 - - 167.12
Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises 8,030.55 - - 8.030,59
-total outstanding dees of ceeditors other than micre 1,04,215.89 - - 1,04,215.89
and small enterprises
Other financial Habilities 56,227.69 - 36.227.69
Other current liabilities 10,128.92 - - 10,128.92
Provisions 3393 - - 55.95
Current tax liabilities (net) 196.42 - - 196.42
Total curreat labilities 3,56,031.18 - - 3,56,051.15
TOTAL FQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,70,648.72 - 20295 9,70,941.47

¢} Reconcilintion of restated Hems of Statement of Prefit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Note For the year eaded 31 Mayrch 3022
As previously Reclasy Remeasure | Asrestated
reported adjustments | adjustments
Tucome
Revenue from operations {ix) 1,53.917.50 - 2.286.81 1,56,204 31
Other income (i) 5,178.41 - 20.15 5,238.56
Total income 1,59,095.91 - 2,366.96 1,61,462.87
Expenses
Purchasz of stock-in-trade {vil) & {ii}) 10.975.57 9.8% 856.76 11.842.22
Change in inventotics of Stock-1n Trade 4615.88 " - 4,615,838
Employes benefits expense 5.629.89 - - 5.629.69
Finance costs 39,070.61 - - 39,070.61
Depreciation and amortisation expense (1} 64,691,886 : 1,349.99 65,441.85
{viiy, (viii}
Orher expenses & 56,507.52 (9.89) $3.40 56,581.03
Total expenses 1,80,8%1.13 - 2,290.15 1,83,181.28
Loss before tax {21,795.22) - 76.81 {21,718.41)
.«""}
e s
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(AN amonnes Tn takhs of T 2xcept shure datu and as stated otherwise)

Tax expense
Currant tax
Cuarrent year 207.93 - - 207.93
Earlier years 22 - - 7272
Deferred tax credit {iv) {6,981.80) - 315.65 (6,666.13)
Total tax (credit)expense (6,701.15) - 315.65 (6,385.50)
Lass fot the year (15,804.07) - {238.84) (15,332.91)

Otker cemprelensive incoms
ftems that will not be reclassified te profit or loss {net of taxes}

- Remeasurement of ihe defined benefit plans (121.76) = - (121.76)
-Income tax relating to the items that will not be reclassified to
30.64 g
profit or loss statement - - 50.64
Other coraprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (91.12) = - (91.12)
Total comprehensive income for the vear (15,185.19} - (238.84) (13,424.03)
Earnings per equity share (Par value ¥ 15/~ each)
Basic earnings per share (3) (124 - {D.02} {1.20)
Diiluted earnings per share (3} (L.2£) - {6.02} (1.26)

dy Reconeiliation of Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

Particolars For the vear ended 31 March 2022
As previousty | Adfustmenis | As resiated
reported

Net cash ffow from operating activities 37.499.80 0.02 37.499.82
Nzt cash flow used in investing activities {37,267.07) (0.03) {37,267.10}
et cash flow from financing activities 20,623.48 38724 21,210.72
MNet imcrease in cash aod eash equivalents during the year 856.21 587.23 1,443.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 70,552.27 - 70,532.27
Bxchange differonce on translation of forcign currency cash and cash cquivalents 996.83 - 996.83
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the vear 72,405.31 587.23 72,592,534

e} Earnings per share
Basic and dituted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2022 have changed as below:

Particelars As previously Adjustments  As restated
reperted

Basic earnings per equity share (¥} {1.24) (0.02} (1.26)

Diluted earnings per equity share (3) {1.24) {0.02} (1.26)

) Nofes on restatement

(i) The Company has recalculated the depreciation and amortization oz its property plaat and equipment and intangible assets respectively as per
its aceounting policies and difference in depreciation and pmortization & previous yems has been restazed. Accerdingly, the Company hes
reduced #s property. plant and equipment with corresponding fmpact in retained earnings by ¥ 702.26 Lakhs as at I April 2021 For the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Company has recognised depreciation expense of € 1,332.90 Takhs oz property, plant and equipment and reversed
amertization on Etangible assets by € 2.92 Lakhs.

(i} The Company has reassessed the deferred grant incorne and granl income in previous years and difference in deferred grant income has been
restated, Accordingly, the Company has reduced its deferred grant Hability with corresponding impact in retained eamings by ¥ 10.60 Lakhs as
at April 2021, For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Compary has recognised grant income of 2 80.16 Lakhs on deferred grane Hability.

{iit) The Company has assessed prior period ervors in purchases and difference has been restated. Accordingly, the Company has increased its trade
payables with corresponding impect in purchases by T 856.76 Lakhs for the vesr ended 31 March 2022,
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Notes to the standalone fioaucial statemenis for the year 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in lakhs of ¥ except share data and as steted otherwise}

{iv) The above mentioned adjustments had a consequential impact on deferred tax credit and deferred tax asset. The Company has recognised
deferred tax credit of T 102.03 Lakhs as at 1 April 2021 and further credit of ¥ 3135.65 Lakhs during the year ended 31 March 2022,

{v} The sbove mentioned adjustments have resulted in Increase in other equity as at 1 April 2021 by T 214.65 Lakhs and decline in profit for the
vear ended 31 March 2022 by T238.34 Lakhs.

{vi) The restatement has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

{vi) Certain reclassifications have been made to the comparative period’s financial statements to enhance comparability with the current year's
financial statements.

(viil) The Company has assessed prior period errors in annual maintenance charges and difference has been restated. Accordingly, the Company has
increased its trade payables with comresponding impact in retained eaming by ¥ 88.70 Lakhs as at April 2021 and with corresponding impast in
annual maintenance charges by ¥ 320,56 Lakhs for the vear ended 31 March 2022.

(ix) The Company has assessed prior period erors in revenue from operation and difference has been restated, Accordingly, the Company has
increased its lease receivable with corresponding impact in retained earning by ¥ 1,096.99 as at April 2021 and increased its trade receivables
by % 1,837.61 lakhs, lease receivable by T 449.21 lakhs with coresponding impact in revenue by ¥ 2,286.81 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March
2022,

{x} The Company has assessed prior period errors in other expenses and difference has been restated. Accordingty, the Company has decreased its
trade payables by T 249,81 Lakhs and decreased its other curment assets by ¥ 12.65 Lakhs with correspending reversal of other expenses by ¥
237.16 Lakhs for the year ended 31 Marcl 2022,
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44 Fair value measuremenis (Disclosare as per Ind AS 107}

2) Finaacial instramenis by category

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2622

FVTPL FYTOCT Amortised FVTPL FYTOCI Amortlsed cost

cost

Finazncial assets:
Investments in equity instremenis 0.26 - - 0.26 - =
Mon-current ioans - - 4.376.46 - - 2,911.06
QOther non-current financial assets - - 10,887.21 - - 12,070.64
Trade receivables - - 3,77,860.23 - - 3.50,061.12
Cash and cash equivalents - - 43,024,08 - - 72,992.54
Bank balances other than cash and ¢ash equivalents - - 21,027.79 - - 20,394 51
Current loans - - 92271 - S 53817
(rther current financial assets u - 15,013.15 - - 15,697.49
Total 0.26 - 4,73,111.63 0.26 - 4,83,665.53
Financial liabilitiea:
HNon-Current Borrowings E B 4,20,283.09 - - 446.213.53
Non-current lease liabilities - - - - - 168.66
Non-current trade payables - - £.188.31 - - 11,069.1%
Other ron-current financial liabilities - - 1,080.58 - - 2,079.85
Cusrent Borrowings - - 2.76,107.05 - - 24802254
Cument trade payables - - 1,69,443.92 - - £.00,11643
Cusrent lease liabitities - " 168.66 - - 294.95
Other current financial liasilities - - 3327831 - - 49 92336
Tatal - - £,70,561.92 - - 8.57,888.62

b} Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financiol insivaments that ars (a) recognised and messured
at. fair value and (b} measurad at amertised cosy and for which fair values are disclosed in the finaacial statements. To provide an indicstion about the
teliability of the inputs used in determiing falr vatue of financial mstruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is bewg diselosed, the
company has classified these into the levels prescribed under the Ind AS 113, " Fair value measwrement details of which are as under:

(i) Financial assefs measored at fair valne {recurriag fair value measurement)

Tarticulars Note Yevel Asat3l Asx at 31 March
March 2023 2022

Financial assets:

Investments in equity inskruments* 8 Level 3 0,26 0.26

Total 4.26 .26

*Equity shares of ¥ 0.26 Lakh of NEESL Private Lamited are not radable and amouat of invesbment 1s immatertal, henes invesiment is recognised at eost
and same is considerad as its fair value,

() Financial assets measoered at fair value (non-recurring fair value messurement)

Particalars Note Level As at 31 As 8831 March
March 2023 2022

Financial assets:

Loan to subsidiary Yand 17 Tevel 2 4 668656 2.764.21
Security deposits 10and 18 Eevel 2 647.48 59519
Unbilted revenue 10 and 18 Level 2 10,05847 8,709.33
Loan to employees Dand 17 Level 3 490,53 440,58
Lease receivables 1Gand 18 Level 3 14,399.62 14,807 41
Nor current bank deposits 10 Level 3 3870 34.60
‘Fotal 30,303.46 27,351.32
Financial Habilities:

Borrowings 3 Level 2 4,59,371.61 517,194 68
Retention moaey 26 and 32 Level 2 4328427 46.348.08
Trade payables 25 and 31 Tevel 2 1,18.086.04 1,18 58253

Total 5,60,741.92 £.82,20529
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44 Fair valae measurements {continued)

Financiai assets and fnancial liabilities at (air value in the staterneni of fipancial position are grouped into three levels of fair value hierarchy, The threg

levels are defined based on the observabitity of significant impuis in the measurement as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial jnstruments traded in an active market is based on the quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
Level 2; The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined vsing valuation techniques which maximise the use
of observabie market data and rely as litile as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instnunent is included in level 2

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data. the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unkisted

equity instruments,
There are no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the year.

¢} Valuation tecknigne used to delermine fair value

(1) For investment in equity instruments - Valuation through a SEB! registerad merchant banker using net asset value method.
(i) For financial assets (loan to subsidiary, security deposits and unbilled revenue) - Discounted fiture cash flow; appropriate market raie as of each balance

sheet date used for discounting.

{i#i} For fnancial liabilities (borrowings, retention money and trade payables). Discounted cash flow, appropriate market borrowing rate of the entity as of

each balance sheet date used for discounting.

d) Fair value of finascial assets and Habilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Carrying Fair velre Carrying Fajr value
amount ameunst
Financial assets:
Loan to subsidiary 4,508.64 4,668.66 3,008.65 2,764.21
Security deposits 647.07 647.48 39371 595.19
Elnbilled ravenue 10,037.70 10,038 47 8,495,116 8,709.33
Lozn to employess 490.33 490.53 440.58 440,58
Lease receivables 14,399 62 14,369 .62 14,807.41 1430741
Non current bank depoesits 38.70 38.70 34.60 34,60
Total 30,422.26 30,303.46 27,3580,11 27.351.32
Figancini iabilities:
Non-current borowings* 5,25,382.56 4,99,371.61 5,55,035.66 517,194,638
Reiention money 46,082.66 43284 27 44,414.17 46,328.08
Trade pzyables 1,17,632.23 1,18 086,04 1,11,185,62 1,18.682.53
Total 6,39,097.45 6,60,741.92 7,10,635.45 6,82,2045.29

# Includes current maturitiss of long term borrowings

The carrying amounts of current rade receivables, trade payablas, payable for capital expenditure, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets

and lizbilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their shorterm nature,

The fair values for security deposits, unbilled revenus, borrowings and retention meney were caiculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rase/borrowing rate undertaken through an expert exteroal agency. They are classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value hiesarcly due fo the

use of observahle market inputs.

For financial asset measured at fair value, the carrving amounts are equal to the fair values.
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43 Financial risk managemeat
The Company’s prncipal financial iabilines compriss loans and borrowings in foreign as well as domestic currency, trade payables and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is o finance the Company’s eperations. The Company’s principal financial assets includs leans, trade &
other receivables, and cash and shori-term deposits that derive directly from its operations.
Tie Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instrumments
- Credit risk
- Matkst risk
- Liquidity risk
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk

a} Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 0 the Conmpany if a customer or counierparty to a financial fastrument fails to meet its conwactug] obligations
resulting in & financial loss to the Company Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, unbitled revenus, loans & advances, cash & cash
equivalents and deposils with banks. The camying amounts of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

‘Frade receivables and unbilled revenue

The Company eams Hs revenue matnly fiom government-controlled entities {both central and state government) where the counter pasty risk is considered
to be low. The Company evaluates and manages its credit risk by taking into consideration the ageing of the duss, nature of the customers (Government
and Non-Gavermnment receivables, credit worthiness of the customers and spscific eredit circumstances.

The impainnent loss allowance i5 assessed by the company using lifetime ECL approach which is based on the business enviromment in which the
cOInpany operates.

The trade receivables are considered in default (credit impaired) when the possibility of recovery of racaivables based on the assessment/evaluation on the
parameters stated above ave deterierating and are required to be provided as allowance for doubttl receivabiles in a systematic manner

Siace the Company has ifs customers within different states of Tadia, geographically there is no concentration of eredit rigk,

Lean i employees
The company has giver ioens to employees. The company managss its credit risk in réspect of loan and advances to amployees threagh: setflement of dues
against full & final pavieent to employees.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Corapany held cash and cash equivalents of ¥ 43,0248 Lakhs (31 March 2022 ¥ 72,992 54 Lekhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with

banks with high rating.

Depesits with banks and financial institutions
The Company held deposits with banks and financial institutions of T 21,068.31 Lakhs {31 Macch 2022- T 29 430,82 Lakhs). In order 10 manage the risk,
Company places deposits with high rated bauks/institutions as stipulated in Investment policy of company

(i} Exposure to credit risk
The camying amount of financial assets represents the maximuim credit exposure. The maximaan exposure to credit risk at the repotting date was:

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 Mapeh 2022
Finnncizl assets for which loss allewanace is measored using 12 months Expected Credit Losses
Non-cutrent loans 4.5376.46 2,511,086
Other non-curent financial assets® 10.856.21 11,878.15
Cash and cash squivalents 43,024.08 72,992 54
Dreposits with banks 21,027.79 25,3945
Current loaus 922,71 538.17
Other curtent financial assets® 5.006.45 6,794,381
Total £3,213.70 1.24,509.25
Financisl assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses
Trade receivables 415,247 63 3,74,287.63
Unkiiled revenue 13,037.70 B495.16
Totai 4,25,285.33 332,782,719

# Excluding unbilisd revenue

(iiy Agelng analysis of trade receivables

Particulars Notdue Lesstitan & & months =1 i-2years  Morethan 2 years Total
months year

Gross amount as at 31 March 2023 18,339.958 82,231.36 71LB1L26 74.894.07 1,67,950.98 4,15,247.63

Gross amount as ai 31 March 2022 27,546.78 61,642.61 60,85235 949,287 .48 1,25,158.41 3,74,287.563
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43 Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Provisior for expected credit losses

Financial assets far which loss allowance is measored using life time expected credit losses

The Company has recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables of ¥ 11,775.03 Lakhs dusing the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022

25,642.89 Lakhs).

Financial assets for whick loss allowarce is messared wsing 12 moath expecied credit losses

The Company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity ta meet the obligations and where the risk of default is negligible. The
Comparny has recognised an allowance for doubtfi] recaverable of Nit during the year ended 31 March 2023 {31 March 2022: ¥ 178.10 Lakhs}.

{iv) Reconeiliation of afowance for doubtful receivables

The movement in the 2llowance for doubtful receivabies in respect of trade recetvables during the year is as follows

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 13,419.62 7.776.73
Add: Allowance for doubtful debts recognised during the year 11,775.03 5,642,889
Closing balance Z5,194.65 13,419.62
The movement in the allowance for doubtful receivables in respect of other financial assets during the vear is as follows:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Mareh 2623 31 March 2022
Opening balance 178.10 -
Add: Allowance for doubtful debis recognised during the year - 178.10
Closing balance 178.19 178.10

b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that arises due to changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates which affects the Company’s income
The abjective of matket risk maragement is to marage and contre! market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum,
The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and provedures to manage market risks of the Company. Afl such transactions are carried

cut within the guidelines set by the risk management comimittee.

(i} Lnterest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising mainky from berrowings with floating interest rates. The Compiny is exposed to interest rate risk
bacause the cash flows associnted with floating rate borrowings will fluctonte with changes in interest sates. The Company manages the interest rate risks
by entering into different kinds of fvan arrangements with varied terms (e.g. fixed raie loans, ficating rate ioans, rupee term loans, foreign cusrency loans,

cte. ).

At the reporting date, the intsrest Tate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instramennis is as follows:

Pardenlars Asat Asat
31 Mavch 2023 31 March 2022
Fipancial assets
Fixed-rate instruments
Loar to subsidiary 4,808.64 3,060,060
Employee Loans 257.54 203.53
Bank deposits 38,235.28 54,602 42
Tatal 43,321.46 57,803.97
Financiat liabilities
Fixed-rate instruments
Foreign cumrency loans « Long term 82,228.38 83,082.77
Debenmres 25,000.00 70,000,090
Short term foans 1,75,920.36 1,39,577.43
Teass abligations 161,66 463.61
Sab-fotal [A] 2,83317.41 2,95.3123.81
Variable-rate instruments
Foreign currency loans - Long term 2,57.539.67 2,25,797.69
Rupee term loans 1,55,713.72 1,69,778.18
Short term foans - 4.060.00
Sub-total [B] 4,13,253.39 3,99,575.87
Total A + 8] 6,96.570.80 6,94,699.68
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45 Finmnecial risk masagement (continued)

Tair value seasitivity analysis for fixed-zate iostruments
The company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost, They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount
nor the fiture cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in roarke? inferest rates.

Cash flow seasitivity analysis for variable-rate Instriments

A change of 50 basis points in mierest 1ates (increase/deciease) af the reporting dats would have increased/decreased profit/{loss) before tax by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that ali other variables, in particular foretgn cumrency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for the previous year.

Particulars Profit/(Loss) before fax
31 March 2023 3% Nlarch 2022
Increase Deerease Increase Decrease
Foreign currency loans {1,287.70) 1,287.70 {1,128.99) 1,128.99
Rupee term loans {778.57) 773,57 (B48.89) 843829
Short term loans - z {20.00) 20.00
Total (2,866.27) 2,066,27 {1.597.8%) 1,957.88

(i Curreacy risk
The Company is exposed 1 foreign currency risk on cerfain transactions that are denominated in a currency other then entity’s Aunctional curreney, hence
exposure 1o exchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the functional currency value of cash flows will vazy as a tesult of movements in exchange
rates. The currency profile of financial instruments as at reporting date are as below:

As at 31 Mareh 2023
Particulars Foreign currzacy { in absslute figares) T in Lakhs

EURD Tsp GEP EURC USD GBP

Financia! linhilities

Fereige cumency borrowings 344,02 856 36,02 88 946 - 44,794.82 298,800,606 .
Commitment fes payable 7,997 1,84,385 [9.50 {51.38 -
Trade payables - - 36,526 . - 3731
Tokal 544,10,556 36,04,72,411 36,626 44,814,327 2,98.951.44 37.31
Financial assets
Tradle receivables - - 41,16,950 - - 4,194.06
Unbitled revenue - - 86,214 " - 87.33
Balance with bank-cusrent account - 2,39,05,763.37 11,201 - 19,654.59 1141
Total - 2,39,05,763 42,114,375 - 19,684.59 4,283 30
Net Exposure 5,44,10,936 33,65,66,643 (4}, 77.750) 44,81.1.32 2,79,297.05 (4,255.99)
As at 31 March 2022
Parficulars Forelgn earrency { in absolute figures) T in Lalhs

ELRC UsD GBP EURD Usb GEP
Financial liabilities
Foreign curency horrowings 3,98.07 505 34,56,10,309 - 50,632.97 2,61.064.55 -
Coremitment fee pavable 1,44,1460 .08 443 - 122,65 13878 -
Trade payehles - - 38,436 - - 3825
Tatal 599.51,665  34,58,19,732 35,426 58,755.02 2,61,223.33 3825
Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 33,37,988 - - 332305
Unbilled revenue - - 54,864 " - 54,62
Balance with baaok-curtent account - 4,30,70,158 9,925 - 32,650.24 5.858
Total - 4,30,70,138 34,002,777 - 32,650.24 3,387.55

Net Exposare 592,501,665  30,27,49,594 (33,064,351} 50,735.02 2,28,573.09 (3,3-42.303
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4% Finauweinl risk manzgement (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A change in the valus of the Indian Rupee (strengthening/wsakening), as indicated below, against Eurg, USD and GBP as et 31 March would have
increased/decreased profit/(loss) before tax by the amounts shown belaw. This anatysis is based on foreign curency exchange rate veriences that the
cormpany considered te be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other vaniables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for previous year.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Strengthening  Weakening Strenathening Weakening

(0% movement

INR/EUR (4,481.43) 4,481.43 (5,075.50) 307550

INR/USD {27,928.71} 2792971 (22,857.31) 22,857.31

INR/GBP 425.60 (425.60) 334,93 (354.93)

Tatal {31,983.59) 31,985.54 (27,597.58) 27,397.88

¢) Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk 15 the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financiat liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient lquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both nermat and stressed conditions, without incarring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Comparry’s reputation,

The Company has an sppropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of short, medivm and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company manages liquidizy risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowtng facilities
by continuously menitoring forecast and zctual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Typicaily diwe Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand o meet expected operational expenses in short-term, inclnding the servicing of
fnancial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

{i) Financing arvangements
The company had access 1o the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the snd of the rapotting period:

Particulars As at As af

31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Fixed-rate borrowings
Foreign currency loans - 1,65.797.60
Warking capital loan - 28,000.00
Tatal - 1,93,797.60
Floating-rate horrowings
‘Working capital loan 8,000.00 -
Foraign cumency loans 1.73,789.00 2.77,696.91
Total 1,51,789.00 2,77,696.91
Tuotal 1,81,789.60 4,71,494.51

(iiy Maturities of financial fiabilities
The following are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, based on contractual cash flows:

As at 31 March 2023
Particulars 3monthsor  3-12 months 1.2 years 2-5 years More than Total
less 3 years
Non-current borrowings™ [3,924.92 86,268.94 73,193.86 1,29,807.52 2,16,317.97 5,21,513.31
Current borrowings® 18,313.57 1,57,569.62 " - - 1,75,913.19
Trade payables 1,05,243.24 421870 4.650.54 4,655.34 39.45 1,19,807.27
Retention meney 43,797.68 314.40 834972 124.42 0.25 45,586.47
Lease liabilities 7780 94, 844 - = - 172,74
Liability for expenses 472527 - - - - 4,7268.21
Payable to employees 49,60 - - - B 49.60
Oihers 410.61 138.97 599.58
Total 1,86,543.78 2,4%,183.47 80,694,12 1,35,587.38 2,18,357.67 8,68,368.43
) ;.,'P _'I_ -
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As ut 31 Mareh ZU22

Particulars Jmonthser  3-12 menths 1-2 years 2-5 years Muore than Total
less 3 years

Mor-current borrowings® 13.387.04 1,11,253.20 1.085,297.83 1,65.073.72 2,14,081.08 6,09,692.87
Current borrowiags® 2727743 1,16,3006.00 - - - 1,43,577.43
Trade payables 94.801.94 5,332.63 5,251.52 8,183.33 82801 1.14,404.43
Retention money 40,710.21 [,486.84 1,043.48 1,179.11 348 44,423,132
1Lease liabilities 79.83 244 82 172.74 - - 49741
Laability for expenses 1,147.30 1,032,353 - - - 2,179.65
Payabie to employees 7724 160.00 - - - 237.24
Qthers 404.71 390.53 - - - 19524
Total 1,77,885.72 2,36,200.37 1LIL771.57 1,74,436.14 2,14,913.58 9.15,207.40

*Excludes inferest acerued

46 Capitat management
The Comgany's objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharsholdars and benefiis for other stakeholders and
- raintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibifity to maintain & strong capital base and reduce fhe cost of capital thvough prudent management in
deployment of finds and seurcing by leveraging opportunities in domestic and imternational financial markels so as to maintain investors, creditors &
markets’ confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors also monitors the levet of dividends to equity sharehoiders.

Under the terins of major bermowing facilities, the Company is required 1o comply with the following financial covenants, broadly:

{i) Maintain a evrrent ratio {currernt assets divided by current liabilities) of at least 1.¢

(i} Maintain 2 minkmum asset coverage of 1.00 times

(tii) Maintain a Debt; Equity ratio (long-term debt divided by equrty net of accumulated orofits/losses) not exceeding 36:2¢

{iv) Maintain an asset debt service coverage ratio (net cash flow from operations divided by debt service abligations, including alé principal payments and
tax-shielded interest and lease payments follewing due within the year} of at legst 1.2

(v) Borrowsr shai! inform the Bank sknultaneously aleng with Stock Exchange if substantéal effect on thear profit or business means an adverse variance
of 20% or more.

The Company is not subject 1o sxfemally imposed capital requirements. The Company monitors capital, using & medinm temm view of three to five vears,
on the basis of nunber of financial ratios generally used by industry and by the rating azencies.

‘The financizl covenant ratios which the Company nses bo smoaitor is capital are as follovws:

Particelars As at As af

31 March 2023 31 March 2622
Cumrent ratio 1.10 1.29
Debt-aquity ratio 4,28 355
Dehbt service coverage atio 0.65 0.59
Assel coverage ralio 2.66 192

47 The Company raises funds through various sources mcluding series of non-cenvertible hond 1ssues. The details of redeemable, taxable, non-cuomuiative,
nen-converithlz bonds in the nature of debentures issued by the Company are as follows.

Serfes Securcd/  Fotal issue Size Facevalne of Allotment Date  Next Due Date of Next Due Date of
Unsecured eack Bond prineipal repayment Annual Enterest
Seres- (STRIP'CY Secured® 25,000,00 %2000 Lakh 20-5ep-i6 20-8ep-23 20-Sep-23

* Series-1 is secured by first pan-passu charge over moveable fixed asseis of the Company with minimum assst coverage of 1.06 times
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48 Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures'

fn accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures, the name of the related party where controlability to exercise significant wihuence exists
along with the aggregate smount of ransactions and year and balances with them as identified and certified by the Management are grven befow:

wj List of related pariies and naters of relationship:

(i} Entities having jeint control over the compaay:
PowerGrid Corporation of [ndia Limited

NTPC Limited
Power Finance Corporation Lirzited
REC Limited

(i} Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
Sreekant Kandikuppa Wominee Drirector and Chairman w.e.f 6 September 2021
Rajgev Sherma Nominee Director and Chairman w.e.f 3 Februasy 2018 upto 6 Sentember 2021
Saurabh Kamar Executive Vice-Chairman w.e £ 1 April 2021 upio 6 September 2021
Vishal Kapaor Chief Executive Officer w.e.L 2 Novenber 2022

. {hief Executive Officer w.e.f 3 October, 2021-CEQ upto 2 November 2022

Arar. ¥omer Ml Whole-Tine Directar { Additional chargs) w.e.f, 7 October, 202 1-Dicectoc ugto 27 July 2022
Rajat Kutas Sisd Managing Direcior wazL 7 October 2020 upte § Septamber 2021
Venkatesh Dwivedi Direstor (P & BD) w.e.f 7 February 2019 upto 6 September 2021
Shankar Gopal Director (Commercial) w.e.E 7 February 2019 upto 6 September 2021
Aditya Dar Non-Executive Notuines Director w.ef 22 August 2020
Ravindra Kuar Tyagi Non-Executive Womines Director w.e.f 4 December 2022
Dilip Kumar Pate] Nor-Executive Nominse Director w.e.f, 10 Febnuary 2023
Chandar Kumar Meadol Mon-Executive Nominas Director w.o.f. 6 September 2021 upto 3¢ January 2023
Abhay Choudhary Mon-Executive Nominee Director w.e.£ I8 June 2022 upto 1 December 2022
Seewa Gupta Non-Executive Momines Director w.e.f 6 Septergher 2021 upto 31 May 2022
Ajay Tewarl Nye-Exesutive (overnment Nominece Direstar  wae £ 29 Ry 2022
Vivek Kumar Dewangar Noa-Executive Government Nomines Director  we £ 23 December, 2021 upto 28 July 2022
Mriturjay Kumar MNarayan Newinee Director w.e. [ 30 June 2021 vpte 21 Deacember 2021
Abbzy Bakre Noininee Director w.e.f. 8 May 2618 upto 5 October 2021
Parteinder Chopra Nowminee Director w.e.f, 23 December 2020 upto 6 September 2024
Sandeep Komar Jain Chief Financial Officer w.o.f 1 April 2022
Lokesh Eumar Aggarwal Chief Financiat Otficer w.af 20 April 2021 upto | Apdl 2022
Mokt Khated Chief Financial Officer w,e.f. 21 January 2021 upto 19 April 2021
Pooja Shukla Company Secretacy w.2.f 27 December 2012

(it} Subsidiary of the com pany:
EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited
EESL Energy Selutions LL.C
Convergenes Eneryy Services Limited

(iv) Subsidinries of EESL EnergyPro Assets Limited
EPAL Holding Limited
Edina Acquitions Limited
Edina Power Scrvices Limited
Edina Limited
Edina UK Limited
Edina Manefacturing Limied*
Armonra Holdings Linuited
Stanbeck Limited
Egina Power Limited
Edina Australia Pty Limited
EPSL Trigeneration Private Limited
Asneseo Enerpy Services (South) Eimited
Croighten Enetgry Limited

*Edina Manuthoturing Limited has boen diesclved on 24 January 2023

{v} Joint Vestures of the company:
Intellismart Infrastrocture Private Lid
NEESL Privats Limited (1spto 26 April 2621}

i} Post Employment Beoefit Plans:
Energy Efficiency Services Linvited Employess Gronp Superannustion Defived Contribution Scheme Trust (EESL- Superaaneation Trust)

{vifs Entities under the contrul of the same government:
The Company is a joint ventare of Power Grid Carporation of India Limited, NTPC Limited, Powsr Finance Corporation Limited and Rucal Electrification Corporation
Limited cnder the Minisiry of Power, heote is coatrolbed by Government of [ndia {GGL) fhroagh these controllad entities (refer note 21). The Comparny bas Iransactions
with other entities controlled by GOL for sale and purchase of goods and services thrawgh a traaspareot price diseovery process 2gainst opea tenders, exvapt i a few cases
of single tendar due to trgency, compatibility or ather reasons. Transactions witls these entilies ace i the conrse of nerinal day-te-day business operations, carried out at
masket terms on anns lepgth basis.

o
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48 Disclosure as per lind AS 24 'Reloted Farty Disclasares (Continned)

{viii) Subsidiaries, joint veniures and associates of entities having joint contral over the company:
Towergrid Vemapin: Transmission Limited Powarlinks Transmission Limited
Powergrid Mt Transmission Limiied Torrent Power Cirid Limited
TPowergrid Lnchaitar Trassmussion Linated Parbati Koldam Transmaission Company Limited
Powergrid Southern [ntercomuector Tratsmission System Limited Teestavalley Power Transmission Limited

Powsrgrid Medinipur Jeerat T fon Limited
Pawezgrid Mithilanchel Transmission Limited
Pawergrid Varangsi Tronsmission System Limited

Powergrid Jewabarpsr Firozabad Transmission Limfted

Pawerprid Khevri Transmission 3ystem Limited
Powergrid Bing Transmission Limiled
Powergrid Bhind Guna Transmission Limitad

Nonk East Transmizsion Compary Limited

National High Power Test Labosatery Private Limited

Bihar Grid Company Limited

Cross Border Power Transmizgion Comgpany Limited

RINL Powsrgrid TLT Private Lirnited

Butwal-Gorzkhpor Cross Border Power Transrnission Limited

Power Transmission Company Nepal Eirmited

Powergeid Ajmer Phagd Trausmission Limited NTPC Vidyut ¥yapar Nigam Led.
Powergrid Faichgarht Transmigsion Limited NTPC Eleciric Supply Compeny Lid
Powargrid Ravopur Sambhal Transwission Limited Bhiartiya Rail Bijles Company Ltd,
Powergrid Meerut Simbhayali Transmssion Firaited Patratu Vidyws Utpadan Nigam Ltd.

Central Transmission Lttty of [ndia Limited

North Eastern, Flesiric Power Corporation Ltd,

Powargrid BEamgach Tranemisstor Limited THDC India Lid.

Powergrid Himachsl Transmission Limited NTPC Mining Led.

Powergrid Bikaner Transmission System Limited NTPC EDMC Waste Solutions Private Lid,
Powergrid Sikar Transmission Limited Ratmagiri Gas £ Power Private Ltd
Powergrid Bhad!a Transmission Limited WTPC Green Energy Limited

Powergrid Aligark SRear Tronemission Limited Litility Poweriech Lid,

Powergeid Teleservices Limited

Powargrid Enecgy Services Limited

Powergrid Narela Tramsmission Limited
Powergrid Gorptl Yarmuna Transmission Limited
Bowargrid Meemuch Trapsenission System Limited
Powergrid ER NER Transmisston Lintited
Powergrid ERWR Power Transmission Limited
RKhavda RE Transmdssicn Linited

Khavda II-B Trangmission Limited

NTPC-GE Powar Services Pelvate Eid.
NTPC-SAIL Power Company Lid.
NTPC Fawn! Nadu Energy Company Lad
Aravali Power Company Private Ld,
%leja Urja Nigam Private Lud.

HNTPC BHEL Power Projests Private Lig

HNational High Power Test Laboratory Privatie Lid

TFramaformers and Elecrricals Kerala Led.
CIL NTPC Urja Private Lid.

Khavda [1-C Transmission Limnited Armsshakti Vidhys Nigam Lid,

Pawergrid K P32 Transmission System Limited Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Lid.

Fowergrid KPS3 Transmission Limited Jaabua Power Limited,

Raipur Peol Dhantard Trapsmission Limited Trizcomales Powar Company Lid.

Dharammigarh Tragsmitsion Limited Bangladesh-India Friendship Power Compoay Brivate Lul.
Bhadla Rikar Tronsmizsion Limired REC Fower Development and Consultaney Ltd,

PFC Capital Advisory Services Ltd PFC Green Energy Ltd.

PFC Consulting Lad

Transactions with gharchiolders

b} Transactions earried out with the related pariies in the ordinary course of husisess are as follows:

Naure of refated party Nature of transaction For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2012
Sals oF goods and services (exchuding GST) T72.98 1,616.36
NTPC Limited Rent/electricity/office maintenance expense 351.00 883,83
Deputalion of employees 229,44 2.8
Sake of goods and services (excluding GST: [11.53 12843
. . ey Rent/interte: espense [87.93 243,50
R Do it i e Deputation of sxuployees 305.38 0,48
Equity contribution recetved - 1074917
REC Limited Sale of gaods and services (exeluding GST) Q.30 &42
Pawer Finance Corporation Limited Sale of gnods snd services (exchiding GST) 23.66 238G
‘Transactions with subsidiaries
Name of related party Nature of transaction For the year endled For the year ended
H Narch M3 31 March 1022
G teas provided/{retensed) {10.204.03) {641.36)
G teo foes incom 72344 86946
EESL EnergyPro Assets Limitad M fees income 44,98 106.86
‘Equity invesunent - &,150,60
Interest ingome 243,95 21371
Sale of goods and services 1397.27 27759
Purchase of goods and services 604,79 342.30
Expenditurz incoryed on beholf of companies 23,52 1.366,65
Convergence Energy Services Limited Lovestment in subsidiary 1921.00 L0000
{Enn given 2396.00 3.000.00
[Repayment of Loan 381.37 3
|interest income 291.68 2.62
Edina UK Limited [Management fees income: 56,60 104.45
Sale of poeds and services (excludine GST) 1325 104,03
Purchasy of goeds and senices a3.03 418,06
. . . pr— Expendinws incstrred o behalf of companics 0.40 73,30
RSB RrAoniE e Pl Capiral advances recsived back L 333.90 30.01
Deputation of employees 78,74 10.15
o - Interast neome 6.63 o
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48 Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 'Related Party Disclosares’ (confinued)

‘Fransactions with joint veniures

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the yaar ended
3] March 2023

For the year esided
31 March 2022

Inietlismart Infrastructure Private Limitod

Inv t i Joint Venture 3993 50 1.308,10
Project maintenance charges 326550 274027
Advances given /(received back) (768.38) 1.478.99
Sale of goods and services {excluding GST} 2048 135.74

Transactions with other refated parties

Parficolzrs For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Transzctions with pest employment henefit plag
Contributions made during fhe year 392.93 234.66

Compensation 1o Key m. personnel
Short term benefits 3980 140.47
Post employment benefits 7.56 24.58
Other long tern benefits 1,25 1179
Deputation employee benefits 133.49 29.59
Total compensati 202,19 20643

Travsactions with related parties of enfities baving joint tontrol over the company:

Sale of goods and services {excluding GST) 83.43 17925
Purchase of goods and services 1992 33 2,246.90
Manpower services 168544 2.841.64

< [ndividually significant transactions

Transactions with related parties of entities having joint control over the company:

Mame of related party Nature of transaction For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Utility Powertech Limited ilangower seevices reeeived by the Company 1635.44 284164

d) Qutstanding balences with related parties ave as follows:
Qetstanding balances with sharcholders
Name of related party Nature of fransaction Asat As at
37 March 2023 31 March 2622
Amouni recoverzble for snle/purchase 104548 1,160.23
NEPC Limited Amound recovershla (other than loans) 49.16 449§
Ascount payeble (other than foans) 431.22 158.78
Amonnt recoverable for salesparchase 124970 1,398.64
Power Grid Corporagon of India Limited Amour/, recoverable (other than foans) 28.76 -
Amonnt payable (other than loans} 130.09 123.06
s Amount tecovernble for sale/purchase 27219 330.48
BEEIE e Aamount recoverabls {other thar loans) 1649 16.49
. i, Amount recoverable for sale/purchase 62.04 63.84

e Amount recoverable (ther :gnu Toams) 10,02 10.02

Outstanding balance with subsidiaries

Name of refated party Nature of transzction As 3t As at

31 March 2023 31 WFarch 2002
Aumount regoverable for sala/purchase 4271.05 3,406.80
[EESL Euergy Pro Assets Limited Amount recoverable (other than loans) 21649 215.49
Guarantees provided/{released) 34830.68 45,654.73
Edina UK Limited Amount recoverable for sale/pnrchase 210,58 205,78
Aunipunt recoverable for sale/purchase 3028 3840
EPSL Trigeneration Private Lnited Capital advance 224 81 762,30
Interest on advance .65 “
Amouat recoverable for salefpurchasg 167838 977.69
. s Amott payable for sals/purchase 982.0] 33582
oo e o n L Coan given including intersst 386853 3505.65
Amovnt recoverable {other than loang) 354.71 298959

TR

ot
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48 Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosuies’ {vontinupd)

Outstanding halanee with jeint vestture

Mame of related party Natere of tronsaction Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 Maech 2022
5 o e Amount pavable apainst purchase 245717 2,505.50
s e U Sl Gl Amount recoverabie {other than loans) 193348 5.793.05
Qutstanding balances with other related parties
Particulars Asg at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Subsidiaries/Joint ventires of entities baving juint control over the eompany:
Amount recoverable for sale/purchase of goods and services 271249 1,357.86
Amount pavable (other than loans) 196.83 307.47

) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties
(i The comtracts/arrangements/iransaciions ertered with the related parties during the year ended 33 March 2023 were made on normal commer